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Honorable Bill de Blasio
Mayor

The City of New York

City Hall _

New York, New York 10007

Dear Mayor de Blasio:

The New York City Housing Development Corporation (the “Corporation” or “HDC”) is
submitting its Annual Investment Report (the “Report”) for the Corporation and its subsidiaries
pursuant to Section 2925 of the Public Authorities Law (“PAL”) of New York State. The Report
presents the Corporation’s investment record for fiscal year 2019. As required by statute, the
report includes: :

— 1. The investinent record of the Corporation, which is discussed in this letter and detailed
in the attached Quarterly Reports;
2 The Investment Guidelines as approved by the Members on September 26,2019
3, Quarterly Reports submitted to the Members of the Corporation which disclose the
investment purchases and the types of securities bought; and

47 The results of the annual independent audit. (DRAFT)

This report also includes descriptive charts on HDC’s investments and investing environment, and
a Counterparty Credit Risk Exposure Summary.

The Corporation

The Corporation was established in 1971 under the provisions of the Private Housing Finance Law
of the State of New York (“HDC Act”). It was created primarily to offer low-interest mortgage
Joans and thereby encourage the investment of private capital in providing safe and sanitary
housing for those whose need for housing cannot be provided by unassisted private enterprise.

To accomplish its objectives, the Corporation finances new construction and rehabilitation of
multi-family residential housing developments through the issuance of tax-exempt and taxable
debt. The Corporation is not authorized to levy taxes and has never received operating assistance
from the City nor State. HDC is authorized to provide construction and/or permanent financing

- with mortgage loans generally secured by first or second liens on the real estate financed. These
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loans may also be guaranteed or secured in a variety of ways such as with bank letters of credit,
Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac guarantees and mortgage insurance provided by governmental
agencies or private insurers.

To assist HDC in fulfilling its mandate, the State Legislature established four subsidiaries of HDC,
two of which are currently active and have assets. The Housing Assistance Corporation (“HAC”)
was established in 1985, and the New York City Residential Mortgage Insurance Corporation
(“REMIC”) was established in 1993. The Housing New York Corporation (“HNYC”) was
founded in 1986 and the NYC HDC Real Estate Owned Corporation (“REQ”) was established in
9004 under 654-a of the Act. Both of these subsidiaries are currently inactive, however, the REO
did acquire and immediately dispose of one property during FY 2011 as part of a preservation plan
for a federally assisted development in the Bronx.

Investment Guidelines

As an integral part of the internal controls established by the Corporation to safeguard its assets,
management has set forth Investment Guidelines (the “Guidelines™) which are annually reviewed
and approved by the Members of the Corporation. The Corporation’s investment options are set
by the PAL and the HDC Act, and the Guidelines establish permitted investments within this
statutory framework. The current Guidelines were reviewed and adopted on September 26, 2019.
A copy of which is attached for your review.

The Guidelines require the Corporation and its subsidiaries to seek to diversify their investment
holdings and to establish an Investment Committee. The primary goal of the Committee is to
safeguard the Corporation’s assets and maximize investment yield without undue risk. The
Committee generally meets bi-weekly and authorizes purchases and sales of investments in
accordance with the HDC Act, the various bond resolutions which govern the programs
administered by the Corporation, and contractual obligations with other governmental agencies.

In addition to the Guidelines, HDC’s Cash Management Department operates according to written
policies and procedures that govern the receipt and disbursement of funds. These policies and
procedures work together with the Guidelines to provide a framework for safeguarding the
Corporation’s investment assets.

Description of Monies Available for Investment

HDC invests funds from a variety of sources. Each time the Corporation issues bonds, the proceeds
are invested until needed for mortgage advances, as well as the bond revenue and debt service
reserve funds. The Corporation invests in permitted investments including demand deposits,
certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements (all fully collateralized by U.S. Treasury or Agency
securities), Guaranteed Investment Contracts (“GICs”), NYS/NYC municipal bonds, and direct
purchases of U.S. Treasury and Agency obligations.

Most collections are pledged to the payment of bond principal and interest. These mortgage
receipts are thus invested to the next debt service date. The applicable bond resolutions of the



Corporation’s housing programs and the Investment Guidelines determine the types of securities
that may be purchased with these monies.

HDC maintains substantial reserve funds as required by each program. Many HDC programs
require the ability to liquidate securities at the original reserve amount at any time, regardless of
market conditions. HDC enters into GICs for these restricted reserves, deposits funds in
collateratized demand deposit accounts, or puichases U.S. Treasury or Agency obligations with
maturity dates that target a one to six-year average life to provide this liquidity feature.

The Corporation also administers several types of escrow funds that are accumulated to pay certain
~ expenses of the housing developments in order to protect the Corporation’s mortgage liens. They
include escrows for hazard insurance, real estate taxes, mortgage insurance premiums, water and
sewer charges and working capital. These funds are generally outside the lien of the bond
resolutions and are either held by the applicable trustee or a depository. They are invested on a
short-term basis to coincide with the dates when the applicable payments must be made and are
invested in U.S. Treasury or Agency obligations, collateralized demand deposit accounts, or
repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury or Agency securities.

A portion of the Corporation’s mortgage portfolio is insured by the Federal Housing
Administration (“FHA”), which requires developers to maintain a Reserve-for-Replacement Fund.
These funds are invested in US Treasury bills and collateralized demand deposit accounts.

The Corporation is committed to assisting the City in implementing its affordable housing and
community development strategy. Since 2003, unrestricted corporate funds in excess of $2.97
billion have been allocated for this purpose and are being used to provide 1% or low-interest loans.
HDC also serves as a fee-based loan servicer for various City Department of Housing Preservation
and Development (“HPD”) housing loan programs. As such, the Corporation invests HPD loan
funds that have not yet been advanced to the borrowers as well as project reserves. These funds
are invested in short term repurchase agreements, collateralized demand deposits, or U.S. Treasury
and Agency securities.

The Corporation has established the Corporate Services Fund as its operating fund. The cash and
investments held in this fund are principally allocated to funding affordable housing programs and
providing dedicated reserves to support the Corporation’s “AA” rating. The HDC Act and the
Guidelines determine the types of securities which may be purchased by this fund.

The Corporation administers the investments of its two active subsidiaries, HAC and REMIC. In
July 2003 HAC approved the funding of a rental subsidy program for eligible tenants of the
Ruppert/Yorkville development, which was leaving the Mitchell-Lama program. This subsidy has
been funded by loans from HDC to HAC, by HAC revenues, and by a pre-payment from two of
the HAC mortgages. In October 2017, in order to continue to fund the City Subsidy Program and
repay HDC, the HAC Members authorized the sale of its remaining five loans with an aggregate
outstanding balance of approximately $32 miltion to HDC, HDC securitized these loans raising
$23.8 million for HAC. The loan sale proceeds were used to repay HDC its outstanding $9.05
million loan to HAC. The remaining sale proceeds, together with earnings on the proceeds, should
be sufficient to continue the City Subsidy Program through 2022. These proceeds need to be liquid



and are currently invested in collateralized money market accounts. HDC staff will work with
the City of New York to determine other potential resources to support the City Subsidy Program
in the intervening period.

REMIC insures mortgages and underwrites to a zero loss standard. Therefore, liquidity is not a
major concern and REMIC funds are invested for maximum yield in securities expected to be held
to maturity. The current portfolio consists of fully collateralized bank certificates of deposit and
demand deposits, and US Agency securities with a remaining maturity of approximately 1.78
years. Some earnings may be invested short term for a few months to accumulate or to aggregate
with expected investment rollovers.

See Note 3 “Investment and Deposits” of the DRAFT FY 2019 financial statements for further
details.

Investment Results

Earnings on investments totaled $110.1 million in fiscal year 2019, an increase of $47.3 million
from fiscal year 2018, due mainly to an increase in investment proceeds during FY 2019. The
interest rates across the shorter term maturities and a flatter yield curve environment are factors to
consider in the Corporation’s ongoing investment strategy.

Because of the Corporation’s commitments, the majority of investments must be held for the short
term, which provides sufficient liquidity for the Corporation. Chart A summarizes HDC’s
investment earnings since 2015. Charts B and C in this report illustrate how short-term
investment rates, at historically low levels, changed over the past fiscal year and how spreads
between maturities narrowed resulting in a flatter yield curve. In response to the current interest
rate environment, the Corporation continued to invest primarily in collateralized demand deposits,
certificates of deposit, guaranteed investment contracts, and direct purchases of U.S. Treasury and
Agency obligations in order to optimize yield. Charts D and E provide a breakdown of the pools
of funds invested and the type of investments.

As required by GASB No. 31 the Corporation has recorded a fair value adjustment in its investment
portfolio. The Corporation recorded a net appreciation of $29.4 million for fiscal year 2019. As
part of the Corporation’s investment policies, it looks to invest its bond and corporate related
reserves in securities with the intent to hold the investment to maturity. As a result, any unrealized
appreciation or depreciation is only reported as an accounting gain or loss at this time.

HDC funds under management increased about 12.2% from fiscal year-end 2018 to fiscal year-
end 2019, from $5.26 billion to $5.91 billion. The Corporation had a 10.61% growth in net position
over the last year.

While consolidated investment income was $110.1 million, it is important to note that interest
income accrues to the benefit of the bond issue or corporate fund from which it is derived. In
particular, earnings on bond proceeds are applied to pay interest expense on the related bonds. In
fiscal year 2019, $66.9 million or 60.8% of the consolidated investment income was attributable
to bond programs and HPD related investments, and therefore was not available to the Corporation.



An additional $3.5 million was earned by and retained within REMIC and HAC. The remaining
$39.7 million of earnings is pledged to ongoing affordable housing programs of the Corporation.

Fees and Charges Paid

HDC manages its funds internally through the Cash Management Division. HDC has not incurred
nor paid any fees, commissions or other charges for investment services.

Internal Controls

Principal guidance of the Corporation’s investments is provided by the Investment Guidelines and
Investment Committee, as described above, and daily activities are carried out in accordance with
written policies and procedures. In addition, there are multiple forms of oversight and review of
the Corporation’s investment practices:

HDC’s Credit Risk Unit reviews the Corporation’s investment portfolio on a regular basis
and includes investments in its monthly Corporate Counterparty Risk Report. This report
is presented to HDC’s executive staff on a monthly basis and to the Audit Committee of
the HDC Board at each mesting. A summary chart is included in this report.

An Investment Report is also presented at each Audit Committee meeting. This report
details investments by type and pool and provides details on any significant developments.

HDC’s Internal Audit unit conducts a periodic audit of the Cash Management Division,
including a review of its compliance with written policies and procedures. Findings are
reported to the Audit Committee. '

HDC’s external auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, conduct an annual examination of the
Corporation’s financial statements. The firm’s annual audit included a review of the
Corporation’s investment practices, confirmation of outstanding investments, and
determination of the market value of securities held by HDC. The Ernst & Young Report
on Compliance with Investment Guidelines and Report on 2019 Financial Statements are
both attached in DRAFT form.

FH7C

Eric Enderlin
President

ccC:

Honorable Scott Stringer
Honorable Thomas P. DiNapoli



New York City Housing Development Corporation And Subsidiaries
Summary of lnvestmént Earnings

Fiscal Years 2015-2019

Chart A

Millions

Fiscal Year Amount in Millions

2015 | . 24.4
2016 26.1
2017 37.8
2018 | 62.8

2019 | 110.1
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Note: Investment earnings do not include any Fair Market Value adjustment.
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Chart B

Sample Average Interest Rates for Fourth Quarter 2018 through Fourth Quarter 2019

Descriptions: 4th QTR 2018 1stQTR 2019 2nd QTR 2019 3rd QTR2019 4th QTR 2019
Market yield on U.S. Treasury securities at 3-months 2.36 2.44 2.35 2.03 1.61
Market yield on U.S. Treasury securities at 6-months 2.50 2.51 2.36 1.97 1.61
Market yield on U.S. Treasury securities at 1-year 2.67 2.54 2.26 1.85 158
Market yield on U.S. Treasury securities at 2-years 2.80 2.49 2.13 1.69 1.59
Market yield on U.S. Treasury securities at 5-years 2.88 2,46 2.12 1.63 1.61
Market yield on U.S. Treasury securities at 10-years 3.04 2.65 2.34 1.80 1.79
90-Day AA Financial Commercial Paper Interest Rate 2.52 2.40 2.11 1.81
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Chart C

NYCHDC Average Interest Rates from Fiscal First Quarter 2018 through Fiscal Fourth Quarter 2019

Month/Year  *Repurchase _ *Money Markets SIFMA
Nov-18 2.19 2.32 1.67
Dec-18 2.40 2.40 1.67
Jan-19 | 2.40 2.42 1.40
Feb-19 2.39 2.43 1.68
Mar-19 2.55 2.42 1.58
Apr-19 2.45 ‘ 2.43 1.84
May-19 2.45 2.45 1.56
Jun-19 2.43 2.44 1.73
“Jul-19 2.35 2.43 1.35
Aug-19 2.19 : 2.37 1.35
Sep-19 2.19 2.31 1.41
Oct-19 - 1.84 2.23 1.30

* Weighted Average
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Chart D

NYCHDC Outstanding Investments at Par by Type as of
10/31/2019
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ChartE

NYCHDC Outstanding Investments at Par by Type as of Year End 2019 with
Comparison to Fiscal Year End 2018
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Report of Independent Auditors

Management and the Members of the
New York City Housing Development Corporation

Report on the Schedule of Investments
We have audited the accompanying Schedule of Investments

Development Corporation (the “Corporation”), a component ui T
October 31, 2019 and the related notes.

&

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Sched) tle N

37

Management is responsible for the preparation and fa .\r,pres'g Htation of the Schedule of Investments
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting, principles; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of intefnalie *in%@;%vant to the preparation and fair

presentation of the Schedule of Investments gn'z’éterial misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to expressian ¢
conducted our audit in,; {Scordancey diting standards generally accepted in the United States
and the standards app] able to fimancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptrollg General; F the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain{gason: Ble assurance about whether the Schedule of Investments is free
of material misstatement. 4

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Schedule of Investments. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the tisks of material misstatement of the Schedule of
Tnvestments, whethér due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the Schedule of
Investments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Schedule of Investments.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Schedule of Investments referred to above presents fairly, in all material
respects, the investments of the Corporation at October 31,2019, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

Report on the Financial Statements as of October 31,2019

(G,
g
{I¥ accepted in the United States
g Corporation as of and for the

29, 2020, expressed an

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards geneg
and Government Auditing Standards, the financial statement;
year ended October 31, 2019, and our report thereon, ated Jafx

unmodified opinion on those financial statements. '

In accordance with Government Auditing St

29, 2020 on our consideration of the Corpora
our tests of its compliance with certain
agreements and other matters wi espé;}
g

K
a

o ALLY

{isibis of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
\.\Schedule of Investments. The purpose of that
testinpbf internal control over financial reporting and
1o andnofto provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
%aﬂll\}cial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
ancgwith Government Auditing Standards in considering the
ancial reporting and compliance with respect to the Schedule

part of an audit perfo
Corporation’s internaly
of Investments..

January 29, 2020



Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of the Schedule of Investments Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Management and the Members of the
New York City Housing Development Corporation

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards ge y accepted in the United States

and the standards applicable to financial audits containedgf= \‘(?k%yernmem‘ Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States}zﬁgie Schedulé"‘g{\Investments of the New
York City Housing Development Corporation (the rporation™), a Goinponent unit of the City

44® the Schedule of Investments, and
> 4

al reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
) % for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
e purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the

Corporation’s internal control
procedures that are appropriate™
the Schedule of Investme

eXists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, 1 thenormal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct misstat Ments on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a

" material misstatement of the entity’s Schedule of Investments will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Corporation’s Schedule of
Investments is free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, investment policies established by the
Corporation and the New York State Comptroller’s investment guideline requirements as
presented in Section 201.3(c) of the Accounting, Reporting and Supervision Requirements for
Public Authorities, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of Schedule of Investment amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non¢gmpliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Stand. '

Purpose of this Report

ope ofsour testing of internal control and

The purpose of this report is solely to describe thels
idé/an opinion on the effectiveness of the

compliance and the result of that testing, and not to Pt

1dgring the entity’s internal control and
ab}ly\e “for any other purpose.



New York City Housing Development Corporation

Schedule of Investments
(In Thousands of Dollars)

October 31, 2019
Purpose investments $ 28,497
Restricted investments 3,221,510
Unrestricted investments 202,891
Total investments $ 3,452,898

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.



New York City Housing Development Corporation

Notes to Schedule of Investments

October 31, 2019

~

1. Background and Organization

The accompanying Schedule of Investments includes the investments of the New York City
Housing Development Corporation (the “Corporation” or “HDC”) and its component units, the
New York City Housing Assistance Corporation (“HAC”) and the New York City Residential
Mortgage Insurance Corporation (“REMIC”).

G
gfijgf)

“Corporation” or “HDC”) is a

ation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of New York (the “State)i*The Corﬁ&x‘aﬁon is also a tax-exempt
organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Inten}?l’%Reve%%e Code 6121986, as amended (the
“Code”). The Corporation was established in 19 rithe provisions of Article XII of the
{to continue in existence for at least as

are outstanding.
N

The New York City Housing Development Corporation (g
corporate governmental agency constituting a public benqgﬁft" corpo

The Corporation was created to encourage the entof private capital through low-interest
mortgage loans in order to increasgggﬁe .%Rply s fe and sanitary dwelling accommodations for
families and persons whose neg ifor housjng acéﬁ%glmodations cannot be provided by unassisted
private enterprise. To accomplishiits obje ylgg{g}fé Corporation is empowered to finance housing
habilitation and to provide permanent financing for multi-family
iotitfinances significant amounts of its activities through the
issuance of bonds, notes and debh obligations. The bonds, notes and debt obligations of the

; 4
Corporation are not debis,of either &L}e State or The City of New York (the “City”).

Pursuant to Governmental Stinting Standards Board (“GASB”) Codification 2100, Defining
the Financial Reporting Entity, the Corporation’s financial statements are included in the City’s
financial statements as a component unit for financial reporting purposes. ‘

HAC is a public benefit corporation established pursuant to Section 654-b of ‘the Act as a
subsidiary of the Corporation.

HAC is empowered to receive monies from any source, including, but not limited to, the
Corporation, the City or the State, for the purpose of assisting rental developments to maintain
rentals affordable to low and moderate-income persons for whom the ordinary operation of private
enterprise cannot supply safe, sanitary and affordable housing accommodations. In order to
accomplish this objective, HAC may transfer, lend, pledge or assign these monies to any rental
development or assist the Corporation in financing such developments. As a subsidiary of HDC,
HAC’s functions are administered by the Corporation and its Board Members substantially overlap



New York City Housing Development Corporation

Notes to Schedule of Investments (continued)

with HDC’s Board Members, so it is reported as a blended component unit in HDC’s financial
statements,

REMIC a public benefit corporation established pursuant to Section 654-d of the Act as a
subsidiary of HDC. REMIC is the successor entity to the New York City Rehabilitation Mortgage
Insurance Corporation (“Old REMIC”), which was dissolved on January 27, 1993. REMIC has
the authority to insure residential mortgage loans throughout the City in order to promote the
preservation of neighborhoods which are blighted, are becoming bl}ghted or may become blighted,
to discourage divestment and encourage the investment of mort g%wcapital in such neighborhoods
and to provide safe, sanitary and affordable housing accomm. ations to persons and families for

whom the ordinary operations of private enterprise cannot s‘f;pplﬁ?\s h accommodations.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies forJnvestments

Investments

QIPO
. . P 1 \
form of open time deposits or fixed repyrchase ‘agreements, are reported at an amount equal to
principal and accrued interest.

IDC has made three housing development loans that are secured
by GNMA certificates rathér tian mortgages on the related properties. The GNMA certificates
provide payments at such timés and in such amounts as to fully repay the respective HDC loans
and are the only source of repayment for these loans. The GNMA certificates are treated under
U.S. Treasury regulations as acquired program obligations. The GNMA certificates are
classified in the financial statements as purpose investments and identified separately from other
investments and restricted investments in the financial statements. However, interest earned on
the GNMA certificates is included in investment income.

It is the Corporation’s policy to record GNMA certificates at amortized cost, which amounted to
$28,497,000 and $29,081,000 at October 31, 2019 and October 31, 2018, respectively. The fair
value of these purpose investments amounted to $30,488,000 and $29,067,000 at October 31,
2019 and at October 31, 2018, respectively.



New York City Housing Development Corporation

Notes to Schedule of Investments (continued)

3. Investments

The Corporation is authorized to engage in investment activity pursuant to the Act and the
Corporation’s respective bond resolutions. Investment policies are set for the Corporation by the
Members of the Corporation on an annual basis, through the annual adoption of written
investment guidelines. Investments are reviewed on a periodic basis by the Corporation’s Audit
Committee. Day-to-day investment decisions are made by the Corporation’s Investment
Committee. The Corporation principally invests in securities of me(}%nited States and its agencies,
open time deposits (“OTDs”) in the form of investment agre fiients, demand accounts, and
repurchase agreements. In fiscal year 2019, HDC continued ing; sting in taxable municipal bonds
of New York State and New York City, consistent with th’é orporation’s enabling statute and
Investment Guidelines. The Corporation did not ente;r/', to any rev grepurchase agreements
during the year ended October 31, 2019. The Corp tion ispot awdresof any violations of any
provisions of the foregoing policies. Y

Yive trustees for the benefit of the
héCorporation’s name. Bond program

All securities, other than securities held $¥mthe resp

ijon thehtrade date. Investments, other than purpose
§-‘t%ber 31, 2019, were as follows:

Investment Maturities at October 31, 2019 (In Years)

Investment Typé Less than 1 1-5 6-10 More than 10

(In Thousands) '
Money Market and NOW Accou $2,256,393 $§— $— $—
FHLB 820,134 412,935 120,160 287,039 —
Federal Farm Credit Bond ' 528,553 33,701 83,623 411,229 —
FHLMC Bonds 434,202 52,600 331,137 40,899 9,566
U.S. Treasury (Bonds, Notes, Bills) 316,147 312,552 3,595 — —
NYS/NYC Municipal Bonds* 222,690 51,759 118,839 — 52,092
Fixed Repurchase Agreements 165,652 165,652 — — —
FNMA Bonds 112,656 44,254 68,402 — —
Sub-total $4,856,427 3,329,846 725,756 739,167 . 61,658
Less amounts classified as

cash equivalents (2,422,045) (2,422,045) — — —
Total investments $2,434,382 $907,801 $725,756 $739,167 $61,658

* Note: Primarily taxable VRDO instruments which can be put weekly.

Total investments recorded on the Statement of Net Position at October 31, 2019 of
$3,427,343,000 is made up the following: (a) investments recorded at fair value of



New York City Housing Development Corporation:

Notes to Schedule of Investments (continued)

$2,434,382,000, (b) certificates of deposits in the amount of $581,579,000 and (c) OTDs in the
amount of $411,382,000.

HDC categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets, Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs, and Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs.

‘The Corporation has the following recurring fair value measure s as of October 31, 2019:

éht

+ NYC/NYS Municipal securities of $222,690,000
(Level 1 inputs)

e'va using quoted market prices

» U.S. Treasury securities of $316,147,000
inputs (Level 2 inputs)

Money Market and NOW accouhts of i;2,256 93,000 are valued at cost. In addition to the
investments identified above&ds, o

. M
Interest Rate Risk: A means o

tion’s I

g its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising
tment Guidelines charge the Investment Committee with
“...determining appropti e, inv fnent instruments...based on...length of time funds are
available for investment purpoges...” among other factors. Thus, maturities are matched to the
Corporation’s liquidity needs."As part of the Corporation’s investment policies, it looks to invest
its bond and corporate related reserves in long-term securities that carry a higher yield, with the
intent to hold the investments to maturity.

Credit Risk: The Corporation’s investment guidelines and policies are designed to protect
principal by limiting credit risk. This is accomplished by making decisions based on a review of
ratings, collateral, and diversification requirements that vary according to the type of investment.

As of October 31, 2019, investments in Federal National Mortgage Association (“FNMA?” or
“Fannie Mae”), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC” or “Freddie Mac”),
Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) and Federal Farm Credit Bank (“FFCB”) were rated by
Standard & Poor’s and/or Moody’s Investors Service (Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, FHLB and
FFCB are collectively referred to as “Agency”). Standard & Poor’s ratings for long-term and
short-term were AA+ and A-1+, respectively. Moody’s long-term and short-term ratings were

9



New York City Housing Development Corporation

Notes to Schedule of Investments (continued)

Aaa and P-1, respectively. Investments in Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, FHLB and FFCB are
implicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government. They carry ratings equivalent to the credit ratings
for the U.S. government. Some investments were not rated by Fitch Ratings. Of the investments
that were rated by Fitch Ratings, they carried ratings of AAA for long-term and F1+ for short-
term. Money market accounts are either backed by collateral held by the provider or letters of
credit provided by third parties.

Ratings for NYS/NYC municipal bonds are usually the highest rated securities held at HDC. The
ratings by Standard & Poor’s ranged from AAA to A; Moody’s | fiised from Aaato Al and Fitch
Ratings Service ranged from AAA to AA. Money market, of) time deposits and repurchase

agreements in the form of OTDs are not rated; howevetr, the“‘/“{;’rowd are rated.
Custodial Credit Risk: For investments, custodial if risk is the riskthat in the event of the

ot i

investments or collateral securities that are in the po

securities are exposed to custodial credit rlsl§’%\
the name of the Corporation, and are held by ¢}

$ion of the outside party. Investment
are uninsured, are not registered in

of the Corporation.

As of October 31, 20] /open time deposity in the amount of $30,093,000, repurchase agreements
. ificates of deposits in the amount of $581,579,000 and
demand accounts in the ‘of $2,123,304,000 were collateralized by high quality
instruments such as U.S.{regsury Notes, U.S. Treasury Bills, and Agency investments and
letters of credits held by the Corporation’s agent in the name of the Corporation. A portion of

collateral supporting the demand accounts was in the form of FHLB letters of credit.

For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure the Corporation’s
deposit may not be returned to it. HDC bank deposits amounted to $39,967,000 at October 31,
2019, of which $39,147,000 was uninsured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(“FDIC”) and uncollateralized. Correspondingly, $31,121,000 was secured in frust accounts,
which are protected under state law and $8,846,000 was held in demand deposit accounts
(“DDA”). HDC limits its deposits to highly rated institutions, and such deposits are either in
trust accounts or partially insured through the FDIC. The maximum coverage of $250,000 is
available to depositors under the FDIC’s general deposit insurance rules. All of the
Corporation’s funds held in the DDA are subject to this provision.

10



New York City Housing Development Corporation

Notes to Schedule of Investments (continued) |

Concentration of Credit Risk: The Corporation follows its annually adopted investment
guidelines in accordance with concentration limits and reviews its credit concentration
‘monthly. The Corporation’s Credit Risk unit monitors concentration risk amongst issuers and
reports regularly to the Members of the Corporation’s Audit Committee. '

The following table shows issuers that represent 5% or more of the total investments at October 31,
2019 (dollars in thousands):

£ Dollar
Issuer §5. Amount Percentage
NY Community Bank (*) ~\{g§,028 16.55%
Signature Bank (*) 7322636 12.52
FHLB 596,921 10.20
Customers Bank (*) 483,465 8.27
FHLMC 409,061 6.99

Sterling National Bank (*) 311,294 532
FFCB 306,555 524
Toronto-Dominion Bank (*) 292,217 5.00

*Note: Either fully or partially covere 7 urities‘;éz d/or FHLB letter of credit collateral held by the Corporation.
4 »
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NEW YORK CITY HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
INVESTMENT GUIDELINES

Originally Adopted August 14, 1984
Approved September 26, 2019

I. Purpose

These “Investment Guidelines” (also referred to as the “Guidelines”) are adopted
pursuant to Section 2925 of the Public Authorities Law and, after adoption by the
Members, shall be annually reviewed and approved by the Corporation. These
Investment Guidelines shall be effective with respect to all investments entered into by
the Corporation after the date of their adoption.

1. Investment Committee

Investments of the Corporation shall be made and monitored by the
Corporation's Investment Committee (the “Committee”) under the chairmanship of the
Executive Vice President. In the absence of the Executive Vice President, the Senior
Vice President of Debt Issuance and Finance shall chair the Committee. The
Committee’s members shall also include the Treasurer, the Controller, the Vice
President for Cash Management and the Assistant Vice President for Cash
Management or Investment Analyst. No person shall serve on the Committee who has
not completed college level or higher courses in finance or two or more years of
professional experience in investment activities. The Vice President of Cash
Management shall be responsible for daily supervision of investment activities.

The Committee shall meet on a regular basis to determine funds available for
investment and the appropriate Investment Instruments (as hereinafter defined) for
those funds based on market conditions, length of time the funds are available for
investment purposes, investment restrictions imposed by related bond or note
resolutions, and the diversification of the Corporation’s investment portfolio. Any funds
derived from the issuance of bonds will be invested pursuant to the related bond
resolution, as approved by the Members. In addition, the Committee shall determine
the Corporation’s periodic need for funds, based on anticipated construction advances,
dates of debt service payments on the Corporation’s obligations, and other financial
requirements.

1l. Approved Investment Instruments

1. Any bonds, debentures, notes, participation certificates or other similar
obligations under consideration for investment will be rated in one of the two highest
rating categories of a nationally recognized rating service. Subject to the provisions of
any bond or note resolution, the Committee may use only the following Investment
Instruments to invest the funds of the Corporation or funds held by the Corporation:



direct obligations of or obligations guaranteed by the United States.

bonds, debentures, notes, participation certificates or other similar -
obligations issued by any one or combination of any of the
following:

Government National Mortgage Association, Federal Land Banks,
Federal Home Loan Banks, Federal Intermediate Credit Banks,
Federal Farm Credit System Banks Consolidated Obligations,
Banks for Cooperatives, Tennessee Valley Authority, Washington
Metropolitan Area Transportation Authority, United States Postal
Service, Farmers’ Home Administration and Export-Import Bank of
the United States.

bonds, debentures, notes, participation certificates or other similar
obligations issued by any federal agency and backed by the full-
faith and credit of the United States.

any other obligations of the United States or any federal agencies
which may be purchased by New York State Savings Banks.

participation certificates of the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation and mortgage-backed securities of the Federal
National Mortgage Association rated in the highest rating category
of a nationally recognized rating service.

short-term corporate obligations, known as Commercial Paper, with
a maturity of up to ninety days which are issued by corporations
that are deemed by a nationally recognized rating service to be in
the highest short-term rating category of such rating service.
Concentration limits: not to exceed 60% of portfolio, or $50
million with any one issuer.

deposits in interest-bearing time or demand deposits, certificates of
deposit or other similar banking arrangements (i) secured by any of
the obligations described in A through D above, or (ii) fully insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or (i) made with
banking institutions, or their parents which either (a) have
unsecured debt rated in one of the two highest rating categories of
a nationally recognized rating service or (b) are deemed by a
nationally recognized rating service to be an institution rated in one
of the two highest rating categories of such rating service. ‘
Concentration limits: not to exceed 60% of portfolio
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H.  obligations of the City and State of New York.
l. obligations of the New York City Municipal Water Finance Authority.

J. obligations, the principal ‘and interest of which, are guaranteed by
the City or State of New York.

K. obligations in which the Comptroller of the State of New York is
authorized to invest in as specified in section ninety-eight of the
State Finance Law. -

2. Except for Investment Instruments in book-entry form, Investment
Instruments above shall be physically delivered for retention by the Corporation or its
agent. Any agent or custodian for the Corporation shall maintain such Investment
Instruments in a segregated account and shall provide such confirmations of Investment
Instruments and other information as may be required by the Corporation in order to
supervise the Investment Instruments. In the case of book-entry Investment
Instruments, the Corporation shall take such actions as may be necessary to obtain title
or a perfected security interest in such Investment Instruments.

3.  Repurchase Agreements

The Corporation may enter into repurchase agreements for the Investment
Instruments described in Secs. Il 1. A to D above, pursuant to the delivery
requirements of Sec. Il 2. The Investment Instruments shall be held by an agent of the
Corporation, such agent shall not be an agent, with respect to the repurchase
transaction, of the party with whom the Corporation has entered into the repurchase
agreement and the agent shall not assert any claims against the Investment
Instruments, based on claims. it may have against said party.
Concentration limits: not to exceed 50% of portfolio.

A. Short Term Fixed Repurchase Agreements

All Short Term Fixed Repurchase Agreements (those repurchase
agreements which do not exceed thirty-four days and require repurchase
on a predetermined date) must be made with a financial institution
meeting the qualifications of Sec. V.A. (i) hereof. To the maximum
extent possible, consistent with market practice, such Short Term Fixed
Repurchase Agreements shall be pursuant to a written master agreement
and, in the event no written agreement is feasible, shall be made,
monitored and secured in a manner sufficient to protect the Corporation’s
interests.

The terms of such Short Term Fixed Repurchase Agreement must
permit the Corporation to sell Investment Instruments if the other party to
such agreement shall fail to promptly repurchase the Investment

-3



IV.

Instrument on the day required by the repurchase agreement. To assure
such repurchase, the agreement shall require that there be maintained on
an ongoing basis in such account Investment Instruments having a
market value at least equal to 101% of the moneys held under overnight
repurchase agreements and 102% of the moneys held under longer term
repurchase agreements, which will be marked to market daily by the
Corporation. At the option of the Corporation, repurchase agreements
with the same party may be combined for the purpose of valuating the
Investment Instruments to market.

B. Long Term Repurchase Agreements-

All funds invested for more than thirty-four days through flexible or
fixed repurchase agreements (“Long Term Repurchase Agreements”)
shall be pursuant to written agreements incorporating the provisions
required above except that the Investment Instruments held shall be
marked to market according to the negotiated terms of each agreement
but in no event less than monthly. In'addition, any institution or its parent
with whom the Corporation enters into a Long Term Repurchase
Agreement and which (a) does not have unsecured debt rated in one of
the three highest rating categories of a nationally recognized rating service
or (b) is not deemed by a nationally recognized rating service to be an
institution rated in one of the three highest rating categories of such rating
service, shall be required to provide Investment Instruments with a market
value at least equal to 103% of the moneys held under the repurchase
agreement, which Investment Instruments will be marked to market at
least weekly. Additional Investment Instruments must be provided when
the market value falls below 103% of money held under these Long Term
Repurchase Agreements.

Diversification

The Committee, in making its investment decisions based on these guidelines,
shall seek to diversify both its investment holdings and the parties with whom it deals in

making investment decisions.

Subject to the provisions of these Guidelines, the limitations set on the total
percentage of the portfolio invested with any one party may be lower than the
maximums permitted under the Guidelines and will be based on the financial review
indicated in section V. C'(below), with a maximum determined by the Committee under

advisement from the Corporation’s Credit Risk department.

The Corporation shall seek at least three bids, whenever feasible, in selecting
offers for repurchase agreements, government securities or certificates of deposit. In
awarding investment contracts, diversification of forms of Investment Instruments and
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trading partners shall be a major consideration.

V. Qualifications

A. Pursuant to the Iimitatiohs established in the Investment
Guidelines, the Corporation shall enter into investment transactions
only with the following entities: '

(i)  Any member bank of the Federal Reserve System;

(i) Any bank or trust company organized under the laws of any
state or any national banking association;

@iy  any government bond dealer currently listed on the List of
the Government Securities Dealers Reporting to the Market
Reports Division of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York,
or other substantial financial institution which itself or its
parent either (a) has unsecured debt rated in one of the
three highest rating categories of a nationally recognized
rating service or (b) is deemed by a nationally recognized
rating service to be an institution rated in one of the three
highest rating categories of such rating service; :

(iv).  with regard to the purchasing and/or sale of government and
municipal securities, other than repurchase agreements, any
dealer that provides for simultaneous security transactions
and payments. :

B. Any agent or custodian of Investment Instruments for the
Corporation must be a bank or trust company organized under the
laws of any state or a national banking association. Any custodian
of Investment Instruments for the Corporation will be rated in an
investment grade category of a nationally recognized rating service.

C. The Credit Risk Department of the Corporation shall review the
financial statements, level of capitalization, ratio of repurchase
transactions to capitalization (for parties to repurchase
agreements), its rating, and financial situation of any new bank,
broker, securities dealer, investment advisor or agent and shall
review such party’s financial status periodically thereafter.

VI. Reporting

The Committee shall prepare a quarterly report for the Members on the
investment activities of the Corporation and in addition shall prepare an annual report
which shall include these Investment Guidelines, any amendments, an explanation of
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the guidelines and amendments, the results of the annual independent audit, the
investment income record of the Corporation and a list of fees paid for investment
services. This annual report, which may incorporate parts of the Corporation’s annual
report, shall be submitted to the Mayor, the Comptroller of the City of New York and the
New York State Department of Audit and Control, and shall be available to the public
upon reasonable request. ‘
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As of December 31, 2019
(UNAUDITED)
Insured :
# Projects . 256
‘[# Units 32,830
Insured Amount 287,145,627
Mortgage Amount 1,341,776,270
Committed
# Projects . 55 " | Average Loan Ouistanding: 5,241,314
# Units 10,931 Average Insured Amount: 1,121,663
Insured Amount - 141,433,019 Average HDC Loan: 6,218,742
Mortgage Amount 700,297,461 Average HDC Insured Amount: 1,275,449
. Pipeline
- [# Projects 21
# Units 4,316
Tusured Amount 78,077,171
Mortgage Amount " 390,385,856
By Borough: .
. % Total Current Insured - Mortgage|
Boro # Projects Units: Current Insured Amount| " Amount Qutstanding
BRONX - 127 12,765 140,033,348] 48.8%]| 680,749,593
BROOKLYN 66 12,159 70,347,353 24.5% 314,172,450
MANHATTAN 47 "~ 5357 51,979,418 18.1% 222,926,687
QUEENS 14 . 2,352 22,767,289 7.9% 113,836,445
STATENTISLAND 2 197 2,018,219 0.7% 10,091,095
Grand Total 256 32,830 287,145,627 100.0% 1,341,776,270
By Lender: .
. . ' . | % Total Cuxrent Insured Mortgage
Lendex # Projects| . Units Current Insured Amount "Amount Qutstanding
CPC - 43 1,061 15,475,050 54% 17,184,319
HDC . 213 31,769 271,670,578] - 94.,6% 1,324,591,951
Grand Total 256 32,830 287,145,627| - - 100.0% 1,341,776,270
‘Top 10 Exposuyes: .
- - . .. Mortgage
Property # Units Lender Tnsured Amount| % Total REMIC Insured|- Outstanding
47th Ave Big Six 983 HDC 7,826,646 2.73%} . 39,133,232
11 Broadway. 160 HDC 5,915,611 2.06%]. 29,578,057
St. Ann's Terrace ABH : 166 upc ‘4,845,464 | . 1.69% 24,227,319
NYCHA. Public Housing Preservahon TLLC 5,674 . HDC| .. 4,382,593 1.53% 21,912,965]
Monris Court 201 HDC 4,169,372 1.45% 20,846,860
1St Ann's Terrace CDE | 314 HDC 3,941,330 1.37% 19,706,650
Bradford 105 " HDC 3,776,862 1.32% -18,884,308
TMLD Citywidé 662| - HDCY” 3,707,632 1.29% 18,538,159
The Ciena Hobbs Court 340 HDC . 3,488,628] 1.21% 17,443,139
Gateway Elton Il 287 HDC 3,485,298 1.21% 17,426,488
Grand Total 8,892 45,539,436 15.86% 227,697,178
Reserves . :
[Total Reserves as of Dec 31; 2019 | 145,236,087
Restricted Committed (20%) | . 28,286,604
. New REMIC (20%) |~ 57,429,125
ARestricted Total . ' 85,715,729 Restricted Reserves
Pipeline IPipeline (20%) 15,615,434| -|HDC ' 54,334,116
Pipeline Total .o 15,615,434 ! Committed (FIDC) 27,943,222
Total Restricted + Pipeline 101,331,164 Committed (CPC) 343,382
) Other (CPC) 3,095,010
Available Reserves 43,904,923 TOTAL ‘85,715,729
Potential Insured 219,524,616
Potential Mortgage Amount '1,097,623,082
Risk/Capital (nsured) 1.98
Risk/Capital (nsured + Commltted) 2.95
Risk/Capital (Insurgd + Committed + Pipeline) 3.49
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY Rl}?:;\(/[? “°
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HOUSING ASSISTANCE CORPORATION

FUND BALANGE AND EARNINGS FROM 1/01/19 TO 12/31/19

Cash
Investment (1)
Repo Agreement
MM SIGNATURE

. Unrealized Gains & Losses as of Dec 31, 2019
Cash & Investments Balances

Mortgage Loans
HAC City Capital Loan-BEC Continuum Resyndication (002510)
Stuyvesant Town-Peter Cooper Village (612140)
Total Mortgage Loan Receivable Balances

Interest Receivable

HAC City Capital Loan-BEC Continuum Resyndication (002510)
: Total Mortgage Interest Receivables

Due to/from Other Program

HAC City Capital Loan-BEC Continuum Resyndication (002510)
Total Due to/from Other Program

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Payable to New York City as of Dec 31, 2018 (1)
Investment Earned Jan thru Dec 2019
TAC Payments Jan thru Dec 2019

Yedrly Mortgage Loan Evaporating-Stuyvesant Town-Peter Cooper Village(143,235,666.00/20)
Payable to New York City as of Dec 31, 2019

Restricted investment Earnings (Fair Market Value as of Dec 30, 2019)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

120.39
99,157.57
9,332,479.39
0.00
9,431,757.35
~318,391.58
114,588,532.80 :
114,906,924.38
703.12
703.12
(10,152.83)
(10,152.83)
124,329,232.02
133,770,333.66
239,572.66
(2,518,891.00)
(7,161,783.30)
124,329,232.02
0.00°

124,329,232.02




HOUSING ASSISTANGE CORPORATION
FUND BALANCE AND EARNINGS FROM 1/01/19 TO 12/31/18

Income/Earning Analysis

Investment Earned Jan thru Dec 2019 239,572.66
. Total Earnings Distributed to Due to NYC 239,572.66

TAC Payments to Yorkville Jan thru Dec 2019 (2,518,891.00)
. Total TAC Payment Distributed to Due to NYC (2,518,891.00)
' Net Ghanges Due to NYC (2,279,318.34)

(1) Proceed of the HAC M-Loans sale (Oct-2017) will be used for TAC payments.

t**

**Please note that this report has been revised to réﬂect HDC's financial statement forma
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As of September 30, 2019
(UNAUDITED)
Insured :
# Projects 254
# Units 32,684
Insured Amount 283,835,195
Mortgage Amount 1,327,968,048
Committed
# Projects 53 Average Loan Qutstanding: 5,228,221
# Units 10,198 Average Insured Amount: 1,117,461
Insured Amount 132,734,924 Average HDC Loan: 6,215,254
Mortgage Amount 653,141,160 Average HDC Insured Amount: 1,275,253
Pipeline
# Projects 25
# Units 5,015
Insured Amount 85,518,508
Mortgage Amount 427,592,542
By Borough:
. % Total Current Insured Mortgage
Boro # Projects Units Current Insured Amount Amount Qutstanding
BRONX 126 12,685 139,283,373 49.1% 676,692,655
BROOKLYN ] 66 12,147 69,409,493 24.5% 312,810,514
MANHATTAN 46 5,303 50,246,552 17.7% 213,985,992
QUEENS 14 2,352 22,867,327 8.1% 114,336,636
STATEN ISLAND 2 197 2,028,450 0.7% 10,142,251
Grand Total 254 32,684 283,835,195 100.0% 1,327,968,048
By Lender: :
% Total Current Insured Mortgage
Lender # Projects Units Current Insured Amount Amount QOutstanding
CPC ) 43 1,049 14,756,810 52% 16,549,465
HDC 211 31,635 269,078,385 94.8% 1,311,418,583
Grand Total 254 32,684 283,835,195 100.0% 1,327,968,048
Mortgage!
Property # Units Lender Insured Amountj % Total REMIC Insured Qutstanding
47th Ave Big Six 983 HDC 7,848,391 2.71% 39,241,954
11 Broadway 160 HDC 5,936,223 2.09% 29,681,115
St. Ann's Terrace ABH 166 HDC 4,858,600 1,71% 24,292,999
NYCHA Public Housing Preservation Il LLC 5,674 HDC 4,409,955 1.55%] 22,049,773
Morris Court 201 HDC 4,187,000 1.48% 20,934,999
St. Ann's Terrace CDE 314 HDC 3,955,401 1.39% 19,771,006
Bradford 105 HDC 3,795,348 1.34% 18,976,738
LMLD Citywide 662 HDC 3,726,460 1.31% 18,632,300
The Ciena Hobbs Court 340 HDC 3,505,112 1.23% 17,525,558
Gateway Elton III 287 HDC 3,498,134 1.23% 17,490,671
Grand Total 8,892 45,720,623 16.11% 228,603,114
Reserves
rTotal Reserves as of Sep 30,2019 | 143,784,785
Restricted Committed (20%6) 26,546,985
New REMIC (20%) 56,767,039
Restricted Total 83,314,024 Restricted Reseryes
Pipeline IPipeline (20%) 17,103,702 HDC 53,815,677
Pipeline Total 17,103,702 Committed (HDC) 26,020,312
Total Restricted + Pipeline 100,417,725 Committed (CPC) 526,673
Other (CPC) 2,951,362
Available Reserves 43,367,060 TOTAL 83,314,024
Potential Insured 216,835,298
Potential Mortgage Amount 1,084,176,491
Risk/Capital (Insured) 1.97
Risk/Capital (Insured -+ Committed) 2.90
Risk/Capital (Insured + Committed + Pipeline) 3.49
NYC WERIDENTIAL

FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY
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HOUSING ASSISTANGE CORPORATION

FUND BALANCE AND EARNINGS FROM 1/01/19 TO 9/30/19

Assets:
Cash
investment (1)

Repo Agreement
MM SIGNATURE .
Unrealized Gains & Losses as of Sep 30, 2019
Cash & Investments Balances

Mortgage Loans
HAG City Capltal Loan-BEC Continuum Resyndication (002510)

Stuyvesant Town-Peter Cooper Village (612140)
Total Mortgage Loan Recelvable Balances

Interest Receivable

HAG, City Capital Loan-BEC Continuum Resyndication (002510)
Total Mortgage Interest Receivables

Due to/from Other Program

HAC City Capital Loan-BEC Continuum Resyndication (002510)
Total Due to/from Other Program

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

R e e —

Payable to New York City as of Dec 31, 2018 (1)

Investment Earned Jan thru Sep 2019

TAC Payments Jan thru Sep 2019

Yearly Mortgage Loan Evaporating-Stuyvesant Town-Peter Cooper Village(143,235,666.00/20)
Payable to New York City as of Sep 30, 2018

Restricted Investment Earnings (Fair Market Value as of Sep 30, 2019)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

173.10
516,438.64
9,494,575.73
0.00
10,011,187.47
316,291.52
121,750,316.10
122,066,607.62
698.48
698.48
(8,056.45)
(8,056.45)
132,070,43712
133,770,333.66
191,541.46
(1,891,438.00)
0.00
132,070,437.12
0.00

132,070,437.12



HOUSING ASSISTANCE CORPORATION
FUND BALANGE AND EARNINGS FROM 1/01/19 TO 9/30/19

income/Earning Analysis

Investment Earned Jan thru Sep 2019 191,533.37
Total Earnings Distributed to Due to NYC 191,5633.37

TAC Payments to Yorkvilie Jan thru Sep 2019 (1,891,438.00)
Total TAC Payment Distributed to Due to NYC (1,891,438.00)
Net Changes Due to NYC (1,699,904.63)

(1) Proceed of the HAC M-Loans sale (Oct-2017) will be used for TAC payments.

t**

+*Please note that this report has been revised to reflect HDC's financial statement forma
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY '

FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

As of June 30, 2019
(UNAUDITED)

Insured

# Projects 242

# Units 30,768

Insured Amount 269,402,450
Mortgage Amount 1,252,658,053

Committed
# Projects 65 Average Loan Ouistanding: 5,176,273

# Units - 11,490 Average Insured Amount: 1,113,233
Tnsured Amount 141,485,222 Average HDC Loan Outstanding: 6,238,757
Mortgage Amount 696,892,653 Average HDC Insured Amount: 1,282,287

" Pipeline

# Projects 17

# Units 3,865
Insured Amount 48,818,821
Mortgage Amount 244,094,106
By Borough:

% Total Current Jnsured :
Boro # Projects Units, Current Jnsured Amount Amount]  Mortgage Outstanding
BRONX 119 11,2614 127,681,291 47.4% 616,185,916
BROOKLYN 65 12,092 69,164,884 25.7% 311,216,884
MANHATTAN 45 5,141 50,208,709 18.6% 213,517,425
QUEENS 11 2,077 20,309,033 7.5% 101,545,166
STATEN ISLAND 2 197 . 2,038,533 0.8% 10,192,663
Grand Total 242 30,768 269,402,450 100.0% 1,252,658,053
By Lender:
: % Total Current Insured o

Lender # Projects Units Current Insured Amount ) . Amount| Mortgage Outstanding|
CPC 44 '1,080 15,509,659 5.8% 17,384,208
HDC 198 29,688 253,892,791 94.2% 1,235,273,845
Grand Total 242 30,768 269,402,450 100.0% 1,252,658,053
Top 10 Exposures:

Property # Units Lender Yosured Amount] . % Total REMIC Insured Mortgage Quistanding
47th Ave Big Six 983 HDC 7,869,843 2.92% 39,349,213
11 Broadway 160 jz10]6] 5,956,554 221% 29,782,769
St. Ann's Terrace ABH 166 HDC 4,871,534 1.81% 24,357,672
NYCHA Public Housing Preservation ILLC 5,674 HDC 4,436,970 1.65% 22,184,852
Morris Court 201]. HDC 4,204,387 1.56% 21,021,937
St, Ann's Terrace CDE 314 HDC 3,969,263 147% 19,846,317
Bradford 105 ' _HDC 3,813,582 1.42% 19,067,909
TMLD Citywide 662 HDC 3,745,043 1.39% 18,725,217
The Ciena Hobbs Court 340 HDC 3,521,351 131% 17,606,753
Gateway Elton I 287 HDC 3,510,788 1.30% 17,553,940
Grand Total 8,892 ) 45,899,316/ 17.04% 229,496,578
Reserves
[Total Reserves as of Jun 30, 2019 | 141,958,112}

Restricted Committed (20%) 28,297,044

New REMIC (20%) 53,880,490

Restricted Total 82,177,534 Restricted Reserves

Pipeline ‘Pipeline (20%) 9,763,764 HDC 50,778,558
Pipeline Total 9,763,764 Committed (HIDC) 27,770,371

Total Restricted + Pipeline 91,941,299 . |Committed (CPC) 526,673

Other (CPC) 3,101,932

Available Reserves 50,016,813 TOTAL 82,177,534

Potential Insured 250,084,065 :

Potential Mortgage Amount 1,250,420,327

Risk/Capital (Insured) 1.90

Risk/Capital (Insured -+ Committed) 2.89

Risk/Capital (Tnsured + Committed + Pipeline) 3.24

RESIDEN'TIAL

—t = . MORTGAGE
REMIC e
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HOUSING ASSISTANCE CORPORATION

FUND BALANCE AND EARNINGS FROM 1/01/19 TO 6/30/19

Assets:

Cash
Investment (1)
Repo Agreement
MM SIGNATURE

Unrealized Gains & Losses as of Jun 30, 2019
Cash & Investments Balances

Mortgage L.oans
HAC City Capital Loan-BEC Continuum Resyndication (002510)

Stuyvesant Town-Peter Cooper Village (612140)
Total Mortgage Loan Receivable Balances

Interest Receivable

HAC City Gapital Loan-BEC Continuum Resyndication (002510)
Total Mortgage Interest Receivables

Due to/from Other Program

HAC City Capital Loan-BEC Continuum Resyndication (002510)
Total Due to/from Other Program

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

e S

Payable to New York City as of Dec 31, 2018 (1)

Investment Earned Jan thru Jun 2019

TAC Payments Jan thru Jun 2019

Yearly Mortgage Loan Evaporating-Stuyvesant Town-Peter Cooper Village(143,235,666.00/20)
Payable to New York City as of Jun 30, 2019

Resfcricted Investment Earnings (Fair Market Value as of Jun 30, 2019)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

267.66

98,274.90
10,477,663.45°
0.00

10,576,106.01

314,205.30
121,750,316.10

122,064,521.40

693.87
693.87
(5,970.99)
(5,970.99)
132,635,350.29
133,770,333.66
182,128.63
(1,267,112.00)
0.00
132,635,350.29
0.00
132,635,350.29




HOUSING ASSISTANCE CORPORATION
FUND BALANCE AND EARNINGS FROM 1/01/18 TO 6/30/18

Income/Earning Analysis

132,120.54

Investment Earned Jan thru Jun 2018
Total Earnings Distributed to Due to NYC

TAC Payments to Yorkville Jan thru Jun 2019 (1,267,112.00)

Total TAC Payment Distributed to Due to NYC

Net Changes Due to NYC

132,120.54

(1,267,112.00)

(1,134,991.46)

' (1) Proceed of the HAC M-Loans sale (Oct-2017) will be used for TAC payments.

**plaase note that this report has been revised to reflect HDC's financial statement format**
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As of March 31, 2019
(UNAUDITED)
Insured
I# Projects 241
# Units 30,633
Insured Amount 267,249,810
Mortgage Amount 1,240,917,872
Committed
# Projects 66 . |Average Loan Outstanding: 5,149,037
# Units 11,625 Average Insured Amount: 1,108,920
Insured Amount 143,025,428 Average HDC Loan Outstanding: 6,209,352
Mortgage Amount 704,593,678 Average EDC Insured Amount: 1,276,799
Pipeline
# Projects 15
# Units 3,551
Insured Amount 43,562,711
" [Mortgage Amount 217,813,553
" By Borgugh:
. . % Total Current Insured .
Boro # Projects Units Current Insured Amount : Amount] Mortgage Quistanding
BRONX 119 11261 127,099,663 47.6% . 612,940,625
BROOKLYN 64 11957 68,052,070 25.5% 305,288,521
MANHATTAN 45 5141 49,653,251 18.5% 210,464,595
QUEENS 11 2077 20,396,358 7.6% 101,981,789
STATEN ISLAND 2 197 2,048,468 0.8% 10,242,342
Grand Total 241 30,633 267,249,810 100.0% 1,240,917,872
By Lender:
% Total Current Xnsured
Lender # Projects " Units Current Insured Amount Amount| Mortgage Quistanding
CPC 44 1,080 15,720,502 5.9%| . 17,675,480
HDC 197 29,553 251,529,308 94.1% 1,223,242,392
Grand Total 241 30,633 267,249,810 100.0% 1,240,917,872
Top 10 Exposures: -
Property : #Units| ~ Lender Insured Amount % Total REMIC Insured| Mortgage Qutstanding
47th Ave Big Six 983 HDC 7,891,006 2.95% 39,455,029
11 Broadway 160 HDC 5,976,608 2.24% 29,883,038
St. Ann's Terrace ABH . 166 HDC 4,884.270 1.83% 24,421,352
NYCHA Public Housing Preservation I LLC 5,674 j210,6] 4,463,645 1.67% 22,318,223
Morris Court ] 201 HDC 4,221,538 - 1.58% 21,107,690
St. Ann's Terrace CDE 314 HDC 3,982,920 1.49% 19,914,599
Bradford 105 HDC 3,831,567 1.43% 19,157,837
LMLD Citywide 662 HDC 3,763,385 1.41% 18,816,925
‘The Ciena Hobbs Court 340 HDC 3,537,348 1.32% 17,686,741
Gateway Elton Tl 287 .HDC 3,523,262 1.32% 17,616,308
Grand Total 8,892 46,075,549 17.24% 230,377,743
Reserves
Total Reserves. | 140,117,544
Restricted Committed (20%) | 28,605,086
New REMIC (20%) | 53,449,962
Restricted Total 82,055,048 Restricted Reserves
Pipeline |Pipeline (20%) 8,712,542 HDC 50,305,862
Pipeline Total 8,712,542 Committed (HDC) 28,078,413
Total Restricted + Pipeline 90,767,590 Committed (CPC) 526,673
. Other (CPC) 3,144,100
Available Reserves 49,349,955 TOTAL . 82,055,048
Potential Insured 246,749,773 . .
Potential Mortgage Amount 1,233,748,866
Risk/Capital (Insured) . 1.91
Risk/Capital (Insured + Committed) 2.93
Risk/Capital (Insured + Committed -+ Pipeline) 3.24
_NYC _ raia:
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY REMIC Ravmscs,



HOUSING ASSISTANCE CORPORATION

FUND BALANGCE AND EARNINGS FROM 1/01/19 TO 331119

Assets:

Cash
Investment (1)
Repo Agreement
MM SIGNATURE

Unrealized Gains & Losses as of Mar 31, 2019
Cash & Investments Balances

Mortgage Loans
HAC City Capital Loan-BEC Continuum Resyndication (002510)

Stuyvesant Town-Peter Cooper Village (612140)
: Total Mortgage Loan Receivable Balances

Interest Receivable

HAC City Capital Loan-BEC Continuum Resyndication (002510)
Total Mortgage Interest Receivables

Due to/from Other Program

HAC City Capital Loan-BEC Continuum Resyndication (002510)
Total Due to/from Other Program

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Payable to New York City as of Dec 31, 2018 (1)

Investment Earned Jan thru Mar 2019
TAC Payments
Yearly Mortgage Loan Evaporating-Stuyvesant Town-Peter Cooper Village(143,235,666.00/20)
: Payable to New York City as of Mar 31, 2019

Restricted Investment Earnings (Fair Market Value as of Mar 31, 2019)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

454.94
126,699.73
11,046,085.00
0.00
11,173,239.67
283,509.96
121,750,316.10
122,033,916.06
618.18
618.18
(3,965.22)
(3,965.22)
133,203,808.69
133,770,333.66
67,370.03
(633,895.00)
0.00
133,203,808.69
0.00
133,203,808.69




e

HOUSING ASSISTANCE CORPORATION
FUND BALANCE AND EARNINGS FROM 1/01/19 TO 3/31/19

Income/Earning Analysis

Investment Earned Jan thru Mar 2019 - 67,361.94
Total Earnings Distributed to Due to NYC 67,361.94
TAC Payments to Yorkville Jan thru Mar 2019 (633,895.00) .
Total TAC Payment Distributed to Due to NYC {633,895.00)
Net Changes Due to NYC (566,533.08)

(1) Primarily the mortgage loans (listed above as "MORTGAGE LOANS"), the accrued interest on these mortgage loans
and fund held to provide for TAC payments.

t**

**Plaase note that this report has been revised to reflect HDC's financial statement forma
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PRI

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
As of December 31, 2018

(UNAUDITED)
Insured
# Projects ) 235
# Units 29,132
Insured Amount 258,197,176
Mortgage Amount 1,192,999,903
Committed
# Projécts 69, Average Loan Outstanding: 5,076,595
# Units i 11,538 Average Insured Amount: 1,098,711
Insured Amount 136,498,106 Average HDC Loan Outstanding: 6,182,183
Mortgage Amount 671,957,069 Average HDC Insured Amount: 1,272,874
21
5,333
Insured Amount 61,651,677
Mortgage Amount 308,258,383
By Borough:
% Total Current|
Boro # Proiectsl\ Units| Current Insured Amount Insured Amount| Mortgage Outstanding
BRONX. - 114 10,763 119,687,308 46.4% 573,853,959
BROOKLYN 63 11,854 68,330,154 26.5% 306,320,824
MANHATTAN 45 4,241 47,636,636 18.4% 200,109,729
QUEENS 11 © 2,077 20,484,818 7.9% 102,424,090
STATEN ISLAND 2 197 2,058,260 0.8% 10,291,300
Grand Total 235 29,132 258,197,176 100.0% 1,192,999,903
ByLender:
: % Total Current
Lender # ProiectsL Units Current Insured Amount Insured Amount Mortgage Outstanding
CPC 45 1,164 16,351,112  63% 18,385,079
HDC 190 27,568 241,846,064 93.7%] . 1,174,614,824
Grand Total ) ’ 235 29,132 258,197,176 100,0% 1,192,999,903
‘Top 10 Exposures: .
‘Property # Units Lender Insured Amount|% Total REMIC Insured Mortgage Qutstanding|
47th Ave Big Six (59-40,55 47th A 69-10 Qus BL,60 -10 47th A 983 HDC 7,911,884 3.06% 39,559,422
11 Broadway 160 HDC 5,996,388 2.32% 29,981,941
NYCHA Public Housing Preservation Il LLC ‘ 5,674 HDC . 5,115,536 1.98% 25,577,679
St. Ann's Terrace ABH 166 HDC| 4,896,811 1.90% . 24,484,056
Morris Court 201 HDC 4,238,455 1.64% ) 21,192,275
St. Ann's Terrace CDE 314 HDC 3,996,373 1.55% 19,981,866
Bradford 105 HDC 3,849,308 1.49% 19,246,540
LMLD Citywide 662 HDC 3,781,488 1.46% 18,907,440
The Ciena Hobbs Court (305-319'E 102 §t/304-320 E 103 St/3 340 HDC 3,553,108 1.38% 17,765,542
Gateway Elton III : 287 HDC 3,535,557 1.37% 17,671,787
Grand Total 8,892 46,874,910 18,15% 234,374,548
Reserves
[Total Reserves as of Dec 31, 2018 ] 128,313,694
Restricted : Committed (20%) 27,299,621 Restricted Reserves
New REMIC (20%) 51,639,435 HDC 48,369,213
Restricted Total 78,939,056 Committed (HDC) 26,‘772,948
Pipeline IPipeline (20%) 12,330,335 Committed (CPC) 526,673
Pipeline Total 12,330,335 Other (CPC) 3,270,222
Total Restricted + Pipeline 91,269,392 TOTAL 78,939,056
Available Reserves 37,044,302
|Potential Insured 185,221,511
Potential Mortgage Amount 926,107,556
Risk/Capital (Insured) 2.01
Risk/Capital (Jnsured + Committed) 3,08
Risk/Capital (Insured + Committed + Pipeline) 3.56

FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY



HOUSING ASSISTANCE CORPORATION

FUND BALANCE AND EARNINGS FROM 1/01/18 TO 12/31/18

Assets:

Cash
Investment (1)
Repo Agreement
MM SIGNATURE

Unrealized Gains & Losses as of Dec 31, 2018 (1)
Cash & Investments Balances

Mortgage Loans
HAC City Capital Loan-BEC Continuum Resyndication (002510)

Stuyvesant Town-Peter Cooper Village (612140)
Total Mortgage Loan Receivable Balances

Interest Receivable

HAC City Capital Loan-BEC Continuum Resyndication (002510)
Total Mortgage Interest Receivables

Due to/from Other Program

HAC City Capital Loan-BEC Continuum Resyndication (002510)
Total Due to/from Other Program

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Payable to New York City as of Dec 31, 2017 (2)

Investment Earned Jan thru Dec 2018
TAC Payments’ .
Yearly Mortgage Loan Evaporating-Stuyvesant Town-Peter Cooper Village(143,235,666.00/20)

Close out Mort Int Rec CPC 1 to Due to NYC -
- Payable to New York City as of Dec 31, 2018

Restricted Investment Earnings (Fair Market Value as of Dec 31, 2018)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

85.70

375,992.71
11,385,775.39
0.00

14,761,853.80

259,859.65
121,750,316.10

122,010,1756.75

564.84
564.84

(2,252.64)
(2,252.64)

133,770,341.75

143,136,074.79

233,745.33
(2,582,922.00)
(7,161,783.30)
145:226.93
133,770,341.75

0.00

133,770,341.75




HOUSING ASSISTANCE CORPORATION
FUND BALANCE AND EARNINGS FROM 1/01/18 TO 12/31/18

Income/Earning Analysis

investment Earned Jan thru Dec 2018 ’ 233,737.24
Total Earnings Distributed to Due to NYC 233,737.24

TAC Payments to Yorkville Jan thru Dec 2018 (2,582,922.00)
Total TAC Payment Distributed to Due to NYC (2,582,922.00)
Net Changes Due to NYC (2,349,184.76)

(1) This is based on the Fair Market Value of the Treasury Strips and is considered Restricted Funds.
(2) Primarily the mortgage loans (listed above as "MORTGAGE LOANS"), the accrued interest on these mortgage loans
and fund held to provide for TAC payments.

**Plaase note that this report has been revised to reflect HDC's financial statement format**



Report of Independent Auditors

Management and the Members of the
New York City Housing Development Corporation

Report on the Financial Statéments

We have audited the éccompanying financial stat e New York City Housing
Development Corporation (the “Corporation”), a City of New York, as of
and for the year ended October 31, 2019, and hancial statements, which

K

. I%tation of these financial statements
in conformity with U.S. generally ag iples; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of
presentation of financia

error.

hesé:financial statements based on our audit. We
andards generally accepted in the United States.

ocedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
ts. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
‘ ks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. Inmak1 those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s prépatation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are approptiate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. :

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion. '



‘ Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Corporation as of October 31, 2019 and the changes in financial
position and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. . :

Other Matters .

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

tements, and we expressed an
our report dated January 30,

2019. In our opinion, thé summarized comparati .
year ended October 31, 2018 is consistent, ins i ith the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived. :

Required Supplementary Infofmal‘io;_?

U.S. generally accepted acoounfciﬁ at Managemeht’s Discussion and
Analysis, the Schedule of Changes in t PEB Li j.and Related Ratios, the Schedule of
the Corporation’s OPEB Contributions, “ “orporation’s Proportionate Share of

the Net Pension Liabil o Schedul

information, althoug
Accounting Standards

¢ an essential part of financial reporting for
te operational, economic or historical context.

“acoepted in the United States, which consisted of
thods of preparing the information and comparing the
goment’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
ified during our audit of the basic financial statements.
provide any assurance on the information because the limited

th sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any

procedures do not
assuratice. '

Supplementary Informaz‘ion

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedules
of Net Position for the Housing Revenue Bond Program and Multi-Family Secured Mortgage
Revenue Bond Program as of October 31,2019 and 2018 and the Schedules of Revenue, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position for the years then ended, as listed in the table of contents, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. '



Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

January 29, 2020



NEW YORK CITY HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended October 31,2019

INTRODUCTION

The New York City Housing Development Corporation (“HDC” or the “Corporation”) is a state
public benefit corporation created pursuant to Article XTI of the New York State Private Housing
Finance Law (“PHFL”) that finances affordable housing in New York City. HDC issues tax-
exempt and taxable debt and uses the proceeds along with other monies of the Corporation to
make loans to finance new residential construction and the rehabilitation of existing multi-family
housing. HDC, which is financially self-supporting, also lends its own internally-generated funds
for these purposes. All these activities are reported in the financial statements under the heading
“Housing Development Corporation.”

HDC currently has two active subsidiaries that are presented as blended component units in the
financial statements. The New York City Residential Mortgage Insurance Corporation
(“REMIC”) insures residential mortgages in New York City. Th&*New York City Housing
Assistance Corporation (“HAC”) made mortgage loans for _;affgfd,g}jle housing in the 1980s.

Presently, it provides rental subsidy assistance to one residential development.

The Corporation’s annual financial report consists, ofsfourparts: management’s discussion and
analysis, the basic financial statements, required sﬁppléﬁaentary information, which includes the
Schedule of Changes in the net Postemplgffﬂ'qpﬁ Benefit Other Than Pensions (“OPEB”)
Liability and Related Ratios, the Schedule of the Corporation’s OPEB Contributions, the
Schedule of the Corporation’s Propottiohate Share of the Net Pension Liability, and the Schedule
of the Corporation’s Pension Contri@ﬁtiéns, and supplementary information, which includes the
Schedule of Net Position and the' Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
for the Housing Revenue Bond Program and the Multi-Family Secured Mortgage Revenue Bond
Program. This follows diréctly after the notes to the financial statements.

This section of the Corporation’s annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of
the Corporation’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on October 31, 2019.
This period is also referred to as fiscal year (“FY”) 2019. Reported amounts have been rounded
to facilitate reading.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Corporation is a self-supporting entity and follows enterprise fund reporting. An enterprise
fund reports activity that is financed with debt that is secured solely by a pledge of the net
revenue from that activity as well as activity that is not supported by taxes or similar revenues.
HDC’s financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of accounting matches revenues and expenses
to the period in which they are earned or attributable, respectively, which may differ from the
period in which the associated cash is received or expended.



Enterprise fund statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the
Corporation’s activities, While detailed sub-fund information is not presented in the
Corporation’s financial statements, separate accounts are maintained for each bond issue and
component unit, as well as the Corporation’s general operating fund, known as the Corporate
Services Fund. These sub-funds permit HDC to control and manage money for the purposes they
were intended and to demonstrate that the Corporation is properly using specific resources. In
addition, HDC also services construction and permanent loans on behalf of New York City’s
Department of Housing Preservation and Development (“HPD”).

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Corporation had net earnings of $300.5 million in fiscal year 2019, compared to net earnings
of $184.2 million in 2018, Total revenues were $738.3 million an increase of $173.9 million or
30.81% from $564.4 million in fiscal year 2018. The increase in total revenues was mainly due
to an increase of $86.3 million in operatinig revenues and $87.6 million in non-operating
revenues. Operating revenues which are mainly comprised of interest on loans, loan origination
and servicing fees, were $557.6 million up from $471.4 million in fiscal year 2018. The increase
in operating revenues was primarily due to a $47.7 million increa&€¥n interest on loans, as the
mortgage portfolio saw an increase of $1.5 billion from fiscalyyéarignd 2018. Fees and charges

e . « . . aqq e B X
from loan originations and servicing increased by $18.7 millien. 4

Non-Operating revenues which are primarily inves] na;san’t"{?}{;arﬁings and grant revenues saw a
significant increase from a year ago. Total ;1;1Véﬁ§jméﬁt earnings, including the fair market
valuation increased from $53.6 million to,$139.5,million, a 160.56% increase from fiscal year
2018. This increase was due to the growthyin the ihvestment portfolio from $5.2 billion to $5.9
billion as a result of bond issuances\-g“éfl;g receipts in HPD Section 661 Grant Funds as well as a
higher rate of return on the portfe ywcompared to a year ago. The Corporation also recorded
grant revenues of $41.7 1 'H'@\If

rom funds received from The Battery Park City Authority
(“BPCA”). ’

s

Operating expenses in fisca year 2019 were $437.8 million, a $57.6 million or 15.15% increase
from a year ago. Operating expenses in fiscal year 2018 were $380.2 million. Interest on bonds

- and other debt obligations increased by a net of $53.1 million, due to the higher debt level. Fiscal
year 2019 was a record year for HDC’s bond issuances. In its continuing commitment to the
Mayor’s Housing New York Plan, HDC’s bond issuances totaled $2.2 billion.

The new bond proceeds were allocated to finance twenty-three new construction projects with
loan commitments in excess of $1.1 billion. New bond proceeds were also used for the recycling
of prepayments as well as the securitization of loans previously funded from corporate reserves.
The Corporation also committed $360.5 million to the refinancing or the rehabilitation of nine
developments which included four Mitchell-Lama projects, as part of its Mitchell-Lama
restructuring program (“MLRP”). Two new funding loan agreements were closed to fund the
mortgages of two developments for $129.9 million. In addition, the Corporation committed
$229.1 million of subsidy from its corporate reserves.



CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

The condensed statement of net position presents the Corporation’s total assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position as of October
31, 2019 and 2018. The following table represents the changes in the Corporation’s net position
between October 31, 2019 and 2018 and should be read in conjunction with the financial

statements. (Dollar amounts are in thousands).

. Percent
2019 2018 Change Change
Assets
Cash and Investments $5,910,569 $5,264,290 $646,279 12.28%
Mortgage Loans 13,790,266 12,253,404 1,536,862 12.54
Loan Participation Receivable 1,075,529 1,092,274 (16,745) (1.53)
Notes Receivable 552,461 589,991 (37,530) (6.36)
Accrued Interest 112,935 80,588 32,347 40.14
Other Receivables 28,106 34,240 (6,134) (17.91
Capital Assets 1,874 2,165 (291) (13.44)
Interest Rate Swaps - 32,0 T, (32,012) (100.00)
Other Assets 619 23880 . B (1,767) (74.06)
Total Assets 21,472,359 | 19 3f1f25 ~2,121,009 10.96
Deferred Outflows of Resources 112,330 | f9,1§9 102,141 1002.46
A ;

Liabilities %
Bonds Payable & Debt Obligations, net - 11,974,779 735,260 6.14
Interest Payable 121,416 14,510 11.95
Payable to The City of New York:

Loan Participation Agreements 1,075,529 1,092,274 (16,745) (1.53)

Housing Finance Fund Segtion 2,523,338 1,647,918 875,420 53.12
. Other 833,420 636,759 196,661 30.88
Payable to Mortgagors 855,422 849,311 6,111 0.72
Restricted Barnings on Investments 23,265 20,728 2,537 12.24
Accounts and Other Payables 49,635 25,348 24,287 95.81
Net Pension Liability 10,049 9,325 724 7.76
Net OPEB Liability 7,154 13,822 (6,668) (48.24)
Interest Rate Swaps 102,907 - 102,907 100.00
Unearned Revenues and Other
Liabilities 115,565 104,258 11,307 10.85
Total Liabilities 18,442,249 16,495,938 1,946,311 11.80
Deferred Inflows of Resources 10,522 34,133 (23,611) (69.17)
Net Position
Net Investments in Capital Assets 1,874 2,165 (291) (13.44)
Restricted for Insurance Requirements 85,918 79,378 6,540 8.24
Restricted for Bond Obligations 2,236,470 1,904,075 332,395 17.46
Unrestricted ' 807,656 845,850 (38,194) (4.52
Total Net Position $3,131,918 $2,831,468 $300,450 10.61%




Assets of the Corporation

Assets consist largely of the following: cash and investments from bond proceeds, debt service
and other reserves, funds designated for various housing programs, mortgage loans, other assets,
which include participation interests in cash flows from pools of mortgage loans, housing-related
notes receivable and purpose investments. At October 31, 2019, HDC’s total assets were $21.5
billion, an increase of $2.1 billion or 10.96% from fiscal year 2018. The increase was primarily a
result of the Corporation’s mortgage lending and bond financing activities. In fiscal year 2018,
total assets were $19.4 billion.

Cash and Investments: The Corporation ended the fiscal year with $5.9 billion in cash and
investments. Other than collateralized and purpose investments, investments were recorded at
fair value. Approximately $3.5 billion of that balance was un-advanced construction loan
monies already committed to fund mortgage loans that have already closed. Net cash provided
by operating and financing activities were a combined $484.8 million. Investment interest
collected during the year totaled $116.0 million, as the cash balance and the investment portfolio
increased by a net of $646.3 million from a year ago.

Mortgage Loans: Mortgage loans comprised 64.22% of t\he S8 yration’s total assets. The

mortgage loan portfolio at the end of the fiscal year was $13.8 fljgn, ‘an increase of $1.5 billion
or 12.54% from the previous year. At October 31, 2018, the i;’g%oi‘f‘gage loan portfolio was $12.3

i)

billion. During fiscal year 2019, mortgage loan agtli{?iét}iesti;\finc'luded advances of approximately
$2.0 billion and principal loan repayments of’;

49\5 million. Mortgage loans assigned to the
Corporation via purchase and sale agreemq%rxtrs otaled:$190.0 million.
. i

Loan Participation Receivable: L ’T‘h*paf“‘fi"cii}‘i:)ation receivable at October 31, 2019 was $1.1
billion, a $16.7 million decrease frght,a‘year ago. The decrease was primarily the result of the
payoff and refinancing by the Eor n of one development in the amount of $16.0 million.

Lgi\nmpal repayments in the Mitchell-Lama second mortgages in

,,,,,,,

Additionally, there were#Somi

5

the loan participation portflig:

Notes Receivable: Notes receivable was $552.5 million, down from $590.0 million in 2018. The
Corporation has two outstanding notes receivable that relate to the bonds issued for a military
housing development at Fort Hamilton (“Military Housing”) and a Capital Fund (“Capital Fund
Note”) financing for the New York City Housing Authority (“NYCHA”), with outstanding
balances of $43.5 million and $508.9 million, respectively. In fiscal year 2019, there were $37.5
million in notes repayments. The Military Housing notes are secured by pledged revenues of the
development and the NYCHA Capital Fund notes are secured by payments from the United
States Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”).

Acerued Interest: Interest receivable increased from $80.6 million at October 31, 2018 to
$112.9 million at October 31, 2019. This is a $32.3 million or 40.14% increase from fiscal year
2018, Interest receivable has increased comparable to the loan portfolio, in addition to deferred
interest accrued to maturity on some subsidy loans.

Other Receivables: Other receivables were $28.1 million at October 31, 2019, a net decrease of
$6.1 million from October 31, 2018. The net change was comprised of the repayment of a loan in
the amount of $10.9 million under a participating agreement with the Community Preservation



Corporation Special Purpose Enterprise. In fiscal year 2019, HDC made a new loan of $2.2
million into the Down Payment Assistant Fund (“DPAF”) as part of an initiative to assist non-
profit entities. Additionally, there was an increase of $2.6 million of interest and servicing fees
billed on loans serviced for other entities.

Interest Rate Swaps: The Corporation entered into various interest rates swap confracts as a
means of mitigating its exposure to its variable rate debt. In fiscal year 2019, the Corporation
entered into three additional forward interest rate swap agreements. As interest rates continue to
trend lower, the fair market value of the Corporation’s swap portfolio changed from an asset
position with a fair market value of $32.0 million at October 31, 2018, to a liability position of
$102.9 million at October 31, 2019, this amount was offset by a deferred outflow of resources.

Capital and Other Assets: Other assets decreased $2.1 million. This decrease was mainly due
to a $1.8 million decrease relating to the amortization on the 2011 participation interest cash flow
and 2 $0.3 million decrease in capital assets. Under the 2011 Participation Agreement, the
Corporation holds a 100% participation interest in the second mortgages and related Section 236
contracts on some properties. There was a payoff of one of the three loans that remained in the
portfolio. The unamortized value of the 2011 Participation Interest Was $0.6 million at October
31,2019. ary |

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources (deferred outflos
increase of $102.1 million from October 31;, 018 Wwhen deferred outflows were $10.2 million.
Deferred outflows consist of (a) interest swap ,_t}_and;' caps purchased to mitigate the Corporation’s
exposure to its variable rate bonds i Yts General Resolution, (b) the loss incurred on the early
retirement of debt due to an ady; ce, refunding in 2013, (c) deferred outflows related to the
pension plan liability and (d) defé; tflows related to the OPEB plan liability. In fiscal year

.

2019, the market value gf the Gorporation’s derivative portfolio changed to a liability position

offset by a deferred outflé v of $101.2 million. In fiscal year 2019, the amount amortized on the
deferred Joss on early debt fetirement was $0.7 million. Included in deferred outflows related to
the pension plan is the net difference between projected and actual earnings on the pension plan
investments, the change in assumptions and the change in proportion related to the Corporation’s
pension liability as calculated by the New York City Office of the Actuary (“NYCOA).
Deferred outflows related to pensions increased by $1.7 million, In fiscal year 2017, HDC
adopted GASB Statement No. 75, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions.” There was a slight decrease in deferred outflows related to
OPEB in fiscal year 2019.

Liabilities of the Corporation

Total liabilities were $18.4 billion at October 31, 2019, an increase of $1.9 billion or 11.80%. At
October 31, 2018, total liabilities were $16.5 billion. Liabilities are grouped into three main
categories. The largest are HDC Bonds Payable and Debt Obligations, net, which were
approximately $12.7 billion, and accounted for approximately 68.92% of total liabilities. The
second largest category is Payable to The City of New York. This includes the return at maturity
of loans made by the Corporation with funds granted to it by the City acting through HPD under
Section 661 of the PHFL (“HPD Section 661 Grant Funds”). Other payables to the City include



loans administered on behalf of HPD and other loans, which will ultimately revert to the City
pursuant to various loan participation and other agreements. These include loan assets, which are
currently held by HDC and pledged to pay HDC bonds. These loans are transferred back to the
City when the related bonds are retired. The last category of liabilities includes Payable to
Mortgagors, Accounts and Other Payables, and Unearned Revenues. The Payable to Mortgagors’
funds are held and administered by HDC but are the property of others, such as escrows held by
HDC in the course of its loan setvicing functions.

Bonds Payable and Debt Obligations: Bonds and outstanding debt obligations were $12.7
billion at October 31, 2019, an increase of $735.3 million. At October 31, 2018, bonds and
outstanding debt obligations were $12.0 billion. In fiscal year 2019, HDC issued 27 new bond
series for a total of $2.2 billion. Government debt obligation draws during fiscal year 2019
totaled $40.0 million. Bond principal repayments this fiscal year amounted to $1.4 billion. The
Corporation’s scheduled debt service principal payments this fiscal year were $409.0 million and
there was a total of $947.3 million in redemptions. There were $158.4 million in debt obligation
repayments which were primarily refunded by bond issuances. Pursuant to the forward bond
purchase agreement, the Corporation issued bonds in the Open Resolution and refunded the debt
obligations. Additionally, there were $2.8 million of princi al“repayments to the Federal
Financing Bank (“FFB”) and $4.0 million in bond premium anioitiz 1on (See Note 10: “Bonds

a
Payable and Debt Obligations”) %

L6

Interest Payable: Accrued interest payable incrgasf%@_ bys$14.5 million to $135.9 million at
October 31, 2019 from $121.4 million in 2018, This ihcrease reflects the Corporation’s bond
issuances during the year. i L%

abléto The City of New York at October 31, 2019 was
$4.4 billion, a net increase of $1,0.Billionfrom 2018. Payable to the City is grouped into three
categories for reporting purposg an participation agreements, HPD grant programs such as
HPD Section 661 GrantFinds, #hd other. The Mitchell-Lama and City loan participation
program had an outstanding balance of $1.0 billion, a net decrease of $16.7 million due to the
payoff and refinancing of one mortgage and the partial repayments of others in the portfolio. The
second category, HPD Section 661 Grant Funds had an outstanding balance of $2.5 billion, a net
increase of $875.4 million as a result of funds received during the fiscal year. Under the
program, the City, acting through HPD, grants monies to the Corporation pursuant to Section
661 of the PHFL for making loans on its behalf to developments that are also financed by HDC.
Upon maturity of the Corporation’s related senior loan, the subordinate loan made on behalf of
the City is returned to it. The Other Payable to The City of New York had a net increase of
$196.7 million. Significant changes in this category include a net increase of $203.4 million in
loans assigned and loans serviced for the City, a decrease of $7.2 million related to the
Stuyvesant Town loan made by HAC on behalf of the City in December 2015, and a decrease of
$2.5 million of subsidy payments related to one development.

Payable to The City of New Yorks

Payable to Mortgagors: Payable to mortgagors was $855.4 million at October 31, 2019, an
increase of $6.1 million from $849.3 million in 2018. There was a net increase in escrows and
reserve for replacement funds of $52.6 million, resulting from funds held in the course of the
Corporation’s loan servicing function. Community Development Block Grants (“CDBG”) funds
held on behalf of mortgagors decreased by $48.6 million, as a result of fund expenditures and



loan evaporations pursuant to the program requirements. Prepaid debt service, and equity funds
held, increased by $2.1 million.

Accounts Payable: Accounts payable at fiscal year-end was $49.6 million, up from $25.3
million at October 31, 2018. The net increase of $24.3 million was primarily attributable to $18.7
million of grants and collateral funds received on behalf of some developments. There was also
an increase of $4.8 million in bond issuance costs and mortgage insurance premiums payable.
Additionally, there was an increase of deferred interest billed and payable to other entities, and
accrued salaries payable. ‘

Restricted Earnings on Investments: Restricted earnings on investments represents cumulative
amounts by which pass-through revenues exceed expenses. They represent accumulated
investment earnings that are credited to the mortgagors. This amount increased by $2.5 million,
from $20.7 million in fiscal year 2018 to $23.2 million in fiscal year 2019.

Net Pension and OPER Liabilities: The accumulated amount of the Corporation’s net pension
liability as calculated by the NYCOA, amounted to $10.0 million as of October 31, 2019, a net
increase of $0.7 million from 2018. The Corporation recorded & figt OPEB liability of $7.1
million as of October 31, 2019, a decrease of $6.7 million fBm+$13.8 million in 2018. The
decrease was due to updating some of the assumptions 1o, alig

) with the NYCOA 2019 report.
The reduction in the Pension and OPEB liabilities were ‘6ff%gt By déferred inflows of resources.
Ay -

Interest Rate Swaps (Liability): At Octobebr;,ﬁi‘;\ 2019 the fair value of the Corporation’s
interest rate swap portfolio was $102.9 ngliioﬁ' ajliability position. At October 31, 2018 the
portfolio was valued at $32.0 million in‘ap dsset position. Three additional agreements were
added to the portfolio in fiscal year 19, Asthe hedges were deemed to be effective the changes

in fair value were offset by deferred ws of resources.

Unearned Revenues and r Liabilities: Unearned revenues and other liabilities increased
by $11.3 million to $115:6 miillion at October 31, 2019. There was a net increase of $12.8
million mainly due to the réceipt of construction and bond financing fees on mortgage closings,
which will be earned over the construction period of the related mortgages. Other unearned
revenues, including deferred guaranty and other fees received in advance, decreased by $1.5
million due to amortization.

Deferred Infiows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources decreased from $34.1 million to $10.5 million at October 31,
2019. The deferred inflows related to interest rate swap agreements was reallocated to a deferred
outflows of resources due to changes in the fair value, from $32.0 million in favor of HDC to a
$102.9 million in favor of the counterparty. The deferred inflows related to the Corporation’s
OPEB increased by $8.0 million from changes in assumptions. The deferred inflows related to
the pension liability decreased by $0.3 million.

10



The following chart presents the comparative data of the Corporation’s assets including deferred
outflows, and liabilities including deferred inflows, over the last five years:

HDC Assets and Liabilities (2015-2019)

$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000
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Assets
& Liabilities

2018
19,361,539
16,530,071

2019

14,496,287
12,254,707

14,706,130
12,331,443

16,398,025
13,813,859

21,584,689
18,452,771

Net Position

Net position, the excess of assets and deferred outflow, ofﬁgpsé%ufces over liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources, totaled $3.13 billion as of Octobei31,°2019. This represents an increase of
$300.5 million or 10.61% over the balance ifron, the’ previous year. In 2018, net position
increased by $247.3 million. Net positiorf” qlé‘"\s;si'ﬁed as either restricted or unrestricted net

comnmitted by law or contract for specific purposes.
HDC’s most significant restricted ass V,,\inclrf:i&e debt service reserves for HDC bond issues and
undisbursed bond proceeds heldsprios ¥ construction advances. Unrestricted assets may be
classified as designated gl‘flfaés%gnated. Designated assets are those allocated by action or
~policy for specific purposes Ei%f‘é\‘smﬁned by HDC’s Members, such as rating agency reserves (to
support the Corporation’s .c_j,,n’éral obligation rating), specific housing loan programs to which the
Corporation has committed resources under the Mayor’s Housing New York Plan and working
capital. Virtually all the Corporation’s net position is either restricted or designated. The
following chart presents the comparative data of the Corporation’s net position over the last five

years:

position, with restricted net position being'g

»

Net Position (2015-2019)

$3,500,000
$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
$1,000,000
$500,000
$0

in thousands

HLAGR

2015

2017

2019

rﬁsNet Position

2,241,580

2,374,687

2,584,166

2,831,468

3,131,918
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Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents total
revenues recognized in and expenses atiributed to the fiscal year ended October 31, 2019. The
table below summarizes the Corporation’s revenues and expenses and presents comparative data.

Tt should be read in conjunction with the financial statements. (Dollar amounts are in

thousands):
Percent
2019 2018 Change Change
Revenues
Interest on Loans $446,267 $398,559 $47,708 11.97%
Fees and Charges 85,006 66,294 18,712 28.23
Income on Loan Participation :
Interests 22,710 4,624 18,086 391.13
Other Income 3,651 1,887 1,764 93.48
Total Operating Revenues 557,634 471,364 86,270 18.30
Expenses B,
Bond Interest and Amortization 378,494 325)38 53,110 16.32 I
Salaries and Related Expenses 27,274 106,38 992 3.77
Trustees and Other Fees B 98,981 290 3.23
Bond Issuance Costs’ 2, 12,735 3,909 30.69
Corporate Operating Expenses 6,824 (691) (10.13
Total Operating Expenses 380,206 57,610 15.15
Operating Income 91,158 28,660 31.44
Non-Operating Revenues
(Expenses)
Earnings on Investments 114,054 64,434 49,620 71.01
Unrealized Gains (Losses) on
Investments 25,490 (10,879 36,369 (334.30
Other Non-Operating Revenues 41,088 39,472 1,616 4.09
Total Non-Operating Revenues, net 180,632 93,027 87,605 94.17
Income before Special Item 300,450 184,185 116,265 63.12
Loan Securitization Proceeds - 63,117 (63,117) (100.00)
Change in Net Position 300,450 247,302 53,148 21.49
Net Position, Beginning of the Year 2,831,468 2,584,166 247,302 9.57
Net Position, End of the Year $3,131,918 $2,831,468 $300,450 10.61%

12




Revenues of the Corporation are classified as operating and non-operating. Interest income from
mortgages represents the Corporation’s major source of operating revenue. It also includes
various loan and bond program fees such as commitment, bond financing, mortgage insurance
and servicing fees. The Corporation’s non-operating revenues consist mostly of earnings on
investments and purpose investments and grants revenue. Investment income accrues to the
benefit of the program for which the underlying sources of funds are utilized. Also reported
separately as part of non-operating revenues is the amount of unrealized appreciation on
investments reported by the Corporation during the year.

HDC’s expenses are also classified as operating and non-operating. Operating expenses consist
primarily of interest on bonds, which accounted for 86.45% of operating expenses in fiscal year
2019, Other operating expenses include corporate operating expenses (salaries, overhead and
depreciation) and fees. The Cotporation’s largest non-operating expense was the amortization of
the capitalized value of a purchased cash flow.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues

The Corporation had total revenues of $738.3 million, an inct:

f $173.9 million from a year
ago. Operating revenues were $557.6 million in 2019 compared 1o $471.4 million in fiscal year

In fiscal year 2019, HDC recorded non-opera F

2018, an incréase of $86.3 million or 18.30%. Opgrating f‘é,veﬁues were approximately 75.53%
$139.5 million of net investment eanﬂegs ¢ $}41 7 million from grants offset by $0.6 million of
non-operating expenses. &

of total revenues in fiscal year 2019. Net operating incortie for the fiscal year was $119.8 million.
e fevenues of $180.6 million, which included

Interest on Loans: Interes .the largest component of operating revenues, was $446.3
million, an increase of $47 lion or 11.97% from 2018. In fiscal year 2018, interest on loans
was $398.6 million. The ‘increase in 2019 was a result of higher mortgage and notes receivable

balances consistent with an increase in the Corporation’s mortgage lending.

Fees and Charges: Fees and charges, which are mainly comprised of loan origination and
servicing related fees, was $85.0 million in 2019, an increase of $18.7 million from 2018. Bond
financing fees, construction financing and bond servicing fees earned increased by $13.0 million.
Commitment fees saw an increase of $5.9 million. The Corporation also saw an increase of $2.5
million in loan restructuring and satisfaction fees. This was offset by lower fees related to
construction monitoring and servicing fees on conduit debt.

Income on Loan Participation Interests: Loan participation income in fiscal year 2019 was
$22.7 million, comparéd to $4.6 million the previous year. Loan participation income is driven
by prepayments or restructuring of the second mortgage loans in the MLRP. In fiscal year 2019
there was one mortgage payoff in addition to partial repayments of other loans in the portfolio.

Other Income: Other income in fiscal year 2019 was $3.7 million compared to $1.9 million in
2018. Other income is mainly comprised of a receivable setup for debt service on the NYCHA
Capital Fund Grant program bonds (“NYCHA Bonds™), income on mortgage participations, and
administrative fees on the CDBG Superstorm Sandy related loans.
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Operating Income
i1 Interest onloans  $446,267

Fees and
charges 15.24%

Fees and charges $85,006

Income on loan
participation interests
4.07%

Income on loan participation interests  $22,710

11 Other  $3,651 Other 0.65%

Expenses

Operating Expenses: Operating expenses in fiscal year 20‘1‘9&"

of $57.6 million or 15.15% compared to the previous yeat, Wh

to $380.2 million. This increase was mainly aﬁributaglef'fo thigher bond interest expense from the

Corporation’s issuances as well as rising mterestf;..href" s o floating rate debt during the year.

Interest on bonds increased by $53.1 million from $325% million in fiscal year 2018 to $378.5
i

million in fiscal year 2019. Debt issuance ¢os s‘jiﬁ?@%é\'ésed by $3.9 million.
i 2

est &kpense constituted 86.45% of the total operating
ation, was $378.5 million, a 16.32% increase from 2018
wds and other debt obligations portfolio increased $735.3

Bond Interest and Amortization:t
expenses. Total interest, net of am
when it was $325.4 million
million from fiscal year ¢nd 2018.

Salaries and Related Expenses: Salaries and related expenses were $27.3 million in fiscal year
2019, a net increase of $1.0 million from $26.3 million in fiscal year 2018.

Bond Issuance and Other Expenses: Trustees’ and other fees, mortgage insurance premiums,
bond issuance costs and corporate operating expenses increased by $3.5 million. Bond issuance
costs were $16.6 million this fiscal year compared to $12.7 million in 2018. The $3.9 million
increase is directly related to the $2.2 billion in bond issuances this year. Corporate operating
expenses decreased by $0.7 million from $6.8 million to $6.1 million this year.
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The following chart presents the comparative data of the Corporation’s operating revenues and
expenses over the last five years:

HDC Operating Revenues & Expenses (2015-2019)
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Non-Operating ReVeans (Expenses)
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(S
ANy

. Earnings on Investments and Unrealized Gains: Ba ggs%ijg vestments are recognized as
non-operating income. Investment income, including“the fair value adjustment on outstanding
investments was $139.5 million in fiscal 2019 comparedo $53.6 million in fiscal year 2018. The
increase was primarily due to the higher qudst 1 ‘i_np'éz,balance of investments and higher interest -
rates on such investments, as well as moré avorable market conditions. The Corporation ended
the fiscal year with $5.9 billion ¢ inveStmients and cash equivalents under management.
Additionally, through the first thres ‘quarters’ of the fiscal year as rates were rising the
Corporation diligently tried te:’ Aync‘% maintaining liquidity and maximizing its return on
investments. Realized iny &eht ificome was $114.1 million, an increase of $49.6 million from

a year ago. The Corporat n{,} pgrted a $25.5 million unrealized gain on investments this fiscal

§

year compared to a $10.9 million unrealized loss in fiscal year 2018,

Other Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses): Other non-operating revenues include $41.7
million in 421-A Grant Revenue from the Battery Park City Authority (“BPCA”), $1.2 million in
pass-through related revenue on the City loan sale participation programs and $1.8 million of
amortization expense on the 2011 participation interests purchased cash flow, as a result of
prepayments and restructuring of loans in the portfolio. '

Change in Net Position

Change in net position for fiscal year 2019 was $300.5 million, up from $247.3 million the
previous year. The Corporation generated $258.8 million from normal operating activities, and in
addition $41.7 million was received from the 421-A Grant Revenue Program with the BPCA.

15



DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At year-end, the Corporation had approximately $12.7 billion of bond principal and debt
obligations outstanding, net of discount and premium, an increase of 6.14% over the prior year.
The following table summarizes the changes in bonds payable and debt obligations between
October 31, 2018 and October 31, 2019. (Dollar amounts are in thousands):

: Percentage increase
2019 2018 FY 2018 to 2019
Bonds Payable & Debt
Obligations $12,710,039 $11,974,779 6.14%

In fiscal year 2019, all variable rate demand obligation (“VRDO”) bond series were successfully
remarketed and no bonds were tendered to become bank bonds. Additional information about
HDC’s debt is presented in Note 10 to the financial statements.

NEW BUSINESS

g Reveny Bonds series totaling $2.2
billion. Included in this total were 24 series of tax-exempt'c’@:orfeés tofaling $2.0 billion and 3 series
of taxable bonds totaling $191.9 million. The Corporation‘also' made low interest loans from its

. N
net position. ' N

In fiscal year 2019, the Corporation issued 27 new Housir/l,g"ili:!‘e’:vénu

Subsequent to October 31, 2019, bonds 1ssue in the course of the Corporation’s normal business
activities were $336,630,000. In addition, the,Gorporation sold $65,630,000 of loan participation
interest to FFB as well. - '

CONTACTING THE CER ORATION’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Corporation’s finances and
to demonstrate the Corporation’s accountability for the resources at its disposal. If you have
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Public
Information Officer, New York City Housing Development Corporation, 110 William Street,
New York, NY 10038. The Corporation also maintains information on its website at
www.nychde.com. »
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New York City

Housing Development
Corporation

2019 Financial Statements

New York City Housing Development Corporation
Statements of Net Position

At October 31, 2019 (with comparative summarized financial information as of October 31, 2018) (8 in thousands)

HDC and Component Units
New York City
New York City  New York City Residential
Housing Housing Mortgage
Development Assistance Insurance Total
Corporation Corporation Corporation 2019 2018
- Current Assets: }
Cash and cash equivalents (note 3) $ 801,401 $ - 8 oo % 801,401 $ 765,088
Investments (note 3) 202,891 - .- 202,891 135,589
Receivables:
Mortgage loans (note 4) 330,788 - - 330,788 294,485
Accrued interest 38,933 - - 38,933 38,532
Notes (note 5) 38,913 - - 38,913 37,529
Other (note 7) 5,431 - - 5,431 13,527
Total Receivables 414,065 - - 414,065 384,073
Other assets 16 N - 16 16
Total Current Assets _ 1,418,373 N 1,418,373 1,284,766
Noncurrent Assets: -, S
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (note 3) ’ 1,622,298 ' ;} 9,820"*" 24,152 1,656,270 1,817,070
Restricted investments (note 3) 3,101,220 o - 120,290 3,221,510 2,517,462
Purpose investments (note 2) 28,497 oo - 28,497 29,081
Mortgage loans (note 4) 274,342 - - 274,342 340,502
Restricted receivables: e
Mortgage loans (note 4) ) 12,784,105 122,068 - 12,906,173 11,336,474
Mortgage loan participation - Federal Financing Bank (note 4)' - oy 278,963 - - 278,963 281,943
Loan participation receivable - The City of NY (note 6) T ] 1,075,529 - - 1,075,529 1,092,274
Acerued interest LR 74,002 - . 74,002 42,056
Notes (note 5) e D 513,548 . . 513,548 552,462
Other (note 7) Cow o 22,675 . . 22,675 20,713
Total Restricted Receivables B 14,748,822 122,068 - 14,870,890 13,325,922
Primary government/component unit receivable (péyable) 27 %) (18) - -
Capital assets : 1,874 - - 1,874 2,165
Interest rate swaps (note 9) - - - - 32,012
Other assets (note 8) 603 - - 603 2,370
Total Noncurrent Assets 19,777,683 131,879 144,424 20,053,986 18,066,584
Total Assets 21,196,056 131,879 144,424 21,472,359 19,351,350
Deferred Outflows of Resources J
Interest rate caps (note 9) 214 - - 214 1,880
" Deferred loss on early retirement of debt (note 9) 4,920 - - 4,920 5,660
Deferred outflows related to pensions (note 13) 3,264 - - 3,264 1,588
Deferred outflows related to interest rate swaps (note 9) 102,907 - - 102,907 -
Deferred outflows related to OPEB (note 14) 1,025 - - 1,025 1,061
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 112,330 3 - ¥ - 3 112,330 $ 10,189

See accompanying notes o the basic financial statements.
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New York City

Housing Development
Corporation

2019 Financial Statements

New York City Housing Development Corporation
Statements of Net Position (continued)

At October 31, 2019 (with comparative summarized financial information as of October 31, 2018) (8 in thousands)

HDC and Component Units
New York City
New York City  New York City Residential
Housing Housing Mortgage
Development Assistance Insurance Total
" Corporation Corporation Corporation 2019 2018
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Bonds payable (net) (note 10) $ 342,849 § - $ - 3 342,849 3 627,161
Debt obligations payable 93 - - 93 94
Loan participation payable to Federal Financing Bank 2,980 - - 2,980 2,826°
Accrued interest payable 135,926 - - 135,926 121,416
Payable to mortgagors 194,650 - - 194,650 182,299
Restricted earnings on investments 23,265 - - 23,265 20,728
Accounts and other payables . 49,635 - - 49,635 25,348
Total Current Liabilities 749,398 ] - 749,398 979,872
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Bonds and debt obligations payable:

Bonds payable (net) (note 10) 11,788,584 - - 11,788,584 10,647,712

Debt obligations payable , 296,570 i - 296,570 415,043

Loan participation payable to Federal Financing Bank 27 8,953__ C3 .- - 278,963 281,943
Payable to The City of New York: o ' ‘

Loan participation agreements (note 12) . -1,075529 - - 1,075,529 1,092,274

Housing finance fund (Section 661) g 2;:523,33'8 - - 2,523,338 1,647,918

Other : v i 701,541 131,879 - 833,420 636,759
Payable to mortgagors T 660,772 - - 660,772 667,012
Net pension liabilities (note 13) R ’ 10,049 - - 10,049 9325
OPEB liability (note 14) I . 7,154 - - 7,154 13,822
Derivative instrument - interest rate swaps o - 102,907 102,907 -
Unearned revenuss and other liabilities ; 115,565 - - 115,565 104,258
Total Noncurrent Liabilities g 17,560,972 131,879 - 17,692,851 15,516,066 .
Total Liabilities 18,310,370 131,879 - 18,442,249 16,495,938

lBefe rred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions (note 13) 1,737 - - 1,737 1,356
Deferred inflows related to OPEB (note 14) 8,785 - - 8,785 765
- - 32,012

Interest rate swaps fair value (note 9) - -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 10,522 - - 10,522 34,133

met Position J

Net investment in capital assets 1,874 - - 1,874 2,165
Restricted for bond obligations (note 19) 2,236,470 - - 2,236,470 1,904,075
Restricted for insurance requirement and others - - 85,918 85,918 79,378
Unrestricted {note 19) 749,150 - 58,506 807,656 845,850
Total Net Position $ 2,987,494 § - % 144,424 § 3,131,918 § 2,831,468

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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New York City
Housing Development

New York City Housing Development Corporation Coporion e
Statements of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position

Year ended October 31, 2019 (with comparative summarized, financial information for the year ended October 31, 2018) (3 in thousands)

HDC and Component Units
New York City
New York City  New York City Residential
Housing Housing Mortgage
Development Assistance Insurance Total
Corporation Corporation Corporation 2019 2018

Operating Revenues

Interest on loans (note 4) $ 446,259 § 8 $ - % 446,267 $ 398,559

Fees and charges (note 7) 81,215 - 3,791 85,006 66,294

Income on loan participation interests (note 6) 22,710 - - 22,710 4,624

Other 3,651 - - 3,651 1,887

Total Operating Revenues ’ 553,835 - 8 3,791 557,634 471,364
Operating Expenses

Interest and amortization of bond premium and discount (note 10) 378,494 - i, - 378,494 325,384

Salaries and related expenses 27,274 - g7 - 27,274 26,282

Trustees' and other fees ’ 9,271 . LR - 9,271 8,981

Bond issuance costs . 16,644 LoE e e ) - 16,644 12,735

Corporate operating expenses (note 11) 6,133 R - 6,133 6,824

Total Operating Expenses 437,816 : - - 437,816 380,206

Operating Income 1\}6,0i2 i 8 3,791 119,818 91,158
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Earnings on investments (note 3) _ 110,564 1 3,489 114,054 64,434

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments (note 3) L 25,490 - - 25,490 (10,879)

(Loss) on early retirement of debt, net e E - ' - - - (129)

Other non-operating revenues, net (note 7) ¥ 31,088 - 10,000 41,088 39,601

Payments from REMIC subsidiary to HDC - 566 - (566) - -

Other B 9 [©)] - - -

Total Non-operating Revenues, net S 167,117 (8 12,923 180,632 93,027

Income (Loss) before Special Item 283,736 - 16,714 300,450 184,185

Loan participation agresment securitization 2018 Series B-1 and B-2 - - - - 63,117

Changes in Net Position 283,736 - 16,714 300,450 247,302

Total net position - beginning of year 2,703,758 - © 127,710 2,831,468 2,584,166
Total Net Position - End of Year $ 2,987,494 § - % 144,424 $ 3,131,918 $ 2,831,468

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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New York City Housing Development Corporation
Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended October 31, 2019 (with comparative summarized financial information for the year ended October 31, 2018) (8 in thousands)

HDC and Component Units
New York City
New York City  New York City Residential
Housing Housing Mortgage
Development Assistance Insurance Total
Corporation Corporation Corporation 2019 2018
(Cash Flows From Operating Activities J
Mortgage loan repayments $ 1,138,648 % - 3 - 3 1,138,648 § 949,784
Note repayments 62,805 - - 62,805 62,790
Receipts from fees and charges 91,053 - 80 91,133 70,069
Mortgage escrow receipts 214,945 - - 214,945 214,604
Reserve for replacement receipts 72,962 : - - 72,962 81,934
Mortgage loan advances (2,077,011} (101) - (2,077,112) (1,746,361)
Escrow disbursements (175,855) - - (175,855) (173,354)
Reserve for replacement disbursements (55,896) - - (55,896) (62,649)
Payments to employees (26,292) - . - (26,292) (24,614)
Payments to suppliers for corporate operating expenses (5471) - - (5,471) (6,208)
Project contributions and funds received from NYC 930,040 - - 930,040 * 956,679
Advances and other payments for NYC (116,018) -0 - (116,018) (214,247)
Bond cost of issuance (17,047) T e o a - (17,047) _ (12,233)
Other receipts 170,691 R TP - 170,691 127,766 .
Other payments (135,831) (523527)" o - (138,358) (60,075)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 71,723 (2;‘6,28) ’ 80 69,175 163,885
Cash Flows From Non Capital Financing Activitie
Proceeds from sale of bonds - - 2,216,745 1,655,994
Proceeds from loan participation - FFB Lot - - - 85,025
Proceeds from debt obligations i, . ;?}40,021 - - 40,021 190,382
Retirement of bonds (1,517,547) - - (1,517,547) (834,101)
Interest paid (365,279) - - (365,279) (313,323)
Grant proceeds from BPCA 41,668 - - 41,668 41,964
Payments to component units i (13,144) (2) 13,146 - -
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Non Capital F}h‘anc_inﬁ Activities 402,464 (2) 13,146 415,608 825,941
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of capital assets (372) - - (372) (442)
Net Cash (Used in) Capital and Related Financing Activities (372) - - (372) (442)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Sale of investments ) 18,427,804 2,733 255,800 18,686,337 17,661,276
Purchase of investments (19,154,861) 2,737) (253,652) (19,411,250) (17,941,151)
Interest and dividends collected 112,413 o259 3,343 116,015 68,435
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Investing Activities (614,644) 255 5,491 (608,898) (211,440)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash eqﬁivélents (140,829) (2,375) 18,717 (124,487) 771,944
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,564,528 12,195 5435 2,582,158 1,804,214
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 2,423,699 § 9,820 § 24,152 & 2,457,671 § 2,582,158

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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New York City Housing Development Corporétion

Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

Year ended October 31, 2019 (with comparative summarized financial information for the year ended October 31, 2018) (8 in thousands)

New York City

Housing Development
Corporation

2019 Financial Statements

HDC and Component_Units
New York City
New York City  New York City Residential
Housing Housing Mortgage
Deyelopment Assistance Insurance Total
Corporation Corporation Corporation 2019 2018
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities:
Operating Income $ 116,019 § 8 3 3,791 & 119,818 $ 91,158
Adjustments to reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Provided
by (used in) Operating Activities:
Depreciation expense 662 - - 662 . 616
Amortization of bond discount and premium (3,959) - - (3,959) (3,978)
Amortization of deferred loss on early retirement of debt 740 - - 740 706
Non-operating bond interest payment 365,279 - - 365,279 313,194
Changes in Assets & Liabilities:
Mortgage loans (1,535,765) 7,054 - (1,528,711) (1,912,400)
Loan participation receivable - NYC 3,172 L - 3,172 11,227
Accrued interest receivable (26,922) - - (26,922) (18,396)
Notes receivable 37,529 - - 37,529 36,208
Other receivables 6,134 = - 6,134 (1,073)
Primary government/component unit receivable (payable) 3,711 - (3,711) - -
Other assets (70,869) - - (70,869) (23,456)
Payable to The City of New York 1,664,3__82 E (9,690) - 1,054,692 1,529,576
Payable to mortgagors i .(10,477) ' - - (10,477) 87,685
Accounts and other payables e 127,895 - - 127,895 264
Restricted earnings on investments " (1,355) - - (1,355) (1,183)
Unearned revenues and other liabilities (18,965) - - (18,965) 37,238
Accrued interest payable 3 14,512 . - - 14,512 16,499
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating A’ct'iﬁtie 71,723 8 (2,628) $ 80 §$ 69,175 § 163,885
Non Cash Investing Activities: S
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments e 3 25,490 $ - % - $ 25490 $ (10,879)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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‘New York City Housing Development Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
October 31, 2019

Note 1: Organization

The New York City Housing Development Corporation (the “Corporation” or “HDC”) is a corporate
governmental agency constituting a public benefit corporation organized and existing under the laws of
the State of New York (the “State”). The Corporation is also a tax-exempt organization under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). The Corporation was
established in 1971 under the provisions of Article XII of the Private Housing Finance Law (the “Act”)
of the State and is to continue in existence for at least as long as bonds, notes or other obligations of the
Corporation are outstanding.

The Corporation was created to encourage the investment of private capital through low-interest mortgage
loans in order to increase the supply of safe and sanitary dwelling accommodations for families and
persons whose need for housing accommodations cannot be provided by unassisted private enterprise. To
accomplish its objectives, the Corporation is empowered to financefioysing through new construction or
rehabilitation and to provide permanent financing for multi-f:arsn’-i"L_l sidential housing. The Corporation
finances significant amounts of its activities through the “ni,s&sﬁghcg’ Bonds, notes and debt obligations.
The bonds, notes and debt obligations of the Corporatiof are ﬁotiﬁ’ébts of either the State or The City of
New York (the “City”). A

5 :‘;}\ \1;\
Pursuant to Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Codification 2100, Defining the
Financial Reporting Entity, the Corporation’sifinancial statements are included in the City’s financial

statements as a component unit for fj

Primary Government Entity '

For the purpose of these ﬁnan01a statements, the Corporation is the primary government entity. Financial
activity in HDC’s bond and Toan programs and in its Corporate Services Fund are aggregated and reported
in the financial statements under Housing Development Corporation. The Corporation sells bonds,
administers bond proceeds and manages bond revenues and repayments in accordance with bond
resolutions adopted by its Board Members (see Note 10: “Bonds Payable”). Bond proceeds are used to
make loans and provide for related costs and reserves, and loan repayments are applied to pay principal
and interest on the related bonds (see Note 4: “Mortgage Loans”; Note 5: “Notes Receivable”; and Note
6: “Loan Participation Receivable for The City of New York™). Corporation resources that are not pledged
under or governed by a bond resolution are managed in the Corporate Services Fund. This fund accounts
for (1) fees and earnings transferred from the bond and loan programs; (2) fees earned on loans serviced
for HDC and for the City; (3) compliance monitoring fees; (4) income from Corporate Services Fund
investments; (5) grant revenues; (6) payments of the Corporation’s operating expenses; and (7) loans made
with corporate funds. ~

The Corporation currently has four blended component units, two of which are inactive.
The New York City Housing Assistance Corporation (“HAC”) and the New York City Residential

Mortgage Insurance Corporation (“REMIC™) are active subsidiaries and together with HDC, the Housing
New York Corporation (“HNYC”) and the Real Estate Owned Corporation comprise the reporting entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
October 31,2019

i

HAC and REMIC have been included in the Corporation’s financial statements as blended component
units of HDC. All of these entities have been reported as component units because HDC’s Members
comprise all or a controlling majority of the Board for each entity and HDC’s staff provides all services
for each entity.

Component Units

(4) New York City Housing Assistance Corporation

HAC is a public benefit corporation established puréuant to Section 654-b of the Act as a subsidiary of
the Corporation. :

HAC is empowered to receive monies from any source, including, but not limited to, the Corporation, the
City or the State, for the purpose of assisting rental developmentst6:maintain rentals affordable to low
and moderate-income persons for whom the ordinary operationof p ivite enterprise cannot supply safe,
sanitary and affordable housing accommodations. In orderyto acgomplish this objective, HAC may
transfér, lend, pledge or assign these monies to any réﬁ%ﬂ H@\i%‘i’épment or assist the Corporation-in
financing such developments. As a subsidiary of HDCAHAC’s functions are administered by the -
Corporation and its Board Members substantially o -rlap. with HDC’s Board Members, so it is reported
as a blended component unit in HDC’s finangjal Statéments.

i

(B) New York City Residential Morigg Instwance Corporation

REMIC a public benefit corpo {onestablished pursuant to Section 654-d of the Act as a subsidiary of
HDC. REMIC is the suc Sssor entity to the New York City Rehabilitation Mortgage Insurance
Corporation (“Old REMIE” “which was dissolved on January 27, 1993. REMIC has the authority to
insure residential mortgagé loans throughout the City in order to promote the preservation of
neighborhoods which are blighted, are becoming blighted or may become blighted, to discourage
divestment and encourage the investment of mortgage capital in such neighborhoods and to provide safe,
sanitary and affordable housing accommodations to persons and families for whom the ordinary

operations of private enterprise cannot supply such accommodations.

REMIC currently maintains two reserves, the Housing Insurance Fund and the Premium Reserve Fund.
The Housing Insurance Fund can be used as a revolving fund solely for the payment of liabilities arising
from housing insurance contracts issued by REMIC. The Housing Insurance Fund requirement (as of any
particular date) is established by statute and must be in an amount equal to the aggregate of (i) one hundred
percent of the insured amounts due and payable pursuant to housing insurance contracts, plus (it) twenty
percent of the insured amounts under housing insurance contracts other than insured amounts which are
due and payable pursuant to (i) above, plus (iii) twenty percent of the amounts to be insured under
REMIC’s commitments to insure. The Housing Insurance Fund requirement at October 31, 2019 is
$85,918,000. :

Any income or interest earned on the Housing Insurance Fund in excess of its respective requirements is
transferred at least annually to the Premium Reserve Fund. The Premium Reserve Fund must also be
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New York City Housing Development Corporation
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maintained to provide for the payment of REMIC’s liabilities arising from its operations, including
liabilities arising from housing insurance contracts. REMIC also maintains an Operating Fund for
operation purposes. As a component unit of HDC, REMIC functions are administered by the Corporation.
The Premium Reserve Fund and Operating Fund have a combined balance of $58,506,000 at October 31,
2019. REMIC is a blended component unit because HDC’s Members comprise a controlling majority of
the Board and HDC’s staff provides all services for REMIC.

Inactive Component Units
(C) Real Estate Owned Corporation
The NYC HDC Real Estate Owned Corporation (“REO Subsidiary Corporation”) was established under

Section 654-a of the Act on September 20, 2004. The REO Subsidiary Corporation has the power to hold
beécome necessary to acquire a project

property whenever, in the sole discretion of the Corporation, it has

in the case of sale under foreclosure or in lieu of foreclosure toseffettuate the purposes of the Act. There
was no activity undertaken by this subsidiary during ﬁsg,gl""\-‘ye 120 9 and did not have any assets or
liabilities at October 31, 2019. The REO Subsidiary C rﬁb'f:gat‘i@n‘\ﬁ'treated as a blended component unit
of HDC. ) v

L

(D) Housing New York Corporation

N
publi¢ benefit corporation established pursuant to Section 654-
ation. Authorization for the funding of the Housing New York
séquently, HNYC can no longer issue bonds or notes to fund the

The Housing New York Corporation
¢ of the Act as a subsidiary of the (
Program ended on July 1, 1995
Housing New York Programn

Upon repayment of all of h utstanding HNYC bonds on November 3, 2003, HNYC became an inactive
subsidiary of the Corporation and its remaining funds were transferred out of HN'YC. However, HNYC is
not expected to be dissolved. ' '

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Corporation follows the principles of fund accounting, with a sub-fund for each bond series, for the
Corporate Services Fund, and for each component unit. Each fund’s assets, liabilities and net position are
accounted for as separate entities and follow enterprise fund reporting. Certain individual funds are
aggregated into larger categories for the purpose of financial reporting. The accompanying financial
statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting wherein revenues are recognized when earned and expenses when incurred. In its accounting
and financial reporting, the Corporation follows the pronouncements of the GASB.
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Other significant accounting policies are:
A. Revenue and Expense Recognition

The Corporation’s operating revenues consist of earnings on loans and loan participation interests, fees
and charges associated with both financing and servicing mortgages and loans, and other revenues that
are received to cover the costs of raising capital. All other revenue, which is primarily investment income
and grant revenue ate considered non-operating. Revenues are recognized when earned.

Operating expenses include bonding costs, expenses for administering the various bond resolutions,
personnel expenses, corporate operating expenses, bond issuance and financing costs, and depreciation
expense. The Corporation reports all other expenses, including distributions of first mortgage earnings to
the City in connection with loan participations and the payment, if necessary, of mortgage loan principal
receipts on bond payments, as non-operating expenses. Expenses argtgcognized as incurred.

* Virtually all resources are either restricted or designated. N '_Qﬁos'iti} as been restricted in accordance
with terms of an award, agreement or by state law. Peﬁ’éﬁiépa ‘fiet position is committed for specific
purposes pursuant to HDC policy and/or Board directives (Sge Note 19: “Net Position” for-more detailed

information). :

B. Cash Equivalents and Investments

dt

Short-term bank deposits and invest sswith stated maturities of 90 days or less are reported as Cash
and Cash Equivalents. All investmer bare reported at fair value, except for certificates of deposit and
investment agreements. [I @S‘fgdﬁiﬁon’s investment agreements, which can take the form of open time

deposits or fixed repurchv’ eements, are reported at an amount equal to principal and accrued interest.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) require that restricted assets be reported as non-
current assets. In the case of cash equivalents and investments, this treatment generally causes restricted
investments with maturities less than one year to be reported as non-current, However, to more accurately
report the alignment of HDC’s current liability for payment of bond principal and interest with funds
available to satisfy these liabilities, HDC has included cash, cash equivalents and investments totaling
$614,534,000 at October 31, 2019, to cover the payment of bond principal and interest due in the following
year.

C. Purpose Investments

As part of its financing activities, HDC has made three housing development loans that are secured by
GNMA certificates rather than mortgages on the related properties. The GNMA certificates provide
payments at such times and in such amounts as to fully repay the respective HDC loans and are the only
source of repayment for these loans. The GNMA certificates are treated under U.S. Treasury regulations
as acquired program obligations, The GNMA certificates are classified in the financial statements as
purpose investments and identified separately from other investments and restricted investments in the
financial statements. However, interest earned on the GNMA certificates is included in investment
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income.

Tt is the Corporation’s policy to record GNMA - certificates at amortized cost, which amounted to
$28,497,000 and $29,081,000 at October 31, 2019 and October 31, 2018, respectively. The fair value of
these purpose investments amounted to $30,488,000 and $29,067,000 at October 31,2019 and at October
31, 2018, respectively.

D. Mortgage Loans’

As part of the Corporation’s major financing activities, mortgage loans are funded from bond and debt
obligation proceeds and corporate reserves. ‘The mortgage loans funded from bond proceeds and debt
obligations are generally classified as restricted receivables because the loan repayments of all such loans
are pledged to cover the debt service on the related bonds and obligations. The loans funded from corporate
reserves are not restricted but designated for a specific purpose.

E, Earnings on Investments

0 B . :
ehrescpyes for replacement and certain other project
are‘reported as payable to the City or payable to

Investment earnings on monies held for the City, prgj
escrows are not reported as revenues; rather, they:
177,

mortgagors, respectively. e ¥

F. Allowance for Credit Losses

Red .
HDC’s loans are underwritten adcording to standards the Corporation believes prudent and are closely
monitored for payment an ripatiagement of the associated housing developments. In addition, many
of the Corporation’s mortgages have credit enhancements through letters of credit, mortgage insurance
and other supports. Therefdte, HDC believes that the likelihood of experiencing material credit losses
relating to its bonded mortgage programs is remote. Management has determined that current charges

against income are not required.
G. Summarized Financial Information

The basic financial statements include summarized comparative information as of and for the year ended
October 31, 2018 in total but not by reporting unit. Such information does not include enough detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the Corporation's financial statements for the year ended
October 31, 2018, from which the summarized information was derived (which are available from the
Corporation and on its website). '
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H. Recent and Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting Standards Issued and Adopted

GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, was issued in March 2016. The primary
objective of this statement is to provide financial statement users with information about asset retirement
obligations (ARO’s) that were not addressed in GASB standards by establishing uniform accounting and
finanicial reporting requirements for those obligations. The requirements of this statement apply to
financial statements of all state and local governments. For purposes of applying this statement, an ARO
is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset (that is, the
tangible capital asset is permanently removed from service). The retirement of a tangible capital asset
encompasses its sale, abandonment, recycling, or disposal in some other manner; however, it does not
encompass the temporary idling of a tangible capital asset. This statement also applies to legally
enforceable liabilities of a lessor in connection with the retirement offtg leased property if those liabilities
meet the definition of an ARO. i

The requirements of this statement are effective for repo tiflg Peri6ds beginning after June 15, 2018. The
Corporation adopted this statement in fiscal yeag 2019 4nd ‘there was no significant impact on the
Corporation’s financial statements. A B h

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosires elated to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct
Placements, was issued in April 2018. Theprimary objective of this statement is to improve the
information that is disclosed in no ‘overnment financial statements related to debt, including direct
borrowings and direct placemes 4lso clarifies which liabilities governments should include when
disclosing information relétéd )

de

&
vy Luf

t#for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial statements as a liability that

This statement defines deb
arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be used in lieu of cash) in one or
more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is established.

This statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to
financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms
specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences,
significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration
clauses. '

For notes to financial statements related to debt, this statement also requires that existing and additional
information be provided for direct borrowings and direct placements of debt separately from other debt.

The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. The

Corporation adopted this statement in fiscal year 2019 and there was no significant impact on the
Corporation’s financial statements.

27



New York City Housing Development Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
October 31,2019

Aécounting Standards Issued and Not Yet Adopted

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, was issued in January 2017. The primary objective of this
statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
financial reporting ‘purposes and how those activities stiould be reported. This statement establishes
criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria
generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the
beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary
component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities.

This statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other
employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial
funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent
arrangement that meets specific criteria. -

The statement is effective for fiscal years beginning afterﬂDé%;\é‘m er,15, 2018, The Corporation is in the
process of evaluating the impact of its adoption on the finz 1alzs Htements.

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, was issued in Jun620\17"\}“he) primary objective of this statemerit is to
better meet the information needs of ﬁnancialﬁs\taf‘\i%méfﬂ: users by improving accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments. This&stage’rﬁg_{lfa};increases the usefulness of governments® financial
statements by requiring recognition of cer’tfgnfigas‘é' assets. and liabilities for leases that previously were
classified as operating leases and recg; nized‘asiinflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the
payment provisions of the contrac stablishes a single model for lease accounting based on the
foundational principle that lease: financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this
statement, a lessee is requif onize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and
a lessor is required to re&%gni 4 lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing
the relevance and consistenty of information about governments® leasing activities.

The statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. The Corporation is in the
process of evaluating the impact of its adoption on the financial statements. '

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period,
was issued in June 2018. The objectives of this statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2)
to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.

This statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost as incurred before the end of a
construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in accordance
with the requirements of paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Fi inancial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 3 0, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which are
superseded by this statement. This statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial
statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred
before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported
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in a business-type activity or enterprise fund.

This statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources
measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as
an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles.

The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
The Corporation is in the process of evaluating the impact of its adoption on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No.
61, was issued in August 2018. The primary objectives of this statement are to improve the consistency
and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a
majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity intergt:in a legally separate organization
should be reported as an investment if a government’s holdingH; uity interest meets the definition
of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets the defir ion of'an investment should be measured
using the equity method, unless it is held by a special«purpose government engaged only in fiduciary
activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (inchudif _,ﬁpeﬁ"g;paf’ient and term endowments) or permanent
fund. Those governments and funds should meagu e tajority equity interest at fair value.

For all other holdings of a majority equity 1n{e st it a legally separate organization, a government should
report the legally separate organizatit figas a‘eomponent unit, and the government or fund that holds the
equity interest should report an asg ed to the majority equity interest using the equity method. This

: S ) : ST R
statement establishes that ownersHip of 4 majority equity interest in a legally separate organization results
in the government being; [ly”accountable for the legally separate organization and, therefore, the
government should reportithatiorganization as a component unit.

This statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100% equity interest
account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at
acquisition value at the date the government acquired a 100% equity interest in the component unit.
Transactions presented in statements of the component unit in that circumstance should include only
transactions that occurred subsequent to the acquisition. '

The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.
Farlier application is encouraged. The requirements should be applied retroactively, except for the
provisions related to (1) reporting a majority equity interest in a component unit and (2) reporting a
component unit if the government acquires a 100 percent equity interest. Those provisions should be
applied on a prospective basis. The Corporation is in the process of evaluating the impact of its adoption
on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, was issued in May 2019. The primary objectives of
this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate
diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated
with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives
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by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation
is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional
commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit
debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures. '

The statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. The Corporation is in the
process of evaluating the impact of its adoption on the financial statements.

Note 3: Investments and Deposits

The Corporation is authorized to engage in investment activity pursuant to the Act and the Corporation’s
respective bond resolutions. Investment policies are set for the Corporation by the Members of the
Corporation on an annual basis, through the annual adoption of written investment guidelines. Investments
are reviewed on a periodic basis by the Corporation’s Audit Committee. Day-to-day investment decisions
are made by the Corporation’s Investment Committee. The Cgirp,gﬁ tich principally invests in securities
of the United States.and its agencies, open time deposits (* Ds”){ in‘theé form of investment agreements,
year éO 19;"HDC continued investing in taxable
municipal bonds of New York State and New York City conﬁist%nt with the Corporation’s enabling statute
and Investment Guidelines. The Corporation did not én%e%_ info any reverse repurchase agreements during
isjpot aware of any violations of any provisions of the

M,

¥

[N
W

foregoing policies.

b the Nrespective trustees for the benefit of the bondholders, were

All securities, other than securities h< '
mithe Corporation’s name. Bond program investments are held by

held by the Corporation or its ags
the trustee of the applicabléprogram:

All investment transactions:are recorded on the trade date. Investments, other than purpose investments,
which are reported at fair value at October 31, 2019, were as follows:

Investment Maturities at October 31, 2019 (in Years)

More
Investment Type 2019 Less than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10
(in thousands)
Money Market and NOW Accounts  $2,256,393 $2,256,393 $  — $ — % —
FHLB . 820,134 412,935 120,160 287,039 —
Federal Farm Credit Bond 528,553 33,701 83,623 411,229 —
FHLMC Bonds 434,202 52,600 331,137 40,899 9,566
U.S. Treasury (Bonds, Notes, Bills) 316,147 312,552 3,595 — —
NYS/NYC Municipal Bonds * 222,690 51,759 118,839 — 52,092
Fixed Repurchase Agreements 165,652 165,652 — — —_
FNMA Bonds 112,656 44,254 68,402 — —
Total 4,856,427 3,329,846 725,756 739,167 61,658
Less amounts classified as cash
equivalents (2,422,045) (2,422,045) — ' — —
Total investments A $2,434,382 $907,801 $725,756 $739,167  $61,658

*Note: Primarily taxable VRDO instruments which can be put weekly.
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Total invéstments recorded on the Statement of Net Position at October 31, 2019 of $3,427,343,000 is
made up the following: (a) investments recorded at fair value of $2,434,382,000, (b) certificates of
deposits in the amount of $581,579,000 and (c) OTDs in the amount of $411,382,000.

As required by GASB No. 31, the Corporation has recorded a fair value adjustment in its investment
portfolio. HDC recorded a net appreciation of $25,490,000 for the year ended October 31, 2019.

Under Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, HDC categorizes its fair value
measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The
hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs,
and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The Corporation has the following recurring fair value measurements as of October 31, 2019:

o NYC/NYS Municipal securities of $222,690,000 are valued using quoted market prices. (Level 1

inputs)
e U.S. Treasury securities of $316,147,000 are valued based on models using observable inputs.
(Level 2 inputs) : _ o
« U.S. Agency securities of $1,895,545,000 are valued based on models using observable inputs.
(Level 2 inputs)

Money Market and Now accounts of $2,256,393,000 are valued at cost. In addition to the investments
identified above, as of October 31, 2019 and 2018, the Corporation held $32,684,000 and $16,995,000,
respectively, uninvested as cash in various trust and escrow accounts.

TInterest Rate Risk: As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest
rates, the Corporation’s Investment Guidelines charge the Investment Committee with “...determining
appropriate investment instruments. ..based on...length of time funds are available for investment
~ purposes...” among other factors. Thus, maturities are matched to the Corporation’s liquidity needs. As
part of the Corporation’s investment policies, it looks to invest its bond and corporate related reserves in
long-term securities that carry a higher yield, with the intent to hold the investments to maturity.

Credit Risk: The Corporation’s investment guidelines and policies are designed to protect principal by
limiting credit risk. This is accomplished by making decisions based on a review of ratings, collateral, and
diversification requirements that vary according to the type of investment.

As of October 31, 2019, investments in Federal National Mortgage Association (“FNMA” or “Fannie
Mae”), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC” or “Freddie Mac™), Federal Home Loan
Bank (“FHLB”) and Federal Farm Credit Bank (“FFCB”) were rated by Standard & Poor’s and/or
Moody’s Investors Service (Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, FHLB and FFCB are collectively referred to as
“Agency”). Standard & Poor’s ratings for long-term and short-term were AA+ and A-1+, respectively.

Moody’s long-term and short term ratings were Aaa and P-1, respectively. Investments in Fannie Mae,
Freddie Mac, FHLB and FFCB are implicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government. They carry ratings
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equivalent to the credit ratings for the U.S. government. Some investments were not rated by Fitch Ratings.
Of the investments that were rated by Fitch Ratings, they carried ratings of AAA for long-term and F1+

for short-term. Money market accounts are either backed by collateral held by the provider or letters of
credit provided by third parties.

NYS/NYC municipal bonds-are usually the highest rated securities held at HDC. The ratings by Standard
& Poor’s ranged from AAA to A; Moody’s ranged from Aaa to Al and Fitch Ratings Service ranged from
AAA to AA. Money market, open time deposits and repurchase agreements in the form of OTDs are not
rated; however, the providers are rated.

Custodial Credit Risk: For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the Corporation will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of the outside party. Investment securities are exposed to custodial
credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the ngitne of the Corporation, and are held
by either the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department “or é?gent but not in the name of the
Corporation. The Corporation manages custodial credit rlsk ’ ::V_tff"{g its investments to highly rated
institutions and/or requiring high quality collateral be’] ld ‘by~the counterparty in the name of the
Corporation. o iR

As of October 31, 2019, open time deposi’ggigf \1;@1"2%\1,0111’14[ of $30,093,000, repurchase agreements in the
amount of $165,652,000, certificates of deposits in‘the amount of $581,579,000 and demand accounts in
the amount of $2,123,304,000 were_f{igllaté‘ralfi’zed by high quality instruments such as U.S. Treasury
Notes, U.S. Treasury Bills, and Ageﬁ; ihyestments and letters of credits held by the Corporation’s agent
in the name of the Corporation

'on of collateral supporting the demand accounts was in the form
of FHLB letters of credi

For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure the Corporation’s deposit
may not be returned to it. HDC bank deposits amounted to $39,967,000 at October 31, 2019, of which
$39,147,000 was uninsured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) and uncollateralized.
Correspondingly, $31,121,000 was secured in trust accounts, which are protected under state law and
$8,846,000 was held in demand deposit accounts (“DDA”). HDC limits its deposits to highly rated
institutions, and such deposits are either in trust accounts or partially insured through the FDIC. The
maximum coverage of $250,000 is available to depositors under the FDIC’s general deposit insurance
rules. All of the Corporation’s funds held in the DDA are subject to this provision.

Concentration of Credit Risk: The Corporation follows its annually adopted investment guidelines in
accordance with concentration limits and reviews. its credit concentration monthly. The Corporation’s
Credit Risk unit monitors concentration risk amongst issuers and reports regularly to the Members of the
Corporation’s Audit Committee.
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The following table shows issuers that represent 5 % or more of total investments at October 31, 2019

(in thousands):

Issuer Dollar Amount Percentage

NY Community Bank (*) $968,028 16.55%
Signature Bank (*) 732,636 12.52
FHLB 596,921 10.20
Customers Bank (*) 483,465 8.27
FHLMC ‘ 409,061 6.99
Sterling National Bank (*) 311,294 5.32
FFCB 306,555 5.24
Toronto-Dominion Bank (TD) 292,217 5.00

*Note: Either fully or partially covered by FHLB securities and/or FHLB letter of credit collateral held by the Corporation.

Note 4: Mortgage Loans

" The Corporation had outstanding, under various loan prograii m
$12,253,404,000 as of October 31, 2019 and 2018, 1‘esp_,e"f:?"‘fﬁ;iv:z
mortgage loans for which the Corporation has ad)_{a “
$274,801,000.0f loans funded from corporate re;,§er"
to any specific bonds or under any bond resolufit
under Note 19: Net Position. The portion of mirt

0,000 .4nd $2,781,199,000 at

itments”).

investments and amounted to $3,473
2018, respectively (see Note 16: “Co.
Changes in Mortgage Loans

ed

7

)

0]

Of gage loans of $13,790,266,000 and
HThese amounts represent the portion of
nonies. Of the total loans outstanding above,
s Were “hot restricted assets as they were not pledged
However, they are considered designated as defined
te loans that have not yet been advanced is recorded as
October 31, 2019 and October 31,

The changes in Mortgage L ;
(in thousands) Loan Participation

‘ Total Mortgage Receivable — The | Mortgage Loans

Loans City of New York (net)

Mortgage loans outstanding at October 3 1,2018 $13,300,654 $1,047,250 $12,253,404
Mortgage Advances 2,077,112 - 2,077,112
Other Additions* 201,125 6,804 194,321
Principal Collections (749,530) (14,953) (734,571)
Discount/Premium Amortized 6 - : 6
Mortgage loans outstanding at October 3 1,2019 14,829,367 1,039,101 13,790,266
NYC Loan Participation Interest Receivable 36,428 36,428 -
Total $14,865,795 $1,075,529 $13,790,266

*Loan assignments and capitalized interest,

-(4) New York City Housing Development Corporation

(i) The HDC mortgage loans listed above were originally repayable over terms of 2 to 50 years and bear
interest at rates from 1.00% to 10.36% per annum. Almost all mortgage loans receivable are collateralized
by first or second mortgages on the property of the housing sponsors and contain exculpatory clauses with
respect to the liability of the principals of such housing sponsors. The table above does not include loans
which are not secured by mortgages, which include a military housing loan and a loan to NYCHA, each
of which are secured by notes (see Note 5: “Notes Receivable), and loans secured by GNMA certificates
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(see Note 2C: “Purpose Tnvestments™). Of the total HDC mortgages including those that are in the
Mitchell-Lama programs held as of October 31, 2019, 64% are first mortgages and 36% are subordinate
loans. -

(ii) In fiscal year 2014, the Corporation entered into a new financing agreement with the FFB for selling
beneficial ownetship interests in mortgage loans originated by housing finance agencies and insured with
mortgage insurance provided by the Federal Housing Administration (“FHA”) pursuant to a risk sharing
agreement between FHA and such housing finance agency like the Corporation. The Corporation was
selected to be the first housing finance agency to participate in this new Federal initiative to reduce the
costs of capital for affordable housing. The Corporation acts as servicer of the loans and receives the
monthly mortgage payments from the borrower as pet the schedule of the Certificates of Participation.
The monthly loan principal and interest payment will be remitted to the FFB as per the schedule of the
Certificates of Participation. '

The mortgage loan participation program with the FFB had,

; le balance of $281,943,000 and
$284,769,000 at October 31, 2019 and October 31, 2018, r \’pe! y. For more details on the loans

included in the FEB Loan Participation program, see I}‘Io’cﬁ~ ) 6hds Payable and Debt Obligations”.

(B) Housing Assistance Corporation

The Housing Assistance Corporation ﬁn‘an d construction and capitalized interest costs for eight
affordable housing projects during the: _eriB"c%hé;f 1986 to 1990. These loans, funded by the City, accrue
interest at the rate of 0-1% per ann S

The cash flows from these lg used to provide funding for City directed subsidy programs.
Beginning in 2003, the ¢ om mortgage loan interest and the investment portfolio were not
sufficient to meet the pays requirements for the subsidy program. HDC’s Members approved fund
transfers from the Corporation to HAC for an amount at any one time not to exceed $10,000,000 in total

to cover the shortfall of payments required.

Tn order to continue to fund the City subsidy program for the project named Ruppert/Yorkville (RY
Subsidy Program”) and to repay HDC for the obligations, HAC’s Board Members approved the sale of
the remaining five mortgage loans in the HAC loan portfolio to HDC at its meeting on September 19,
2017. The total outstanding balance on these loans at the time of the loan sale was $32,400,000. The sale
raised $23,800,000 for HAC. This amount represented the discounted value of the future cash flow on the
purchased loans. A portion of the sale proceeds was used to repay HDC for outstanding obligations and
the remainder should be sufficient to continue to provide funds for the RY Subsidy Program through 2022.

In fiscal year 2016, The City of New York requested that the Corporation help facilitate the
implementation of the new affordable housing regime for Stuyvesant Town-Peter Cooper Village. On
December 15, 2015, HDC and Wells Fargo Bank entered into a Participation Agreement whereby HDC
funded a $143,236,000 subordinate loan to the purchasers of Stuyvesant Town-Peter Cooper Village. The
Corporation executed this transaction through its subsidiary HAC. This subordinate loan bears no interest
and is forgiven at the rate of 1/20™ per annum over its 20-year term. HDC will be reimbursed for this
transaction pursuant to a memorandum of understanding with the City. In fiscal year 2019, $7,162,000 of
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the Stuyvesant Town-Peter Cooper Village loan was forgiven according to the 20-year term stated in the
Participation Agreément. As of October 31, 2019, the outstanding mortgage loan balance was
$121,750,000 and HDC has received a total of $112,576,000 in Stuyvesant Town fund reimbursements
from the City to date.

In fiscal year 2017, a construction loan was closed for a project named BEC Continuum Resyndication.
One building at 145 Hart Street, Brooklyn, New York, with a loan commitment in the amount of $335,000
was financed by HAC. The mortgage loan had a balance of $317,000 as of October 31, 2019.

The total loan outstanding balance in HAC was $122,068,000 and $129,121,000 at October 31,2019 and
October 31, 2018, respectively.

Note 5: Notes Receivable

HDC has loans outstanding that are secured by notes and pledg%‘d revenues. Military Housing notes
receivable of $47,545,000 was received in connection Yy-_l;t}‘f‘ the,2004 Series A Class I & II Military
Housing Revenue Bond (Fort Hamilton LLC Project) ig,sﬁ‘ ce _,(\h%’"hotes are secured by pledged revenues
of the development under a Master Trust Indenture. F'he interest rate on the mortgage loan is a blended

A3

rate of 6.32% which is equal to the bond intergst ﬁg\te.wéﬂhe interest on the mortgage is collected semi-
annually on the debt service date. As of Qctd er 31, 2019, the outstanding Military Housing notes
receivable was $43,530,000. " i

During fiscal year 2013, notes geceiyable from NYCHA received in connection with the Corporation’s
2005 Series A Capital F ugﬂ*Prgg‘ #i'Revenue Bonds were replaced upon the issuance of the Corporation’s
2013 Series A Capital Fund Pfogram Revenue Bonds. As of October 31, 2019, the outstanding NYCHA

notes receivable relating tothe 2013 Series A Bonds was $111,950,000.

Tn addition to the NYCHA notes receivable of the 2013 Series A Bonds, the Corporation also agreed to
provide additional funds for a second note from NYCHA for the purpose of modernizing and making
capital improvements at NYCHA projects across the City. The Corporation issued the 2013 Series B
Capital Fund Program Revenue Bonds for this purpose. As of October 31, 2019, the outstanding NYCHA
notes receivable relating to the 2013 Series B Bonds was $396,981,000.

The 2013 Series A and B notes receivable are secured by a first priority pledge of NYCHA’s capital grant
money provided by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”).

Note 6: Loan Participation Receivable for The City of New York
In fiscal year 2002, the Corporation acquired interests in two real estate mortgage investment trusts in
commection with its housing activities. In addition, the Corporation entered into various agreements with

the City whereby HDC sold bonds and used the bond proceeds to purchase from the City interests in
various mortgage loans and pools of mortgage loans.
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In each of fiscal years 2002 and 2003, HDC used bond proceeds from its Multi-Family Housing Revenue
Bonds, 2002 Series D (the “2002 Series D Bonds™), and Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds, 2003
Series D (the “2003.Series D Bonds”), to purchase a subordinated position in a 100% participation interest
in a portion of the cash flows from a pool of mortgage loans the City had previously securitized in 1996.
This pool is known as the Sheridan Trust II and HDC’s purchased asset is the Sheridan Trust II Class B
Certificate. Upon completion of the 2003 transaction, HDC’s participation interest covered all of the
City’s cash flows from the Sheridan Trust IL In September 2005, the senior lien interests were satisfied
and HDC became the primary beneficiary of the Sheridan Trust II. At that time, therefore, the loan asset
was added to HDC’s statement of net position and was valued at its principal amount,

In 2006, the Corporation issued its Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds, 2006 Series A, which
refinanced its 2002 Series D and 2003 Series D Bonds. On May 1, 2014, the 2006 Series A bonds were
fully redeemed. Simultaneously, the Corporation issued the Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds, 2014
Series B-1 and 2014 Series B-2 (collectively, the “2014 Series B Bohds”) to re-securitize the remaining
underlying loan portfolio, which included the Sheridan TrustsIl;Class: B Certificate. At that time, the
Sheridan Trust I had a balance of $57,372,000. The Shqg'dﬁr?r i, along with the other remaining
underlying loans under the 2006 Series A Bonds totaling $Q%6’691 81000, were transferred to the 2014 Series
B Bonds. W

:
Y
R4

3
%

B »
amily Housing Revenue Bonds, 2018 Series B Bonds.

In April 2018, the Corporation issued its Mgl‘u' ‘
7e'a 100% participation interest in various pools of City

The proceeds were used to purchase and sé‘;g,\u 1:_)'
mortgage loans totaling $671,611,000,%2 e

Mhe Sheridan Trust I was $14,401,000. This balance is included

As of October 31, 2019, the balar
The City of New York™ which totaled $1,075,529,000 at October

under “Loan PamClpatlonR St

31, 2019. In each case, the “Ljoan Participation Receivable - The City of New York” are pledged to the
associated bonds but revert 1 the City when such bonds are retired (see Note 12: “Payable to The City of
New York™).

Note 7; Other Receivables

Other Receivables of $28,106,000 represent mortgage related fees, servicing fees receivable, Corporate
Services Fund loans not secured by mortgages on the properties, bond interest receivable from HUD, and
interest and servicing fees receivable on Department of Housing Preservation and Development (“HPD”)
Joans serviced (but not owned) by HDC.,

The Corporation continues to receive funds from the BPCA under the “Pay-as-You-Go” capital funds

program as directed by the City. The Corporation received $41,668,000 during this past fiscal year. As of
October 31, 2019, the Corporation received a total of $172,989,000 from the BPCA.
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Note 8: Other Non-Current Assets

On June 27, 2011, a trust created by the City was dissolved and the Corporation and the City entered into
the 2011 Participation Agreement. The trust when created consisted of a pledge of the income from
Interest Reduction Payment Contracts (“Section 236 Contracts”) from HUD on 32 developments. Under
the 2011 Participation Agreement, the Corporation holds a 100% participation interest in the second
mortgages and related Section 236 Contracts on the remaining properties. The Corporation paid the City
$10,266,000 as the purchase price, which represents the discounted value of the future cash flows (monthly
interest reduction payments). During fiscal year 2019, $1,767,000 was amortized and was recorded as a
non-operating expense. The unamortized value of the 2011 Participation Interest was $603,000 at October

31, 2019.

Note 9: Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources

(4) Interest Rate Cdps

The Corporation uses interest rate caps to mitigate its expo;

debt,

Y

G5y

%)
b

oy,

caps were:

restrate

At October 31, 2019, the fair values of all the
Current Effective Termination Cap Cap Fair Value
Trade Date Bonds Notional Amount :Colinterparty Date Date Strike Ceiling at 10/31/19
2008 Series K, as well as
similar outstanding Goldman
11/29/2005 variable rate bonds Sachs 12/2/2005 11/1/2032 7.35% 14.85% $27,000
2014 Series B-2, as el
as similar outstandirij
10/23/2014 yarjable rate bonds " Ji¥ 50,000,000 PNC 11/1/2014 11/1/2033 4.50% 7.50% 170,000
2002 Series C, as well as”
similar outstanding Barclays
7/30/2015 variable rate bonds 150,000,000 Bank 8/3/2015 11/1/2020 3.50% 8.00% -
2017 Series A-2, as well
as similar outstanding
10/16/2017 variable rate bonds 39,825,000 | U.S. Bank 2/1/2018 2/1/2023 3.25% 7.50% 17,000
Total Caps $378,540,000 $214,000
(B) Interest Rate Swaps

HDC has entered into certain interest rate swap contracts to manage the risk associated with the variable
rate bonds in its portfolio.

As of October 31, 2019, the fair value balances of the interest rate swaps were recognized as liabilities,
offset by deferred outflows of resources. The fair value for the derivative instruments is the estimated exit
price that assumes a transaction takes place in the market. The fair value recorded was derived from a
third-party source as listed below as of October 31, 2019.
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' Notional
Description Classification Fair Value Amount | Classification Amount
Cash flow hedges:
Pay-Fixed interest rate swap Deferred Outflow ($2,401,000) Debt $65,630,000
Pay-Fixed interest rate swap Deferred Outflow (3,982,000) Debt 85,000,000
Pay-Fixed interest rate swap Deferred Qutflow (21,000) Debt. . 50,000,000
Pay-Fixed interest rate swap Deferred Outflow (6,432,000) Debt 54,126,000
Pay-Fixed interest rate swap Deferred Outflow (15,756,000) Debt 100,000,000
Pay-Fixed interest rate swap Deferred Outflow (11,098,000) Debt 75,000,000
Pay-Fixed interest rate swap Deferred Outflow (8,356,000) Debt 75,000,000
Pay-Fixed interest rate swap Deferred Outflow (20,244,000) Debt 184,000,000
Pay-Fixed interest rate swap Deferred Outflow (14,291,000) Debt 98,895,000
Pay-Fixed interest rate swap Deferred Outflow (20,326,000) Debt 135,460,000
Total Swaps ~ ($102,907,o“"0‘“)‘“=‘23 $923,111,000

i
B

At October 31, 2019 the total fair value of the interest rate:s Wap mounted to ($102,907,000) and were
valued using other significant observable inputs (Level 21 1n uts).

31, 2019.
Counter-
party Rating
Trade Counter- Effective Termination Moody’s
Date Type Objective party Term Date Date [S&P
Hedge of changes in}
20
Fargo in accordance Pay 2.24%;
Pay-Fixed | withthe receive 100%
interest participation 3M LIBOR;
7/26/2016 | rate swap | agreement $65,630,000 | Wells Fargo | CX1.-8/1/2031 8/1/2019 5/1/2047 Aa2/A+
Hedge of changes in ’
cash flows for 2016
Series G-2 bonds, Pay 2.029%;
Pay-Fixed | aswell as similar receive 100%
interest | outstanding variable 3MLIBOR;
11/2/2016 | rateswap | rate bonds 85,000,000 | PNCBank | 7.50% Ceiling 5/1/2018 11/1/2035 A2/A
Pay-Fixed | Hedge of changes in Pay 1.2028%;
interest cash flows for 2017 receive 70%
4/4/2017 rate swap | Series A-3 bonds 50,000,000 PNC Bank IM LIBOR 6/1/2017 8/1/2020 A2/A
. Hedge of changes in
cash flows for 2017 Pay 2.984%;
Pay-Fixed | Series C-4 bonds receive 100%
interest (FFB Lexington 3M LIBOR;
7/5/2017 rate swap | Gardens) 54,126,000 | Wells Fargo | CX1L-2/1/2033 2/1/2021 5/1/2048 Aa2/A+
Pay 3.0949%;
Pay-Fixed | Hedge of changes in receive 100%
interest cash flows for 2018 3M LIBOR;
4/5/2018 | rateswap | Series B-2 bonds 100,000,000 | PNCBank | CXL-2/1/2034 2/1/2019 5/1/2046 A2/A
Hedge of changes in
Pay-Fixed | cash flows for Pay 3.022%;
interest overall FHLB receive 100%
8/10/2018 | rate swap | variable rate bonds 75,000,000 | Wells Fargo | 3M LIBOR 2/1/2019 2/1/2036 Ae2/A+
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Counter-
party Rating
Trade Notional Counter- Effective Termination Moody’s
Date . Type Objective Amount party . Term Date Date . [IS&P
Hedge of changes in Pay 2.367%; '
Pay-Fixed | cash flows for receive 100%
interest variable rate : : SIFMA,;
8/10/2018 | rateswap | SIFMA index bonds 75,000,000 | Wells Fargo | CXIL.-8/ 1/2039 8/1/2019 5/1/2059 Aa2/At+
Hedge of changes in ' Pay 2.538%;
Pay-Fixed { cash flows for receive 77.5%
interest outstanding variable Royal Bank | IMLIBOR
12/14/2018 | rate swap - | rate bonds 184,000,000 Canada CX1-12/1/2038 5/1/2024 5/1/2050 Aa2/AA-
Hedge of changes in Pay 2.5017%;
Pay-Fixed | cash flows for receive 77.5%
interest interest rate risk IMLIBOR .
12/18/2018 | rateswap | during construction 98,895,000 Citibank CXL-12/1/2038 7/1/2022 5/1/2051 Aa3/A+
Hedge of changes in
Pay-Fixed | cash flows for Pay 2.9563%;
interest interest rate risk receive 100%
12/19/2018 | rateswap | during construction 135,460,000 Citibank 3M LIBOR 1/1/2021 11/1/2038 Aa3/A+
Total Swaps ' $923,111,000

Credit Risk: HDC is exposed to credit risk on hedging de,r atiy %ﬁs’fruments. To mitigate the risk, HDC
requires the swap be collateralized by the counterparty ifytheé counterparty’s credit rating falls below
Baal/BBB+. At October 31, 2019, the counterpéﬁ'tj} b‘ra\tm\és were above the threshold; therefore, no
collateral was required. L

arty;,may terminate the swap if the other party fails to perform
ime ‘of the termination, the fair value of the swap is negative,
41ty for a payment equal to the fair value of the instrument. To
mitigate this termination risk  agreement provides that the counterparty may terminate the swap
only if HDC’s rating falls,b investment grade (Baa3 or BBB-) for PNC and Baa2 or BBB for Wells
Fargo. HDC’s current ratings‘are Aal and AA+, respectively.

Termination Risk: HDC or the counf;
under the terms of the contract. If ai
HDC would be liable to the coun

Interest Rate Risk: HDC is exposed to interest rate risk on the pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate
swaps. As LIBOR decreases, HDC’s net payments on such swaps increase.

Buasis Risk: HDC is exposed to basis risk on its pay-fixed interest rate swaps, because the variable-rate
payments received by HDC on these derivative instruments are on a rate other than rates HDC pays on its
‘hedged variable-rate debt. Under the terms of its fixed rate swap transactions, HDC pays a variable rate
on its bonds based on the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) and U.S.
Treasury, but receives a variable rate on the swaps based on a percentage of LIBOR plus basis points.

Rollover Risk: HDC is exposed to rollover risk on hedging derivative instruments should a termination
event occur prior to the maturity of the hedged debt.

(C) Deferred Loss on Early Retirement of Debt
On September 10, 2013, the 2005 Series A Capital Fund Program Revenue Bonds F(N YCHA) were retired

through an advance refunding and the Corporation incurred a loss in the amount of $8,958,000 which will
be amortized over the shorter of the life of the old bonds or the new bonds. At October 31, 2019, the
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balance of the unamortized deferred loss on early retitement of debt was $4,920,000. This loss was
covered by NYCHA as a part of this transaction.

(D) Pension

At October 31, 2019, the Corporation’s pension contribution after the measurement date was $2,128,000.
In addition, as calculated by the NYCOA, the Corporation recorded a net increase in Deferred Outflows
of Resources in the amount of $1,369,000 (as per New York City Employees’ Retirement System
(“NYCERS”) pension report). This amount represents the net difference between expected and actual -
* experience, the change in assumptions and changes in proportionate share. The outstanding balance of
Deferred Outflows of Resources was $3,264,000 and $1,588,000 at October 31, 2019 and at October 31,
2018, respectively. The Corporation recorded a net increase in Deferred Inflows of Resources in the
amount of $380,000. This amount represents the net difference between expected and actual experience,
the change in assumptions, changes in proportionate share and the giet difference between proj ected and
actual investment earnings on pension plan investments. The outstahding balance of Deferred Inflows of
Resources was $1,737,000 and $1,356,000 at October 3 1,29 ctober 31, 2018, respectively.

4 at’®

AR
19 an
b

(E) OPEB

As of November 1, 2016, HDC adopted GA: “Statement No. 75, “Accounting and F inancial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Ren y pnﬁ"’. HDC reported Deferred Outflows of Resources of
$1,025,000 and Deferred Inflows of Riésources:of $8,785,000 related to OPEB as of October 31,2019 (see
Note 14 for more details). i, iy

ey

Note 10: Bonds Payable #1id:Bebt‘Obligations
R

The Corporation's authority 10 issue bonds and notes for any corporate purpose is limited by the Act to the
extent that (i) the aggregate principal amount outstanding may not exceed $14.5 billion, exclusive of
refunding bonds or notes, and (ii) the maximum Capital Reserve Fund requirement may not exceed $85
million. No bonds are currently subjected to the Capital Reserve Fund requirement. These limits may be
changed from time to time through State legislation. During the year ended October 31, 2019, the limit on
the aggregate principal amount outstanding was increased to $14.5 billion, :

Bond Programs

The Corporation issues bonds and notes to fund mortgage loans for multi-family residential developments
under the bond programs described below. As of October 31, 20 19, the Corporation had bonds outstanding
in the aggregate principal amount of $12,109,829,000. All of the bonds are separately secured, except for
the bonds issued under the General Resolution which are equally and ratably secured by the assets pledged
under the General Resolution (see “C. Housing Revenue Bond Program’ below). None of the bonds under
the bond programs described in “4. Multi-Family Mortgage Revenue Bond Program’”, “B. Military
Housing Revenue Bond Program”, “D. Liberty Bond Program”, “E. Capital Fund Revenue Bond
Program” and, “F. Multi-Family Housing Pass-Through Revenue Bond Program” provide security under
the General Resolution, and none of the bonds under these programs are secured by the General
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Resolution.

A, Multi-Family Mortgage Revenue Bond Program. The Corporation established its Multi-Family
Program to develop privately-owned multi-family housing, all or a portion of which is reserved for low
income tenants. The following describes the Corporation’s activities under its Multi-Family Program.

(1) Rental Projects; Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac Enhanced: The Corporation has issued tax-exempt and/or
taxable bonds which either (i) are secured by mortgage Joan payments, which payments are secured by
obligations of Fannie Mae under various collateral agreements, (ii) are secured by a Direct Pay Credit
Enhancement Instrument issued by Fannie Mae or (iii) are secured by a Direct Pay Credit Enhancement
Agreement with Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“Freddie Mac”).

(2) Rental Projects; Letter of Credit Enhanced: The Corporation has issued tax-exempt and/or taxable
bonds to finance a number of mixed income projects and entirely loWzincome projects, which bonds are

- . 0, AT,
secured by letters of credit issued by investment-grade rated com cia] lending institutions.
; A I e

£

(3) Residential Housing; Credit Enhanced: The Cgrﬁéggtiofg has issued bonds to provide financing for
residential facilities for hospital staff and for pe t-§§pori‘dary students, faculty and staff which bonds are
secured by letters of credit issued by investment-g de rated institutions.

poratiorhas issued bonds and obligations to provide financing for
s are not rated by a rating agency and were not publicly offered.

(4) Rental Projects; Not Rated: The ¢
rental projects, which bonds and ob

Security Program: Under this program, the Corporation has issued

(5) Commercial Mort gage B
al mortgage backed securities to refinance a multi-family el

bonds structured as commer
development.

B. Military Housing Revenue Bond Program. Under this program, the Corporation has issued taxable
obligations in order to fund a portion of the cost of the design, demolition, renovation, construction and
operation of housing units in residential family housing areas located at Fort Hamilton.

C Housing Revenue Bond Program. Under its Housing Revenue Bond Program, the Corporation may
issue bonds payable solely from and secured by the assets held under its General Resolution which include
a pool of mortgage loans, some of which are construction loans (which pool contains FHA-insured
mortgage loans, REMIC-insured mortgage loans, State of New York Mortgage Agency (“SONYMA”)
insured mortgage loans, GNMA mortgage-backed secutities, other mortgage loans and participation
interests in mortgage loans), the revenues received on account of all such loans and securities, and other
assets pledged under such resolution and any supplemental resolution for a particular series of bonds.
Certain of the projects, which secure a portion of the mortgage loans, receive the benefits of subsidy
payments.

D. Liberty Bond Program. In accordance with Section 301 of the Job Creation and Worker Assistance Act
of 2002, the Corporation has issued tax-exempt and taxable bonds, each secured by a letter of credit to

41



New York City Housing Development Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
October 31,2019

finance the development of multi-family housing within an area of lower Manhattan designated in such
legislation as the “Liberty Zone”.

E. Capital Fund Revenue Bond Program. Under this program, the Corporation has issued tax-exempt
obligations in order to assist NYCHA with the execution of a multi-year construction initiative that
addressed critical capital improvement needs of their aging housing portfolio.

F. Pass-Through Revenue Bond Program. Under this program, the Corporation has issued bonds to
finance loans evidenced by a note and secured by a mortgage of privately-owned multi-family housing.
All repayments and prepayments derived from the associated mortgage loans, including a payment of
insurance, if any, are passed through to the bondholder to redeem the bonds on a monthly basis.

Changes in Bonds Payable:
(in thousands)

The summary of changes in Bonds Payable was as follows:

Bonds Payable outstanding at October 31, 2018 $11,274,873
Bonds Issued 2,216,745
Bond Principal Retired (1,356,226)
Net Premium/Discount on Bonds Payable: (3,959)

Bonds Payable outstanding at October 31, 2019, $12,131,433

Details of changes in HDC bonds pay: }"eafor the year ended October 31, 2019 were as follows:

Description of Bonds as Issu¢

Balance at

Issued

Retired

Balance at

(in thousands)

Oct. 31,2018

Oct. 31,2019

MULTI-FAMILY MORTGAGE REVENUE BOND
PROGRAM: ' :

Multi-Family Rental Housing Revenue Bonds — Rental
Projects; Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac Enhanced

1999 Series A (AMT) Brittany Development Project —
1.14% to 2.44% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2029

$49,300

($700)

$48,600

7000 Series A (AMT) Related-West 89th Street
Development — 1.16% to 2.21% Variable Rate Bonds
due upon demand through 2029

53,000

53,000

2001 Series A Queenswood Refunding — 1.12% to
2.39% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through
2031

10,600

(400)

10,200
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Description of Bonds as Issued

Balance at
Oct. 31,2018

Issued

Retired

Balance at
Oct. 31, 2019

(in thousands)

2001 Series A (AMT) Related-Lyric Development —
1.14% to 2.44% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2031

85,000

85,000

2001 Series B (Federally Taxable) Related-Lyric
Development ~ 1.83% to 2.45% Variable Rate Bonds
due upon demand through 2031

(300)

3,400

2002 Series A (AMT) The Foundry — 1.14% to 2.44%
Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through 2032

55,100

2003 Series A (AMT) Related-Sierra Development —
1.14% to 2.44% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2033

56,000

2004 Series A (AMT) Related-Westport Development
— 1.14% to 2.44% Variable Rate Bonds due upon
demand through 2034

110,000

due upon demand through 2034

2004 Series B (Federally Taxable) Related- Westport |
Development — 1.83% to 2.45% Variable Rate Bonds u

i

10,800

(1,000)

9,800

2005 Series A Royal Charter Prop
2.39% Variable Rate Bonds dut
2035

89,200

(1,000)

88,200

2005 Series A (AMT) Atlantic Court Apartments —
1.14% to 2.44% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2035

83,700

83,700

2005 Series B (Federally Taxable) Atlantic Court
Apartments — 1.83% to 2.45% Variable Rate Bonds due
upon demand through 2035

6,500

(2,000)

4,500

2005 Series A The Nicole Development — Variable
Rate Bonds remarketed to 3.42% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2035

54,600

54,600

2005 Series B (Federally Taxable) The Nicole
Development — 2.22% to 2.45% Variable Rate Bonds
due upon demand through 2035

1,600

(1,600)

2006 Series A (AMT) Rivereast Apartments — 1.15% to
2.42% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through
2036

50,000

50,000
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Description of Bonds 4s Issued

Balance at
Oct. 31, 2018

Issued

Retired

Balance at
Oct. 31,2019

(in tho_usands)

2006 Series A (AMT) Seaview Towers — 3.70% to

14,675

(680)

13,995

4.75% Fixed Rate Seri'al and Term Bonds due 2039

2007 Series A (AMT) Ocean Gate Development —
1.14% to 2.45% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand

8,445

8,445

through 2040

2007 Series B (AMT) Ocean Gate Development —
4.80% to 5.35% Fixed Rate Term Bonds due 2025

8,210

7,245

2007 Series A (AMT) 155 West 21st Street Apartments
~ 1.16% to 2.21% Variable Rate Bonds due upon

37,900

demand through 2037~

Apartments — 1.88% to 2.47% Variable Rate Bonds due
upon demand through 2037

2007 Series B (Federaliy Taxable) 155 West 21st Street

(900)

8,200

2008 Series A (AMT) Linden Plaza — 1.14% to 2.45% 4

(1,995)

56,240

Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through 20

2009 Series A Gateway Apartments — 2.65f
Fixed Rate Term Bonds due 2025

20,025

(325)

19,700

2009 Series A The Balton - 1 089 ;
Rate Bonds due upon demand:through

29,750

29,750

2009 Series A Lexington Courts — 1.07% to 2.37%
Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through 2039

17,600

(1,000)

16,600

2014 Series A-1 NYCHA Triborough Preservation
Development — 0.55% to 3.95% Fixed Rate Serial and
Term Bonds due 2044

223,775

(3,435)

220,340

2019 Series A (Federally Taxable) The Nicole —3.90%
Fixed Rate Term Bonds due 2035

4,400

4,400

Multi-Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds — Rental
Project; Fannie Mae or Freddie Mae Enhanced

2001 Series A (AMT) West 48th Street — 1.14% to
2.44% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through
2034

19,100

(500)

18,600

2004 Series A (AMT) Aldus Street Apartments —
1.15% to 2.42% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2037

8,100

8,100
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Description of Bonds as Issued

Balance at
Oct. 31,2018

Issued

Retired

Balance at
QOct. 31, 2019

(in thousands)

2004 Series A (AMT) 941 Hoe Avenue Apartments —
1.15% to 2.42% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2037

6,660

6,660

2004 Series A (AMT) -Peter Cintron Apartments —
1.15% to 2.42% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand

7,840

7,840

through 2037

2004 Series A (AMT) State Renaissance Court—1.15%
to 2.42% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2037

35,200

35,200

2004 Series A (AMT) Louis Nine Boulevard
Apartments — 1.16% to 2.21% Variable Rate Bonds due

7,300

upon demand through 2037

2004 Series A (AMT) Courtlandt Avenue Apartments
— 1.20% to 2.21% Variable Rate Bonds due upon
demand through 2037

7,905

2004 Series A (AMT) Ogden Avenue Apartments, —
1.16% to 2.43% Variable Rate Bonds due uj
through 2038 ¢

ey,
emand’

4,760

4,760

Ay

2004 Series A (AMT) Nagle Courtyar Partments —
1.16% to 2.43% Variable Rate Bonds die upon demand
through 2038 . *

4,200

4,200

2005 Series A (AMT) Morris Avenue Apartments —
1.15% to 2.42% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2038

14,700

14,700

2005 Series A (AMT) Vyse Avenue Apartments —
1.16% to 2.43% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2038

4,335

4,335

2005 Series A (AMT) 33 West Tremont Avenue
Apartments — 1.16% to 2.43% Variable Rate Bonds due
upon demand through 2038

3,490

3,490

2005 Series A (AMT) Ogden Avenue Apartments -
1.14% to 2.45% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2038

2,500

2,500

2005 Series A (AMT) White Plains Courtyard
Apartments — 1.14% to 2.45% Variable Rate Bonds due

4,900

4,900

upon demand through 2038
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Description of Bonds as Issued

Balance at
Oct. 31,2018

Issued

Retired

Balance at

| Oct. 31,2019

(in thousands)

2005 Series A (AMT) Highbridge Apartments — 1.24%
to 1.81% Variable Rate. Bonds due upon demand
through 2039

13,600

(13,600)

2005 Series A (AMT) 89 Murray Street Development
~ 1.14% to 2.44% Variable Rate Bonds due upon
demand through 2039

49,800

49,800

2005 Series A (AMT) 270 East Burnside Avenue
Apartments — 1.16% to 2.21% Variable Rate Bonds due
upon demand through 2039

6,400

6,400

2006 Series A (AMT) Reverend Ruben Diaz Gardens
Apartments — 1.15% t0,2.42% Variable Rate Bonds due
upon demand through 2038

6,400

2006 Series A (AMT) Villa Avenue Apartments —

through 2039

1.15% to 2.42% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand |

5,990

2006 Series A (AMT) Bathgate Avenue Ap
1.16% to 2.43% Variable Rate Bonds due u
through 2039

qg"tmen’gs —

. e, 1 6]
demand’

4,435

4,435

2006 Series A (AMT) Spring G
— 1.14% to 2.44% Variable, R:
demand through 2039 .

.

24,000

24,000

2006 Series A (AMT) Linden Boulevard Apartments —
3.90% to 4.75% Fixed Rate Serial and Term Bonds due
12039

11,735

(315)

11,420

2006 Series A (AMT) Markham Garden Apartments —
1.14% to 2.44% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand

16,000

16,000

through 2040

7008 Series A 245 East 124th Street — Variable Rate
Bonds remarketed to 2:10% Fixed Rate Term Bonds
due 2046

35,400

35,400

7008 Series A Bruckner by the Bridge — 1.10% to
2.38% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through
2048

36,800

36,800

2008 Series A Hewitt House Apartments — 1.13% to
2.25% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through
2048

4,100

4,100
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Description of Bonds as Issued

Balance at

Oct. 31,2018

Issued

Retired

Balance at
QOct. 31, 2019

(in thousands)

2010 Series A Eliot Chelsea Development — 1.07% to
2.37% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through
2043 ‘

40,750

40,750

2011 Series A (AMT) West 26th Street Development —
1.13% to 2.40% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2041

28,700

28,700

2011 Series B West 26th Street Development — 1.09%
to 2.35% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2045

8,470

8,470

2012 Series A West 26th Street Development — 1.09%
to 2.35% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2045 '

41,530

Multi-Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds — Rental
Project, Letter of Credit Enhanced

2003 Series A (AMT) Related-Upper East — 1 20%”[0

2036

2.17% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through 1}

67,000

67,000

2003 Series B (Federally Taxable) Rel
— 1.95% to 2.55% Variables
demand through 2036

3,000

3,000

2004 Series A (AMT) Manhattan Court Development —
1.15% to 2.41% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2036

17,500

17,500

2004 Series A (AMT) East 165th Street Development
~ 1.15% to 2.41% Variable Rate Bonds due upon
demand through 2036 .

7,665

7,665

2004 Series A (AMT) Parkview Apartments —1.17% to
2.22% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through
2036

5,935

5,935

2005 Series A (AMT) 2007 LaFontaine Avenue
Apartments — 1.20% t0 2.42% Variable Rate Bonds due
upon demand through 2037

3,825

3,825

2005 Series A (AMT) La Casa del Sol Apartments —
1.15% to 2.45% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand

through 2037

4,250

(100)

4,150
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Description of Bonds as Issued

Balance at
Oct. 31,2018

Issued

Retired

Balance at
Oct. 31, 2019

(in thousands)

— 1.16% to 2.21% Variable Rate Bonds.due upon
demand through 2037 .

2005 Series A (AMT) 15 East Clarke Place Apartments -

5,330

(100)

5,230

2005 Series A (AMT) Urban Horizons II Development
— 1.15% to 2.45% Variable Rate Bonds due upon
demand through 2038

4,965

(100)

4,865

2005 Series A (AMT) 1090 Franklin Avenue
Apartments — 1.15% t0 2.45% Variable Rate Bonds due
upon demand through 2037

2,320

2,320

to 245% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2037

2005 Series A (AMT) Parkview II Apartments —1.15% |

4,255

2006 Series A (AMT) Granville Payne Apartments —

through 2039

1.15% to 2.41% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand |,

5,560

2006 Series A (AMT) Beacon Mews Developme
1.16% to 2.21% Variable Rate Bonds due up
through 2039

emand|

23,500

23,500

2006 Series A (AMT) Granite™T
1.16% to 2.42% Variable RateBon 5 due upon demand
through 2038

4,060

4,060

2006 Series A (AMT) Intervale Gardens Apartments —
1.16% to 2.42% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2038

3,115

3,115

2006 Series A (AMT) 500 East 165th Street
Apartments — 1.15% to 2.44% Variable Rate Bonds due
upon demand through 2039

7255

7,255

2006 Series A (AMT) 1405 Fifth Avenue Apartments
— 1.15% to 2.41% Variable Rate Bonds due upon
demand through 2039

14,190

14,190

2007 Series A (AMT) 550 East 170th Street
Apartments — 1.19% to 2.41% Variable Rate Bonds due

5,500

5,500

upon demand through 2042

2007 Series A (AMT) Susan’s Court— 1.15% to 2.45%
Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through 2039

24,000

24,000
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Balance at Balance at
Description of Bonds as Issued Oct. 31,2018 Issued Retired Oct, 31, 2019
(in thousands)
2007 Series A (AMT) The Dorado Apartments —1.15%
to 245% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand ‘
through 2040 ' 3,470 — — 3,470
2007 Series A (AMT) Boricua Village Apartments Site
A-2 - 1.17% to 2.22% Variable Rate Bonds due upon
demand through 2042 4,250 — — 4,250
2007 Series A (AMT) Boricua Village Apartments Site
C — 1.16% to 2.21% Variable Rate Bonds due upon
demand through 2042 — 6,665
2007 Series A (AMT) Cook Sireet Apartments —1.15%
to 2.45% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2040 ' ' (100) 4,080
2008 Series A (AMT) Las Casas Development — 1.13%
to 2.47% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand |,
through 2040 / — 19,200
2010 Series A 101 Avenue D Apartments
3.75% Variable Rate Bonds due upon dem?
2043 22,700 — — 22,700
Residential Revenue Bonds,
Letter of Credit Enhanced
2012 Series A College of Staten island Residences —
2.00% to 4.15% Fixed Rate Serial and Term Bonds due
2046 64,340 — (800) 63,540
Multi-Family Morigage Revenue Bonds — Rental
Project; Not Rated
2007 Series A Queens Family Courthouse Apartments
— 5.41% Fixed Rate Term Bonds due 2047 40,000 — — 40,000
3016 Series A 148th Street Jamaica — 3.40% to 3.91% .
Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through 2056 22,130 — — 22,130
2016 Series A (Federally Taxable) Queens Family
Courthouse Apartments — 5.97% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2047 15,000 — — 15,000
2019 Serjes A 535 Carlton Avenue — 4.08% to 6.35%
Term Rate Term Bonds due 2027 — 73,000 — 73,000
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Serial and Term Bonds due 2036

' _ Balance at Balance at
Description of Bonds as Issued Oct. 31,2018 Issued Retired Oct. 31, 2019
(in thousands)

Multi-Family Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities
2014 Series A, B and C - 8 Spruce Street (Federally
Taxable) —3.71% to 3.93% Fixed Rate Term Bonds due
2048 346,100 — — 346,100
Total Multi-Family Mprtgage Revenue Bonds 2,373,175 77,400 (31,915) 2,418,660
MILITARY HOUSING REVENUE BOND
PROGRAM:
2004 Series A (Federally Taxable) Class I & II Fort
Hamilton Housing LLC Project — 5.60% to 6.72%
Fixed Rate Term Bonds due 2049 3 (465) 43,530
Total Military Housing Revenue Bond Program (465) 43,530
HOUSING REVENUE BOND PROGRAM:
Multi-Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds Under}; the,
Corporation’s General Resolution, assets pledgedyo |
bondholders in a pool of morigage loans. i
1998 Series A (Federally Taxable) - d Rate
Term Bonds due 2030 100 — — 100
1998 Series B — 3.75% to 5.25%;Fixed Rate Serial and
Term Bonds due 2031 100 — — 100
1999 Series A-1 (Federally Taxable) —5.83% to 6,06%
Fixed Rate Term Bonds due 2022, 5,185 — (1,200) 3,985
1999 Series C (AMT) — 4.40% to 5.70% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2031 115 — — 115
1999 Series E — 4.40% to 6.25% Fixed Rate Serial and .
Term Bonds due 2036 100 — — 100
2002 Series C (Federally Taxable) — 2.45% to 2.77%
Index Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2034 38,180 — (1,325) 36,855
2003 Series B-2 (AMT) — 2.00% to 4.60% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2036 , 100 — — 100
2003 Series E-2 (AMT) — 2.25% to 5.05% Fixed Rate

100 — — 100
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Balance at Balance at
Description of Bonds as Issued Oct. 31,2018 Issued Retired . Qct. 31, 2019
(in thousands) :
2006 Series J-1 — Index ,Floating Rate Term Bonds
remarketed to 3.50% Term Rate Term Bonds due 2046 100,000 — 100,000
2007 Serics A (Federally Taxable) — 5.26% to 5.52%
Fixed Rate Term Bonds due 2041 23,060 — (475) 22,585
2008 Series C-2 (Federally Taxable) —3.55% to 5.69%
Fixed Rate Serial and Term Bonds due 2018 330 — (330) —
2008 Series E (Federally Taxable) — 2.45% to 2.77%
Index Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2037 (2,065) 84,365
2008 Series F (Federally Taxable) —2.45% to 2.77%
Index Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2041 (1,325) 70,305
2008 Series J (Federally Taxable) — 2.86% to 3.35%
Index Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2043 4 (520) 28,600
2008 Series K (Federally Taxable) — 2.86% to 3.35% \
Index Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2043 g T 69470 — (2,915) 66,555
2008 Series M- 3.15% to 6.88% Fixed Rafe]
Term Bonds due 2038 25,830 — (25,830) —
2009 Series A — 2.00% to, 4
Bonds due 2019 3 870 — (575) 295
2009 Series C-1 — 2.50% to 5.70% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2046 105,415 — (105,415) —
2009 Series F — 1,95% to 4.85% Fixed Rate Serial and
Term Bonds due 2041 5,300 — (5,300) —
2009 Series I-1 (Federally Taxable) — 5.63% to 6.42%
Fixed Rate Term Bonds due 2039 : 50,000 — (50,000) —
2009 Series I-2 (Federally Taxable) —2.73% to 3.22%
Index Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2039 25,000 — (2,985) 22,015
2009 Series.J —0.70% to 4.80% Fixed Rate Serial and
Term Bonds due 2036 18,835 — (18,835) —
2009 Series K — 1.95% to 4.95% Fixed Rate Serial and
Term Bonds due 2039 67,515 — (67,515) —
2009 Series L-1 — 1.65% to 4.95% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2043 21,895 — (415) 21,480
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Balance at Balance at

Description of Bonds as Issued Oct, 31, 2018 Issued Retired Oct. 31, 2019
(in thousands) .
2009 Series M — 1.85% to 5.15% Fixed Rate Serial and .
Term Bonds due 2045, 30,060 — (30,060) —
2010 Series A-1 — 3.35% to 4.90% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2041 25,325 — — 25,325
2010 Seriss A-2 (Federally Taxable) — 3.67% to 4.97% : ,

| Fixed Rate Term Bonds due 2019 _ 600 — (600) —
2010 Series C — 1.50% to 4.95% Fixed Rate Serial and .
Term Bonds due 2047 13,700 — (215) 13,485
2010 Series D-1-A — 1.60% to 5.00% Fixed Rate Serial :
and Term Bonds due 2042 (610) 29,085
2010 Series E — 0.80% to 3.85% Fixed Rate Serial and
Term Bonds due 2019 (860) 445
2010 Series F — 1.70% to 4.75% Fixed Rate Serial and ;
Term Bonds due 2030 ¢ 3,130 — (200) 2,930
2010 Sories G — 0.40% to 4.75% Fixed Rl |
Term Bonds due 2041 33,960 — (2,115) 31,845
2010 Series H (Federally Tax&bl '
Index Floating Rate Term Bo __ds 28,695 — (6,125) 22,570
2010 Ser1es J-1 — 0.75% to 5.00% Fixed Rate Serial
Bonds due 2022 . 10,215 — (2,080) 8,135
2010 Series K-1 — 2.05% to 5.25% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2032 4,560 — (170) 4,390
2010 Series L-1 — 2.35% to 5.00% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2026 9,990 — (950) 9,040
2010 Series N — 0.60% to 4.25% Fixed Rate Serial
Bonds due 2021 , 1,580 — (560) 1,020
7011 Series B-1 — 0.50% to 3.65% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2018 315 — (315) —
2011 Series C —2.25% to 4.50% Fixed Rate Ser1al and
Term Bonds due 2022 1,190 — (250) 940
2011 Series D — 0.28% to 3.37% Fixed Rate Serial and
Term Bonds due 2020 1,555 — (605) 950
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Balance at Balance at
Description of Bonds as Issued Oct. 31,2018 Issued Retired Oct. 31,2019
(in thousands)
2011 SeriesE -1 40% to 4. 93% Fixed Rate Serlal and 4 .
Term Bonds due 2036 15,145 — (600) 14,545
2011 Series F-1 (Federally Taxable) — 0.29% to 3.47%
Fixed Rate Serial Bonds due 2018 2,250 — (2,250) —
2011 Series F-2 (Federally Taxable) —2.73% to 3.22% .
Index Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2040 48,355 — (15,810) 32,545
2011 Series F-3 (Federally Taxable) — 2.73% to 3.22% :
Index Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2040 (1,635) 10,905
2011 Series G-2-A—0. 35% t0 3.10% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2021 (3,540) 9,110
2011 Series H-2-A —1.10% to 4.40% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2031 (1,275) 16,960
2011 Series H-2-B —4.00% to 4.40% Fixed Rate Term '
Bonds due 2031 15,970 — — 15,970
2011 Series H-3-B — 2.51% Fixed Rate
due 2022 6,340 — (1,320) 5,020
2011 Series J-1 — 4.00% to.
Bonds due 2044 38,345 — — 38,345
2011 Series J-2 — 1.55% to 2.55% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2022 4,115 — (860) 3,255
2012 Series B (Federally Taxable) — 0.66% to 3.93%
Fixed Rate Serial Bonds due 2025 25,590 — (3,075) 22,515
2012 Series D-1-A — 0.80% to 4.30% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2045 47,960 — (255) 47,705
2012 Series D-1-B — 0.35% to 4.30% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2045 76,375 — (2,055) 74,320
2012 Series E (Federally Taxable) — 0.34% to 4.40%
Fixed Rate Serial and Term Bonds due 2032 55,875 — (3,135) 52,740
2012 Series F — 0.80% to 3.90% Fixed Rate Serial and
Term Bonds due 2045 37,300 — (825) 36,475
2012 Series G — 0.95% to 3.90% Fixed Rate Serial and
Term Bonds due 2045 30,435 — (700) 29,735
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) Balance at Balance at
Description of Bonds as Issued Oct. 31,2018 Issued Retired QOct. 31, 2019
(in thousands) ' ' : :
2012 Sories H — 025% fo 1.60% Fixed Rate Serial
Bonds due 2018 ‘ 390 — (390) —
2012 Series I (Federally Taxable) — 0.40% to 4.49%
Fixed Rate Serial and Term Bonds due 2044 53,145 — (6,205) 46,940
2012 Series K-1-A —0,45% to 4.00% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2045 90,175 — (1,965) 88,210
2012 Series L-1 — 1.80% to 3.90% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2042 12,390 — (85) 12,305
2012 Series L-2-A — 0.30% to 4.00% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2044 (570) 99,600
2012 Series L=2-B (AMT) — 2.30% to 3.60% Fixed
Rate Serial and Term Bonds due 2026 (130) 1,930
3012 Series M-2 — 1.10% to 4.00% Fixed Rate Serial |
and Term Bonds due 2047 9,475 — (190) 9,285
2012 Series M-3 — 1.40% to 4.65% Fixed
and Term Bonds due 2047 10,225 — (200) 10,025
2013 Series B-1-A — 1.10% to®'6
Bonds due 2045 ) 74,150 — — 74,150
2013 Series B-1-B — 0.35% to 4.60% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2045 46,255 — (2,100) 44,155
2013 Series D-1 (Federally Taxable) —0.70% to 3.78% :
Fixed Rate Serial and Term Bonds due 2028 31,035 — (2,525) 28,510
2013 Series D-2 (Federally Taxable) —2.90% to 3.39%
Index Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2038 55,000 — — 55,000
2013 Series BE-1-A — 0.25% to 4.90% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2038 38,070 — (1,705) 36,365
2013 Series E-1-B — 0.75% to 4.95% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2043 14,060 — — 14,060
2013 Series E-1-C ~ 0.75% to 4.95% Fixed Rate Term ,
Bonds due 2046 45,025 — — 45,025
2013 Series F-1 — 1.25% to 4.50% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2047 28,830 — (440) 28,390
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Balance at : Balance at

Description of Bonds as Issued Oct. 31,2018 Issued Retired Oct. 31,2019

(in thousands)

2014 Series A —0.20% to 4.35% Fixed Rate Serial and

Term Bonds due 2044 6,655 — (110) 6,545

2014 Series B-1 (Féderally Taxable) ~ 0.25% to 3.69%

Fixed Rate Serial Bonds due 2024 34,675 — (8,850) 25,825

2014 Series B-2 (Federally Taxable) —2.74% to 3.23%

Index Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2033 50,000 | — — 50,000

2014 Series C-1-A — 0.70% to 4.30% Fixed Rate Serial

and Term Bonds due 2047 (1,830) 94,765

2014 Series C-1-C — 1710% to 4.00% Fixed Rate Serial

and Term Bonds due 2047 (240) 12,185

2014 Series D-1 (Federally Taxable) — 0.40% to 4.10%

Fixed Rate Serial and Term Bonds due 2027 (2,865) 21,165

— 38,000

| Teum Bonds dus 2035 — — 37,360

2014 Series G-1 - 0.20% to

and Term Bonds due 2.048 252,030 — (44,750) 207,280

2014 Series G-2 — 0.25% to 4.00% Fixed Rate Serial

and Term Bonds due 2048 3,355 — (65) 3,290

2014 Series H-1 (Federally Taxable) — 0.76% to 4.32%

Fixed Rate Serial and Term Bonds due 2035 69,195 — (2,925) 66,270

2014 Series H-2 (Federally Taxable) —2.72% to 3.21%

Index Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2044 50,000 — — 50,000

2014 Series I — 1.45% Fixed Rate Term Bonds due

2018 3,260 — (3,260) —

2015 Series A-1 — 0.70% to 4.00% Fixed Rate Serial

and Term Bonds due 2048 9,535 — (95) 9,440

2015 Series A-2 — 2.25% to 3.75% Fixed Rate Serial

and Term Bonds due 2035 6,150 — — 6,150

2015 Series B-1 (Federally Taxable) —0.60% to 3.53%

Fixed Rate Serial Bonds due 2027 23,530 — (3,315) 20,215
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‘ Balance at Balance at
Description of Bonds as Issued Oct. 31,2018 Issued Retired Oct. 31, 2019
(in thousands)
2015 Series B-2 (Federally Taxable) —2.65% to 3.14%
Index Floating Rate T;frm Bonds due 2044 33,000 — — 33,000
2015 Series D-1-A — 1.30% to 4.35% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2048 113,245 — (50,105) 63,140
2015 Series D-1-B — 0.85% to 4.35% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2048 267,750 — (131,860) 135,890
2015 Series D-2 — 0.45% to 4.00% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2035 56,555 — (6,520) 50,035
2015 Series D-3 — 1.21% to 2.25% Variable Rate Term
Bonds due 2020 (15,000) —
2015 Series D-4 — 1.21% to 1.70% Variable Rate Term
Bonds due 2020 (13,500) —
2015 Series E-1 — 0.30% to 4.05% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2047 ' (965) 35,185
2015 Series B2 — 0.30% to 3.75% Fixed Ry
and Term Bonds due 2035 5,920 — (720) . 5,200
2015 Series G-1 (SNB) — 0,30% to 3,95%
Serial and Term Bonds due 2049 g 129,100 — (58,085) 71,015
2015 Series G-2 (SNB) — 1.45% to 3.95% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2049 47,160 — (14,440) 32,720
2015 Series H (SNB) —2.95% Term Rate Term Bonds
due 2026 136,470 — — 136,470
2015 Series I (SNB) — 2.95% Term Rate Term Bonds
due 2026 60,860 — — 60,860
2015 Series K (SNB) — 1.15% Fixed Rate Term Bonds
due 2019 3,755 — (3,755) —
2016 Series A (SNB) — 0.35% to 3.75% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2047 62,355 — (25,555) 36,800
2016 Series D (SNB) ~ 0.50% to 3.75% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2047 52,320 — (1,465) 50,855
2016 Series C-1-A (SNB) — 1.20% to 3.45% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2050 119,330 — — 119,330
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Balance at Balance at
Description of Bonds as Issued Oct. 31,2018 Issued Retired QOct. 31, 2019
(in thousands)
2016 Series C-1-B (SNB) — 1.38% to 3.40% Fixed Rate
Term Bonds due 2047~ 61,020 — 61,020
2016 Series C-2 (SNB) — 1.45% Term Rate Term
Bonds due 2020 32,820 — (6,445) 26,375
2016 Series E-1-A (SNB) - 0.40% to 5.00% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2047 80,810 — (28,070) 52,740
2016 Series E-1-B (SNB) —1.30% to 3.40% Fixed Rate
Term Bonds due 2047 (43,485) 37,855
2016 Series E-2 (SNB) — 1.25% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2019 (48,235) —
2016 Series F-1-A (SNB) ~ 1.95% to 3.37% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2051 — 23,675
2016 Series F-1-B (SNB) — 2.75% t0 3.15% Fixed Rate ENEY
Term Bonds due 2041 A% N T 40275 — — 40,275
\ \ '." N
A H
2016 Series F-2 (AMT) (SNB) — 1.25% to 2 F1xed
Rate Serial Bonds due 2025 8,120 — (45) 8,075
2016 Series G-1(Federally Tgx: le) ﬁN 0.85%to
2.82% Fixed Rate Serlal Bonds due202 19,965 — (3,775) 16,190
2016 Series G-2 (Federally Taxable) (SNB) —2.76% to
3.25% Index Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2045 78,000 — — 78,000
2016 Series I-1-A (SNB) — 1.80% to 4.30% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2050 111,095 — — 111,095
2016 Series I-1-B (SNB) — 3.60% to 4.30% Fixed Rate
Term Bonds due 2050 36,300 — — 36,300
2016 Series I-2-A-1 (SNB) — 2.00% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2020 25,185 — — 25,185
2016 Series I-2-A-2 (SNB) — 2.00% Fixed Rate Term :
Bonds due 2020 74,840 — — 74,840
2016 Series I-2-B (SNB) — 1.85% to 2.00% Fixed Rate
Term Bonds due 2021 65,320 — — 65,320
2016 Series J-1 (Federally Taxable) (SNB) ~2.93% to
3.42% Indeéx Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2052 161,500 — — 161,500
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Balance at Balance at
Description of Bonds as Issued Oct. 31,2018 Issued Retired Oct. 31, 2019
(in thousands) ' ' ‘
2016 Series. J-2 (SNB) — 2.93% to 3.42% Index
Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2052 29,500 — — 29,500
2017 Series A-1-A (SNB) — 1.45% to 4.05% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2052 51,610 — — 51,610
2017 Series A-1-B (SNB)-3.80% to 4.05% Fixed Rate
Term Bonds due 2052, 11,165 — — 11,165
2017 Series A-2-A (SNB) —~ 1.90% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2021 — 48,880
2017 Series A-2-B (SNB) — 1.90% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2021 — 11,285
2017 Series A-3 (SNB) — 1.96% to 2. 30% Index
Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2021 — 50,000
2017 Series B-1 (Federally Taxable) (SNB) - 1.60% to i X
3.81% Fixed Rate Serial and Term Bonds due 202 (2,215) 22,285
2017 Series B-2 (Federally Taxable) (SNBj
3.17% Index Floating Rate Term Bonds 61,500 — — 61,500
5017 Series C-1 (SNB) — 1. 20%10, |
Serial and Term Bonds due 2057 139,725 — — 139,725
2017 Series C-2 (SNB) — 1 70% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2021 103,025 — — 103,025
2017 Series C-3-A (SNB) — 1.70% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2021 40,000 — — 40,000
2017 Series C-3-B (SNB) — 1.70% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2021 40,000 - — 40,000
2017 Series C-4 (SNB)— 1.11% to 2.25% Variable Rate
Term Bonds due 2057. 57,830 — — 57,830
2017 Series E-1 (SNB) — 1.50% to 3.55% Fixed Rate :
Serial and Term Bonds due 2043 60,465 — — 60,465
2017 Series E-2 (SNB) — 1.20% to 3.35% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2036 3,535 — — 3,535
2017 Series G-1 (SNB) —1.15% to 3.85% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2057 197,140 — (1,610) 195,530
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Balance at Balance at

Description of Bonds as Issued Oct. 31,2018 Issued Retired Oct. 31, 2019
(in thousands) '
2017 Series G-2 (SNB) — 2.00% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2057 101,330 — — 101,330
2017 Series G-3 (SNB) — 1.09% to 2.35% Variable
Rate Term Bonds due 2057 85,950 — — 85,950
2018 Series A-1 (SNB) — 1.55% to 3.90% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2048 50,730 — (375) 50,355
2018 Series A-2 (SNB) — 1.70% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2047 15,920 — (15,920) —
2018 Series B-1 (Federally Taxable) (SNB)—2.32% to
3.65% Fixed Rate Serial Bonds due 2028 — (65) 65,410
2018 Series B-2 (Federally Taxable) (SNB)—2.70% to > R
3.19% Index Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2046 4 27%100,600 [ — — 100,000

. TR,
2018 Series C-1-A (SNB) —2.10% to 4.13% Fixed Rate z \
Serial and Term Bonds due 2058 237,965 — — 237,965
2018 Series C-1-B (SNB) —3.70% to 4.00
Term Bonds due 2053 168,925 — — 168,925
2018 Series C-2-A (SNB) —2.20%
Term Bonds due 2022 135,040 — — 135,040
2018 Series C-2-B (SNB) — 2.35% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2022 8,615 — — 8,615
2018 Series D (Federally Taxable) (SNB) — 3.26% to
4.10% Fixed Rate Serial and Term Bonds due 2038 75,000 — — 75,000
2018 Series E-1 (Draper Hall) — 1.25% to 4.00% Fixed
Rate Serial and Term Bonds due 2048 18,230 — (670) 17,560
2018 Series F (SNB)-— 3.20% to 3.80% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2047 25,425 — — 25,425
2018 Series G — 1.50% Term Rate Term Bonds due
2019 65,325 — (65,325) —
2018 Series E-2 (Stanley Commons) — 1.25% to 4.00%
Fixed Rate Serial and Term Bonds due 2048 9,495 — (345) 9,150
2018 Series H (SNB) — 4.00% to 4.05% Fixed Rate
Term Bonds due 2048 84,765 — — 84,765
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Balance at Balance at
Description of Bonds as Issued Oct, 31,2018 Issued Retired QOct. 31, 2019
(in thousands)
2018 Series I (Federally Taxable) (SNB) — 3.22% to
4.48% Fixed Rate Serial and Term Bonds due 2038 125,000 — — 125,000
2018 Series J—1.80% Term Rate Term Bonds due 2048 42,795 — (42,795) —
2018 Series N (Federally Taxable) (Avalon
Momingside Apartments) —3.95% Term Rate Term
Bonds due 2046 ' — 12,500 — 12,500
2018 Series E-3 (3475 Third Avenue - La Casa del
Mundo) — 1.65% to 4.35% Fixed Rate Serial and Term
Bonds due 2048 (50) 5,710
2018 Series E-4 (MHANY) — 1.30% to 4.05% Fixed
Rate Serial and Term Bonds due 2049 — 5,000
2018 Series K (SNB) — 1.75% to 4.20% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2058 271,585 — 271,585
7018 Series L-1 (SNB)—2.75% Term Rate Term Bgn
due 2050 — 125,000 — 125,000
2018 Series L-2 (SNB)—2.75% Term Rat
due 2050 — 59,000 — 59,000
2019 Series A-1 (SNB) — 14.25% Fixed Rate
Term Bonds due 2043 — 85,000 — 85,000
2019 Series A-2 (SNB) — 3.90% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2033 — 25,000 — 25,000
2019 Series A-3-A (SNB) — 1.50% to 3.95% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2049 — 114,670 — 114,670
2019 Series A-3-B (SNB)—3.90% to 4.05% Fixed Rate
Term Bonds due 2054 - — 35,100 — 35,100
2019 Series A-4 (SNB) — 1.07% to 2.38% Variable
Rate Term Bonds due 2058 — 30,000 — 30,000
2019 Series B-1-A (SNB) - 1.40% to 3.85% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2058 — | - 112,635 — 112,635
2019 Series B-1-B (SNB) — 3.40% to 3.75% Fixed Rate
Term Bonds due 2054 — 36,435 — 36,435
2019 Series B-2 (SNB) — 2.10% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2058 — 27,810 — 27,810
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Description of Bonds as Issued

Balance at
Oct. 31,2018

Issued

Retired

Balance at

| Oct. 31,2019

(in thousands)

2019 Series C — 1.63% Term Rate Term Bonds due
2049

105,435

(105,435)

2019 Series D-1 (Prospect Plaza III) — 1.30% to 3.80%
Fixed Rate Serial and Term Bonds due 2049

7,390

7,390

2019 Series E-1 (SNB) — 1.45% to 3.45% Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds due 2059

359,640

359,640

2019 Series E-2 (SNB) -~ 1.75% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2059

130,955

130,955

2019 Series E-3 (SNB) — 1.07% to 1.94% Variable Rate
Term Bonds due 2059

45,000

2019 Series F (Federally Taxable) (SNB) — 2.02% to
3.77% Fixed Rate Serial and Term Bonds due 2044

175,000

Serial Bonds due 2031

2019 Series G-1-A (SNB) —1.10% to 2.25% Fixed Rate |..

79,380

79,380

2019 Series G-1-B (SNB) —2.55%t0 3.05% Fi
Term Bonds due 2050

126,505

126,505

2019 Series G-2 (AMT) (SNB) — 1.75% to 2.10% Fixed

8,460

8,460

Rate Serial Bonds due 2027 *"

2019 Series H — 1.30% Term Rate Term Bonds due
2049

113,175

113,175

2019 Series [ — 1.69% Index Floating Rate Term Bonds
due 2052

42,910

42,910

Multi-Family Secured Mortgage Revenue Bonds

2011 Series A (Federally Taxable) Secured Mortgage
Revenue Bonds — 1.26% to 4.78% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2026

30,730

(3,580)

27,150

2013 Series A (Federally Taxable) Secured Mortgage
Revenue Bonds — 0.48% to 5.34% Fixed Rate Serial
and Term Bonds due 2035

33,730

(1,845)

31,885

2017 Series A-1 (Federally Taxable) (SNB) Secured
Mortgage Revenue Bonds — 1.37% to 3.48% Fixed
Rate Serial Bonds due 2029

24,600

(2,180)

22,420
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Balance at Balance at
Description of Bonds as Issued Oct. 31, 2018 Issued Retired Oct. 31, 2019
(in thousands) :
2017 Series A-2 (Federally Taxable) (SNB) Secured
Mortgage Revenue Bonds — 2.66% to 3.15% Index
Floating Rate Term Bonds due 2041 39,825 — — 39,825
Federal New Issue Bond Program (NIBP)
2009 Series 1-2 HRB (NIBP) — 3.16% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2043 62,230 — (62,230) —
2009 Series 1-5-A HRB (NIBP) — 2.47% Fixed Rate
Term Bonds due 2048 158,800 — (46,230) 112,570

2009 Series 1-5-B HRB (NIBP) (AMT) - 2.47% Fixed

Rate Term Bonds due 2041 (10,180) 20,110
2009 Series 2-5 HRB (NIBP) —2.47% Fixed Rate Term
Bonds due 2048 (16,750) 15,750

Total Housing Revenue Bond Program 7,5;;5,105 2,139,345 (1,284,710) 8,429,740

LIBERTY BOND PROGRAM:

Multi-Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds :

2005 Series A 90 Washington Street —1 10% to 2.38%
Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through 2035 74,800 — — 74,800

2006 Series A 90 West Street = 1.13% to 2.18%
Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through 2036 104,000 — — 104,000

2006 Series B (Federally Taxable) 90 West Street —
1.88% to 2.45% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2036 ' ' 7,200 — (500) 6,700

2006 Series A - 2 Gold Street — 1.13% to 2.18%

Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through 2036 162,000 — — 162,000

2006 Series B (Federally Taxable) - 2 Gold Street —
1.88% to 2.47% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2036 : 34,200 — (3,500) 30,700

2006 Series A 201 Pear] Street — 1.13% to 2.18%
Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand through 2041 65,000 — — 65,000

2006 Series B (Federally Taxable) 201 Pear] Street —
1.88% to 2.47% Variable Rate Bonds due upon demand
through 2041 . 21,800 — (700) 21,100
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Balance at Balance at
Description of Bonds as Issued Oct. 31,2018 Issued Retired Oct. 31, 2019
(in thousands)
2014 Series Classes D, E and F (8 Spruce Street) —
3.00% to 4.50% Fixed Rate Term Bonds due 2048 ' 203,900 — — 203,900
Total Liberty Bond Prdgram 672,900 — (4,700) 668,200
CAPTIAL FUND PROGRAM REVENUE BONDS
(New York City Housing Authority (NYCHA"))
2013 Series A Capital Fund Program —2.00% to 5.00% :
Fixed Rate Serial Bonds due 2025 122,400 — (15,095) 107,305
2013 Series B-1 Capital Fund Program — 2.00% to
5.25% Fixed Rate Serial Bonds due 2033 276,070 | (18,345) 257,725
2013 Series B-2 Capi.tal Fund Program — 5.00% to
5.25% Fixed Rate Serial Bonds due 2032 — 122,170
Total Capital Fund Program Revenue Bonds (33,440) 487,200
Pass-Through Revenue Bond Program
2014 Series A (Federally Taxable) - 3.05% leed Rate':
Term Bonds due 2036 4,348 — (129) 4,219
2017 Series A (Federally Tax‘ab]é) (sNB) ~3.10%
Fixed Rate Term Bonds due 2046 :_f’ 59,147 — (867) 58,280
Total Pass-Through Revenue Bond Program 63,495 — (996) 62,499
Total Bonds Payable Prior to Net Premium
Unamortized (Discount) on Bonds Payables 11,249,310 2,216,745 (1,356,226) 12,109,829
Net Premium (Discount) on Bonds Payables 25,563 — (3,959) 21,604
Total Bonds Payable (Net) $11,274,873 | $2,216,745 ($1,360,185) [ $12,131,433

Interest on the Corporation’s variable rate debt is based on the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (“SIFMA”) rate

and is reset daily and/or weekly.

Bonds Issued in Fiscal Year 2019

On December 19, 2018, the variable rate Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds, 2006 Series J-1 (Avalon
Morningside Apartments) which were remarketed previously on September 15, 2010 and July 13, 2012
and had bonds outstanding in the amount of $100,000,000, were again remarketed. In connection with the
remarketing, the term rate Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds, 2018 Series N (Federally Taxable)
(Avalon Morningside Apartments) were issued in the amount of $12,500,000. The funds were used to
reimburse the project’s equity investors and to pay for certain other related costs.
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On December 26, 2018, the fixed rate Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds, 2018 Series E-3, were
issued in the amount of $5,760,000 to refund the Multi-Family Mortgage Revenue Debt Obligations (La
Casa Del Mundo Portfolio) as the project converted to permanent status in December 2018.

On December 26, 2018, the fixed rate Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds, 2018 Series E-4, were
issued in the amount of $5,000,000 to refund the Multi-Family Mortgage Revenue Debt Obligations
(MHANY Portfolio) as the project converted to permanent status in December 2018.

On December 26, 2018, three Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds series were issued in an amount
totaling $455,585,000. The fixed rate 2018 Series K Bonds were issued in the amount of $271,585,000,
the term rate 2018 Series L-1 Bonds were issued in the amount of $125,000,000, and the term rate 2018
Series L-2 Bonds were issued in the amount of $59,000,000. The 2018 Bonds were issued and combined
with other available monies to finance construction and permanent mortgage loans for certain
developments and to pay for certain other related costs. :

On January 10, 2019, the variable rate Multi-Family Rental Housm Réevenue Bonds, 2005 Series A (The
Nicole) which had bonds outstanding in the amount of $54,600,000 were remarketed. In connection with
the remarketing, the fixed rate Multi-Family Rental Housmg Revenue Bonds, 2019 Series A (The Nicole),
(Federally Taxable) were issued in the amount of:$4,400, 000. The funds were used to reimburse the

project’s equity investors and to pay for certam other related costs.

On February 6, 2019 the fixed rate Multl—Famlly Housing Revenue Bonds, 2019 Series A-2, were issued
in the amount of $25,000,000 to r certain outstanding bonds of the Corporation. In addition, the fixed
rate 2019 Series A-1 Bonds i i th ount of $85,000,000, which were sold on October 11, 2018 as
forward delivery were del on'February 6, 2019.

On March 13, 2019, two Muilti-Family Housing Revenue Bonds series were issued in the amount totaling
$149,770,000. The fixed rate 2019 Series A-3-A Bonds were issued in the amount of $114,670,000, and
the fixed rate 2019 Series A-3-B Bonds were issued in the amount of $35,100,000. The 2019 Bonds were
issued and combined with other available monies to finance construction and permanent mortgage loans
for certain developments and to refund certain outstanding bonds of the Corporation.

On April 18, 2019, five Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds series were issued in the amount totaling
$312,315,000. The variable rate 2019 Series A-4 Bonds were issued in the amount of $30,000,000, the
fixed rate 2019 Series B-1-A Bonds were issued in the amount of $112,635,000, the fixed rate 2019 Series
B-1-B Bonds were issued in the amount of $36,435,000, the fixed rate 2019 Series B-2 Bonds were issued
in the amount of $27,810,000, and the term rate 2019 Series C Bonds were issued in the amount of
$105,435,000. The 2019 Bonds were issued and combined with other available monies to finance
construction and permanent mortgage loans for certain developments and to refund certain outstanding
bonds of the Corporation.

On April 18, 2019, the fixed rate Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds, 2019 Series D-1, were issued in

the amount of $7,390,000 to refund the Multi-Family Mortgage Revenue Debt Obligations (Prospect Plaza
I1I) as the project converted to permanent status in February 2019.
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On June 18, 2019, the term rate Multi-Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 2019 Series A, were issued in
the amount of $73,000,000 to refund the Multi-Family Mortgage Revenue Debt Obligations (535 Carlton
Avenue) as the project converted to permanent status in June 2019.

On June 25, 2019, the variable rate Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds, 2019 Series E-3, were issued
in the amount of $45,000,000 to finance construction and permanent mortgage loans for certain
developments and to finance other corporate purposes of the Corporation.

On June 27, 2019, three Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds series were issued in the amount totaling
$665,595,000. The fixed rate 2019 Series E-1 Bonds were issued in the amount of $359,640,000, the fixed
rate 2019 Series E-2 Bonds were issued in the amount of $130,955,000, and the fixed rate 2019 Series F
(Federally Taxable) Bonds were issued in the amount of $175,000,000. The 2019 Bonds were issued and
combined with other available monies to finance construction and permanent mortgage loans for certain
developments, to refund certain outstanding bonds and to ﬁna €& other corporate purposes of the
Corporation.

On September 26, 2019, four Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds series were issued in the amount
totaling $327,520,000. The fixed rate 2019 Series G-14A Bonds were issued in the amount of $79,380,000,
the fixed rate 2019 Series G-1-B Bonds were 1ssued in the amount of $126,505,000, the fixed rate 2019
Series G-2 Bonds were issued in the amount of’ $8 460 000 and the term rate 2019 Series H Bonds were
issued in the amount of $113,175,000. The, 2019 Bonds were issued and combined with other available
monies to finance construction and. permanent ‘mortgage loans for certain developments and to refund
certain outstanding bonds of the Co poration.

On October 29 2019 the: 1ndex ﬂoa‘ung rate Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds, 2019 Series I, were
issued in the amount of $42 910,000 to finance construction and permanent mortgage loans for certain
developments and to finance other corporate purposes of the Corporation.

All the bonds listed above are subject to regular redemption and certain issues are also subject to special
redemption provisions as well. The parameters under which the redemptions may occur are set forth in
the respective bond resolutions.

In fiscal year 2010, as part of the Housing Finance Agency (“HFA”) initiative using authority provided to
the U.S. Treasury pursuant to the Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008 (“HERA”) to help expand
resources to provide affordable mortgages for low and middle income households, and to support the
development and rehabilitation of affordable housing units, the Corporation was allocated $500,000,000
by the U.S. Treasury to issue bonds under the New Issue Bond Program (“NIBP”). HDC has issued two
programs under the NIBP. The variable rate 2009 Housing Revenue Bonds Series 1 (Federally Taxable)
Bonds were issued in the amount of $415,000,000 and the 2009 Housing Revenue Bonds Series 2
(Federally Taxable) Bonds were issued in the amount of $85,000,000 on December 23, 2009. During the
period between June 2010 and December 2011, all the principal amount of the 2009 Series 1 (NIBP)
Bonds and the 2009 Series 2 (NIBP) Bonds were converted to fixed rate tax exempt bonds. These bonds
were designated as the “Converted Bonds”. As of October 31, 2019, portions of the NIBP Converted
Bonds in the amount of $351,570,000 were redeemed and $148,430,000 remain outstanding.
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Debt Obligations Program

In fiscal year 2019, the Corporation closed two new funding loan agreements with Citibank to finance
mortgage loans under its Multi-Family Mortgage Revenue Debt Obligations Program. Under the
agreements, Citibank will provide the funds to the Corporation, which the Corporation will then use to
advance to the project. This is also referred to as “Back to Back”. This debt obligation is subject to private
activity bond volume cap.

At October 31, 2019, the aggregate principal amount outstanding under the Debt Obligations program was
$296,663,000.

Changes in Debt Obligations Payable:
(in thousands)

Debt Obligation Pagfable outstanding at October 31, 2018

$415,137

Debt Obligation Issued 40,021
Debt Obligation Principal Retired (158,495)
Debt Obligation Payable outstanding at October 31 2019 $296,663

Details of changes in HDC debt obhgatlons for the yea.r ended October 31, 2019 were as follows:

) Balance at Balance at
Description of Debt Obligations as Issued “Qct. 31,2018 Issued Retired Oct. 31, 2019
in thousands)
variable rates cover fiscal year 201
MFMR Debt Obligations (Harlem Dowling
Residential} — 2.49% to 5.21% Fixed Rate due
2047 $5,084 $— ($94) $4,990
MFMR Debt Obligations (535 Carlton Avenue)
-2.85% to 4.30% Variable Rate due 2058 67,739 5,261 (73,000) —
MFMR Debt Obligations (38 Sixth Avenue) —
3.12% to 4.30% Variable Rate due 2059 83,240 — — 83,240
MFMR Debt Obhgatlons (La Casa del Mundo)
- 4.62% Fixed Rate due 2048 18,898 312 (19,210) —
MFMR Debt Obligations (MHANY Portfolio).
- 5.21% Fixed Rate due 2049 31,954 596 (32,550) —
MEFMR Debt Obligations (MHANY Portfolio)
Federally Taxable) — 5.21% Fixed Rate due
2049 450 — (450) —
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Description of Debt Obligations as Issued

Balance at
Oct. 31,2018

Issued

Retired

Balance at
Oct. 31, 2019

in thousands)

variable rates cover fiscal year 2019)

MFMR Debt Obligations (Prospect Plaza Phase
1) — 4.48% Fixed Rate due 2049

31,557

1,634

(33,191)

MFMR Debt Obligations (One Flushing) —

42,785

11,732

54,517

4.14% Fixed Rate due 2055

MFMR Debt Obligations .(1 133 Manbhattan) —
B.86% Fixed Rate due 2027

45,600

45,600

MFMR Debt Obligations (1133 Manhattan)
Federally Taxable) — 3.86% Fixed Rate due
2027

15,600

15,600

MEFMR Debt Obligatic;ns (Far Rockaway) —
B.65% Fixed Rate due 2058

72,230

MEMR Debt Obligations (MEC 125 Parcel B
West) — 4.78% to 5.26% Variable Rate due
2052

20,486

20,486

[Cotal Debt Obligations Payable

$40,021

($158,495)

$296.663

On December 26, 2018, the C‘Qrp‘ ration entered into a Funding Loan Agreement with Citibank (the
“Multi-Family Mortgage R Vehue Debt Obligations — Caton Flats”). The proceeds in the amount of
$55,920,000 were comm1tted to finance the construction and to pay certain other related costs of a multi-
family rental housing development located in the borough of Brooklyn, New York. There has been no
advance made to the project as of October 31, 2019.

On December 31, 2019, the Corporation entered into a Funding Loan Agreement with Citibank (the
“Multi-Family Mortgage Revenue Debt Obligations — MEC 125% Street Parcel B West”). The proceeds
in the amount of $74,000,000 were committed to finance the construction and to pay certain other related
costs of a multi-family rental housing development located in the borough of Manhattan, New York. The
funding is on a draw down basis. The total obligation outstanding as of October 31,2019 was $20,486,000.
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Federal Financing Bank Ioan Participation Certificates Payable

In fiscal year 2014, the Corporation entered into a new financing agreement with the FFB for selling
beneficial ownership interests in mortgage loans originated by housing finance agencies and insured with
FHA/HF A Risk Sharing mortgage insurance. The Corporation was selected to be the first housing finance
agency to participate in this new federal initiative to reduce costs of capital for affordable housing,
whereby, the Corporation will sell beneficial ownership interest in its mortgages to the FFB. Beneficial
ownership interest in mortgage loans that the Corporation sells to the FFB will be evidenced by certificates
of participation from the Corporation. The participation proceeds were recorded as payable to the FFB.
The monthly mortgage payments from the borrower will be used to repay the interest to the FFB and
principal payments will reflect the scheduled mortgage principal payments.

The aggregate FFB Loan Participation Certificates Payable balance as of October 31, 2019 was
$281_,943,000 (see Note 4: “Mortgage Loans”).

Changes in FFB Loan Participation Certificates Pavable: o

The summary of changes in FFB Loan Pal‘t101pat101’1 Certlﬁcates Payable was as follows:
(in thousands) : :

FFB Loan Participation Certificates payable outstandlng at October 31, 2018 $284,769
FFB Loan Participation Proceeds -
Repayments to FFB

FFB Loan Participation Certlﬁ ates

(2,826)
yable outstanding at October 31, 2019 $281 943

Details of changes in FFB loan;partlmpatlon certificates payable for the year ended October 31, 2019 were
as follows:

Balance at . Balance at

Description of FFB Loan Participation as Issued Oct. 31,2018 Issued Retired Oct. 31,2019
in thousands)

variable rates cover fiscal year 2019)
FFB Loan Participation - Arverne View Apt—3.32%

Fixed Rate Certificate Pass-Through due 2049 $69,349 $— ($788) $68,561
FFB Loan Participation - 2629 Sedgwick Avenue —
3.28% Fixed Rate Certificate Pass-Through due 2051 2,814 — 4n | . 2,773
FFB ‘Loan Participation - Marseilles Apartments — 2.85%
Fixed Rate Certificate Pass-Through due 2051 17,688 — (273) 17,415
FFB Loan Participation - Sons of Italy Apartments —

D.76% Fixed Rate Certificate Pass-Through due 2051 8,050 — (120) 7,930
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: Balance at Balance at

Description of FFB Loan Participation as Issued Oct. 31,2018 Issued Retired Oct. 31,2019

in thousands)

variable rates cover fiscal year 2019)

FFB Loan Participation - Stevenson Commons - 2.96% :

Fixed Rate Certificate Pass-Through due 2057 102,107 — (836) 101,271
FFB Loan Participation - Independence House — 3.04%
Fixed Rate Certificate Pass-Through due 2057 7,204 — (71) 7,133
FFB Loan Participation - Carol Gardens — 3.02% Fixed

Rate Certificate Pass-Through due 2058 21,731 — (174) 21,557
FFB Loan Participation - La Cabana Houses — 3.35%

Fixed Rate Certificate Pass-Through due 2053 (523) 55,303
[Cotal FFB Loan Participation Certificates Payables ($2,826) $281,943

The Corporation regularly defeases or retires bonds th ough,_w -substance defeasances whereby assets are
placed in an irrevocable trust that is used exclus;v 1“"“to service the future debt requirement. During fiscal
year 2018, the Corporation retired the 2008 Serl sMulti-Family Housmg Revenue Bonds through an

Revenue Bonds in the amount of $3. 025, 000 were called and fully redeemed by the escrow agent on

November 1, 2018. There was no d easéd bonds outstanding as of October 31, 2019.

Future Debt Service: -

Required debt payments for ,‘bdhds payable by the Corporation for the next five years and thereafter are as

follows:
Year Ending October 31, Principal Interest Total
(in thousands)
20200t $342,849 $351,982 $694,831
20210 595,909 348,032 943,941
20220 i, 342,039 336,098 678,137
2023, 234,877 325,797 560,674
2024, .., 236,143 318,378 554,521
2025-2029...0ueeinnn. 1,290,200 1,472,705 2,762,905
2030 —2034............... 1,644,119 1,230,412 2,874,531
2035-2039....ccciunnne 2,345,048 950,965 3,296,013
2040 —2044............... 1,600,965 678,620 2,279,585
2045 -2049.......covonene. 1,987,875 368,930 2,356,805
2050 - 2054............... 895,495 119,096 1,014,591
2055 —-2059.. ccoiiennnnn. 594,310 39,978 634,288
Total $12,109,829 $6,540,993 $18,650,822
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Changes in Long Term Liabilities:

Long term liability activities for the year ended October 31, 2019, are as follows:

Balance at Balance at  Due Within

Descriptions Oct. 31, 2018 Additions Deductions Oct. 31, 2019 1 Year
(in thousands)
Bonds Payable, (net) $11,274,873  $2,216,745 ($1,360,185) $12,131,433 $342,849
Debt Obligations 415,137 40,021 (158,495) 296,663 93
Payable to FFB — Loan Participation 284,769 — (2,826) 281,943 2,980
Payable to The City of New York 3,376,951 1,310,224 (254,888) 4,432,287 —
Payable to Mortgagors & Restricted

Earnings on Investments 870,039 543,551 (534,903) 878,687 217,915
Others 274,169 651,098 (504,031) 421,236 185,561
Total Long-Term Liabilities $16,495,938 $4,761,639  ($2:815,328) $18,442,249 $749,398

Note 11: Consultants’ Fees

The fees paid by the Corporation for legal, accounting. ‘an;l céns&itl;lg services in fiscal year 2019 for HDC
include; $15,142 to Hawkins, Delafield & Wood; $7,381:to Epstein, Becker & Green, P.C.; and $6,435 to
Seyfarth Shaw LLP. Auditing fees of $242 000. were pald to Ernst & Young LLP.

The Corporation paid other consultmg;;-fees m,,,the amount of $75,000 to National Strategies Group, LLC;
$58,250 to R Square, Inc.; $35, 375 risto Rey N'Y High School; $16,605 to Bharat Shah, $16,250 to
Metropolitan Valuation Service 38, 000 to Buck Global, LLC; $2,400 to Insurance Advisors; and
$1,215 to Lincoln Tyler Manage nt Services, LLC. The Corporation also paid $27,000 to Bartley &
Dick Advertising/Design’ for concept design and layout of the 2018 HDC Annual Report.

In addition, the Corporatlon pa1d legal, accounting and consulting fees for services provided in connection
with bond financings, which have been reimbursed either from bond proceeds or from project developers.
Fees of $1,433,211 to Hawkins, Delafield & Wood; $708,841 to Jefferies LLC; $64,700 to Chapman and
Cutler LLP; $50,000 to Mohanty Gargiulo, LLC; $40,000 to Caine Mitter & Associates, Inc.; and $9,500
to Paparone Law, PLLC.

Note 12: Payable to The City of New York
(4) New York City Housing Development Corporation

The Corporation has entered into various agreements with the City whereby HDC sold bonds and used
the bond proceeds to purchase from the City interests in various mortgage loans and pools of mortgage
loans. Additionally, starting from fiscal year 2005 and 2006 and onward, HDC originated second mortgage
loans in which it sold a residual interest to the City. Cash flow derived from these loan interests is pledged
to the repayment of the related HDC bonds. At such time as these HDC bonds are retired, ownership of
the associated loan interests transfers to the City. The excess of such interest over the amount of the related
bonds totaled $1,075,529,000 as of October 31, 2019 was reported in the Corporation’s statement of net
position as “Loan participation receivable - The City of NY” in the Noncurrent Assets section and
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“Payable to The City of New York: Loan participation agreements” in the Noncurrent Liabilities section.
The related details are described in the following paragraphs.

In May 2014, the 2006 Series A bonds were fully redeemed. Simultaneously, the Corporation issued the
Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds, 2014 Series B-1 and 2014 Series B-2 collectively, the (“2014
Series B Bonds™) to re-securitize the remaining underlying loan portfolio previously financed by 2006
Series A (see Note 6: “Loan Participation Receivable for The City of New York™). As of October 31,
2019, the Corporation’s payable to the City relating to the 2014 Series B Bonds was $93,444,000.

In April 2018, the Corporation issued its Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds, 2018 Series B Bonds.
The proceeds were used to purchase and securitize a 100% participation interest in various pools of City
mortgage loans totaling $671,611,000. As of October 31, 2019, the Corporation’s payable to the City
relating to the 2018 Series B Bonds was $496,330,000.

The Corporation has completed numerous transactions as pg
preservation program. Under this program, the Corporatlo mded various new first and second
mortgage loans as well as the acquisition of participation interests'in City-owned second mortgages and
associated cash flows. As long as any Mitchell-Lama Restructurmg Bonds are outstanding, all cash flows
from the purchased interests must be applied to debt service on such bonds. Once all such bonds are
retired, HDC’s participation interests in City-owne ‘second mortgages revert to the City. HDC also has
sold to the City a residual interest in the secon mortgage loans the Corporation originated. These loans
also transfer to the City when the Mit¢hell- Lama Restructuring Bonds are retired. As of October 31, 2019,
the Corporation’s payable to the Ci der the MLRP was $485,755,000.

MLRP, an affordable housing

In 2009, HPD and HDC entered into'a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”), which provides for the
granting of funds by HPD.to HDC pursuant to Section 661 of the PHFL, to make subordinate loans for
affordable housing. At October 31, 2019, the total payable to the City relating to this MOU was
$2,523,338,000.

Since fiscal Year 2013, the Corporation entered into several loan participation agreements with the City
through HPD. In each case the Corporation made available to the mortgagor’s new mortgage loans, the
proceeds of which were used for the acquisition or rehabilitation of existing properties, with the HDC
mortgage holding the first position lien on the properties. The existing HPD loans were assigned to the
Corporation, via a Purchase and Sale agreement, where the Corporation purchased the existing loans from
the City and the City purchased a residual interest in the HDC Loans. As of October 31, 2019, the
participation mortgage loans underlying the Participation Interest had an aggregate outstanding principal
balance of $630,344,000.

The Corporation also administers construction and permanent loans on behalf of HPD, using funds
provided by HPD. All such funds are the property of HPD and thus are reported as due to the City in the
Corporation’s financial statements. At October 31, 2019, the total related payable to the City was
$101,856,000.
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On December 18, 2015, at the request of The City of New York, the Corporation funded a $143,236,000
subordinate loan to the purchasers of Stuyvesant Town-Peter Cooper Village to assist the preservation of
the affordability of this project. During fiscal year 2019, the City reimbursed the Corporation by funding
various subordinate loans originated by HDC totaling $15,000,000. As of October 31, 2019, the remaining
balance of the receivable from The City of New York was $30,659,000.

(B) Housing Assistance Corporation

Funding for HAC was received through the City in 1985. All of HAC’s assets, after repayment of HDC
advances to HAC and if unused for HAC purposes, will revert back to the City. At October 31, 2019, total
resources payable to the City amounted to $131,879,000, of which $121,750,000 was related to the
funding of Stuyvesant Town-Peter Cooper Village. The remaining $10,129,000 payable to the City was
held to fund the RY Subsidy Program, which is expected to cover the subsidy until 2022 (see Note 4:
“Mortgage Loans” for a detailed explanatlon) .

Note 13: Retirement Programs

The Corporation is a participating employer. in NYCERS a cost sharing multi-employer plan, of which
94 current employees of the Corporation, are. members. NYCERS provides defined benefit pension
benefits to 191,000 active municipal: employees and 154,000 pensioners through $68.5 billion in assets.
City employees who receive perma 1ent ‘appointment to a competitive position and have completed six
months of service are required to: rtlmpate in NYCERS, and all other employees such as HDC employees
are eligible, but not requ1red to partlclpate in NYCERS. NYCERS provides three main types of retirement
benefits: service retirements, ordmary disability retirements (non-Job—related disabilities) and accident
disability retirements (job- related disabilities) to members who are in different “tiers.” The members’ tier
is determined by the date of membership. Subject to certain conditions, members generally become fully
vested as to benefits upon completion of five years of service. Employees may be required to confribute a
percentage of their salary to the pension plan based on their tier. Annual pension benefit is calculated as a
percentage of final average salary times the number of years of membership service.

Contribution requirements of the active employees and the participating New York City agencies are
established and may be amended by the NYCERS Board. Employees’ contributions are determined by
their tier and number of years of service. They may range between 3.00% and 6.0% of their annual pay.
Statutorily required contributions to NYCERS, determined by the New York City Office of the Actuary
in accordance with State statutes and City laws, are funded by the employer within the appropriate fiscal
year.

Copies of NYCERS’ financial statements can be obtained by writing to NYCERS at 335 Adams Street,
Suite 2300, Brooklyn, NY 11201-3751 or its website (www.nycers.org).

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
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NYCERS and additions to/deductions from NYCERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by NYCERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit term.
Investments are recorded at fair value.

As of October 31, 2019, and 2018, the Corporation reported a liability of $10,049,000 and $9,325,000,
respectively, for its proportionate share of NYCERS’ net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured-as of June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of those dates. The Corporation’s proportion
of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Corporation’s long-term share of contributions
to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employees, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2019, the Corporation’s proportion was 0.054%.

At October 31, 2019, the Corporation reported deferred outflows.of

resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net difference between projected and actual .
investment earnings on pension plan
investments $ - $624,000
Differences between expected and tual
experience # kS 840,000 698,000
Changes in proportion and d1ffer nces
between Corporation’s, contrlbutlons and ,
proportionate share of contnbutlons 290,000 (6,000)
Changes in assumptions 6,000 421,000
Corporation contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 2,128,000 -
Total $3,264,000 $1,737,000

Of the deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, $2,128,000 was a contribution that the
Corporation made subsequent to the measurement date and it will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in fiscal year ending October 31, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:

2020 ' $ 120,000
2021 ‘ 120,000
2022 120,000
2023 120,000
2024 121,000
Total $ 601,000
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At October 31, 2018, the Corporation reported $504,000 as deferred inflow of resources from the
accumulated net difference between projected and actual earnings on NYCERS investments.

Deferred outflows of resources amounted to $1,588,000 at October 31, 2018. A decrease of $233,000 is
related to the change in proportionate share and changes in assumptions. $1,821,000 is related to the
Corporation’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date and was recognized as a reduction of the
net pension liability in the year ended October 31, 2018.

The Corporation recorded pension expense for fiscal years ending October 31, 2019 and 2018 in the
amounts of $1,738,000 and $1,421,000, respectively.

Actuarial assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptlons applied to all periods included in the meas )

Investment Rate of Return 7% per annum, net of irlvestment expenses

| In general, merrt and promotion increases-plus assumed
Salary Increases general wage mcreases of 3.0% per annum. '
Cost-of-Living Adjustments 1. 5% and 2 5% for certain tiers

e Mortality tables for service:a trdi‘Sébility pensioners were developed from an experience study of
NYCERS. The mortal'ty t for beneficiaries were developed from an experience review. For
more detail see the reports entitled “Proposed Changes in Actuarial Assumptions and Methods for
Determining Employer Contributions for Fiscal Years Beginning on or After July 1, 2011,” also
known as “Silver Books.” Electronic versions of the Silver Books are available on the New York
City Office of the Actuary website (www.nyc.gov/actuary) under Pension Information.

Pursuant to Section 96 of the New York City Charter, studies of the actuarial assumptions used to value
liabilities of the five actuarially-funded New York City Retirement Systems (“NYCRS”) are conducted
every two years.

Expected Rate of Return on Investments

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by. weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
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The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Long Term Weighted
Expected Real Average Rate of
Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return Return
U.S. Public Market Equities 29.00% 7.00% 2.03%
International Public Market Equities 13.00% 7.10% .92%
Emerging Public Market Equities 7.00% 9.40% -.66%
Private Market Equities 7.00% 10.50% .74%
U.S. Fixed Income 33.00% 2.20% 13%
Alternatives 11.00% 5.70% .63%

Management of the pension plan has determined its expected rate of réturn on investments to be 7%. This
is based upon the weighted average rate of return from mvestments of 5:70% and a long-term Consumer
Price Inflation assumption of 2.5% per year, which is offset by 1nvestment related expenses.

Dzscount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total p nsmn hablhty as of June 30, 2019, was 7.00% per annum.
The projection of cash flows used to determ"i" e discount rate assumed that employee contributions will
be made at the rates applicable to the current tier for each member and that employer contributions will
be made based on rates determined by ; Actuary. Based on those assumptions, the NYCERS fiduciary
net position is projected to be avallable to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and
non-active NYCERS members. Theréfore, the long-term expected rate of return on NYCERS investments
was applied to all periods-of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

The following presents the Corporation’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 7%, as well as what the Corporation’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage point lower (6%) or one
percentage-point higher (8%) than the current rate.

Sensitivity Analysis
1% decrease (6%) Discount rate (7%) 1% increase (8%)

HDC’s proportionate
share of the net
pension liability $15,501,000 $10,049,000 $5,446,000

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
NYCERS?’ report, which is available on their website (www.nycers.org).
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(B) Tax Sheltered Annuity Plan

The Corporation also offers its employees the option of participating in a Tax-Sheltered Annuity Plan
managed by Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. as an alternate or supplemental retirement plan under Section 403(b)
of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has approved the Corporation as an entity,

which can provide this type of plan to its employees. The majority of the Corporation's employees
participate in this plan.

Note 14: Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

Plan description. The Corporation sponsors a single employer postemployment defined benefit health
care plan for eligible retirees and their spouses. Eligible retirees generally are classified into two groups
as either NYCERS members or Non-NYCERS members. NYCERS members are those who have service
ranging from 5 to 15 years at the time of their retirement. Non-NYCERS members are those who have
service ranging from 10 to 15 years and retired at age 59 1/2. For NYCERS members, the Corporation
provides retiree health care coverage and prescription drug coverage through the New York City Health
Benefit Program (“NYCHBP”). For Non-NYCERS membets, the Corporation provides retiree health care

coverage and prescription drug coverage through the Emp1re Plan offered by the New York State Health
Insurance Program (“NYSHIP”).

Benefits provided The Corporation provides comprehensive health care and prescription drug coverage
for its eligible retirees and their spouses. N6.other benefits are provided. Benefit provisions for the plan
are established and amended by act »taken by the Corporation’s Members and there is no statutory
requirement for HDC to contir istplan for future HDC employees. The plan is currently a non-
contributory plan with all payi ents:for plan benefits being funded by HDC on a pay-as-you-go-basis. The
Corporation does not 1ssue a pil icly available financial report for the plan.

As of November 1, 2016, HDC adopted GASB Statement No. 75, “Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”. This statement establishes guidelines for reporting
costs associated with “other postemployment benefits” (“OPEB”) similar to accounting for pension under
GASB No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions” and this statement replaces GASB
Statement No. 45. HDC’s annual OPEB cost for the plan is calculated based on the Entry Age Normal

level percentage cost method, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of
GASB Statement No. 75.

The covered-employee payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $17,487,000
and the ratio of the net OPEB liability to the covered-employee payroll was 40.91%.

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan

members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit
costs between HDC and the plan members to that point.
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Employees covered by benefit terms. At October 31, 2019, the measurement date, the following employees
were covered by the benefit terms:

Membership Stafus as of November 1, 2018 Count

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit

payments 31

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit

payments 11

Active plan employees 171

Total 213
Net OPEB Liability

HDC’s net OPEB 11ab111ty was measured as of October 31, 2018 and the total OPEB liability used to
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuar1a1 luatlon as of that date. The total OPEB
liability was $15,572,000 and the net OPEB 11ab111ty was $7 154 000. The actual benefit payments made
during fiscal year 2019 amounted to $140,000.

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Net OPEB
Liability Position Liability

Net OPEB liability at begmnmg of the yedr $22,224,000 $8,402,000 $13,822,000
Changes for the year: .

Service cost 1,500,000 — 1,500,000

Interest i 803,000 — 803,000

Difference between expected and actual experience (1,285,000) — (1,285,000

Changes of assumptions (7,568,000) — (7,568,000)

Net investment income — 122,000 (122,000)

Benefit payments (102,000) (102,000) —

Administrative expense — (4,000) 4,000

Net changes (6,652,000) 16,000 (6,668,000)

Net OPEB liability at end of the year $15,572,000 $8,418,000 $7,154,000

OPERB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Since establishing an irrevocable OPEB trust in fiscal year 2012, the Corporation has funded a total of
$8,000,000 to date. All OPEB plan assets are held in a separate trust account for the exclusive purpose of
paying OPEB obligations.

Investment policy. The Corporation’s investment policy is set by the HDC Act and the guidelines are
established and adopted by HDC’s Board Members on an annual basis.
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All investment transactions are recorded on the trade date. For fiscal years ending October 31, 2019 and
2018, the fair value _of OPEB trust investments were $8,550,000 and $8,270,000, respectively.

Investment Maturities at October 31, 2019 (in Years)

Investment Type 2019 Less than 1 1-5 6-10 More than 10
(in thousands)

FHLB Bonds $8,550 — 8,550 — —
Total $8,550 — 8,550 — —

The Corporation has the following recurring fair value measurements as of October 31, 2019:

e FHLB securities of $8,550,000 are valued based on models usmg observable inputs. (Level 2
1nputs) -

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arlsmg fro n ri ng interest rates, the Corporation’s
Investment Guidelines charge the Investment Committee w1th “ ...determining appropnate investment
instruments...based on...length of time funds are, avallable for investment purposes...” among other
factors. Thus, maturities are matched to the Corpora‘uon s liquidity needs. As part of the Corporation’s
investment policies, it looks to invest its bond and corporate related reserves in long-term securities that
carry a higher yield, with the intent to hold the 1nvestments to maturity.

The Corporation’s investment gu1de ies‘and policies are designed to protect principal by limiting credit
risk. This is accomplished by maklng decisions based on a review of ratings, collateral, and diversification
requirements that vary accordlng to the type of investment.

As of October 31, 2019, 1nvestments in Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) were rated by Standard &
Poor’s (FHLB is referred to as “Agency”). The ratings were AA+ and A-1+ by Standard & Poor’s for
long-term and short-term instruments. Investment in FHLB is implicitly guaranteed by the U.S.
government. They carry ratings equivalent to the credit ratings for the U.S. government.

The Corporation follows its annually adopted investment guidelines in accordance with concentration
limits and reviews its credit concentration monthly. The Corporation’s Credit Risk unit monitors

concentration risk amongst issuers and reports regularly to the Members of the Corporation’s Audit
Committee.

The following table shows issuers that represent 5% or more of total investments at October 31, 2019:

Issuer Dollar Amount Percentage
FHLB $8,550,000 100.00%

For the year ended October 31, 2019, the annual money-weighted rate of return on investments, net of
investment expense, was 2.19%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance,
net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.
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For the year ended October 31, 2019, HDC recognized an OPEB expense of $1,388,000. At October 31,
2019, HDC reported OPEB related deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources from

the following sources:

Deferred Outflows | Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Deferred Outflows/Inflows as of November 1, 2018 $1,061,000 $765,000
Changes for the year

Difference between expected and actual experience — 1,285,000

Change in assumptions — 7,568,000

Difference between. projected and actual investment earnings 212,000 —

Recognition of deferred outflows/inflows in FY 2019 (248,000) (833,000)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows as of October 31,2019 $1,025,000 $8,785,000

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense in future years as follows

FY 2020 $(585,000)
FY 2021 (585,000)
FY 2022 (629,000)
FY 2023 (670,000) |
FY 2024 (712,000).

Thereafter $(4 579 000 1

Actuarial assumptions. The total OP l1ab111ty at October 31, 2019 used the Entry Age Normal level
percent cost method and the actuarlal valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions.

E .~\2.5%

Inflation

Salary increases 3.0% average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 4.0%

Healthcare cost trend rates 6.5% grading down to a rate 0f 4.5%

Mortality. The post-retirement mortality rates were based on the actual experience of the NYCERS
population and the application of the mortality improvement scale (MP-2018). The mortality improvement
scale was updated to MP-2018 based on the latest data released by the Society of Actuaries. The actuarial
assumptions used in the October 31, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study from 2006 to 2016.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return. The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments
was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates
of returns (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by

weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation.
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The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

A Real Return
Asset Class Target Allocation | Arithmetic Basis
U.S. Fixed Income 100.00% 2.20%

The long-term expected rate of return of 4.00%, net of investment expenses

Discount Rate. The long term expected rate of return on plan assets is 4.00% per year, net of investment
expenses. The weighted average discount rate is 3.91% in 2018, up from 3.39% in 2017. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the Corporation would continue to make
payments for future benefits payments based on currently available assets and investment returns and will
not make any additional contributions to the Trust. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projectéd OPEB payments for current active and
inactive employees until 2032. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments
was applied until 2032 and the 20-year S&P bond 1ndex rate was apphed for all years after 2032.

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes:in the dzscount rate and healthcare cost trend rates. The
following presents the net OPEB liability and: what it would be if it were calculated using a rate that is 1-

percentage-point lower or l-percentage p01nt hlgher than the current discount rate and healthcare cost
trend rate.

Sensitivity of the net OPEB hablhty to’ changes in the 1% Decrease Discount Rate

0, 0,
discount rate (2.91%) (3.91%) 1% Increase (4.91%)
Net OPEB liability $9,728,000 $7,154,000 $5,049,000
Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the 1% Decrease Net Healthcare Cost Trend 1% Increase Net
healthcare cost trend rate OPEB Liability Rate OPEB Liability
Net OPEB liability $3,498,000 $7,154,000 $13,259,000

Note 15: Due to the United States Government — Non~-Current Liabilities

In order to maintain the exemption from federal income tax of interest on bonds issued subsequent to
January 1, 1986, the Corporation established a separate fund, the Rebate Fund, into which amounts
required to be rebated to the Federal Government pursuant to Section 148 of the Code are deposited. In
general, the Code requires the payment to the U.S. Treasury of the excess of the amount earned on all non-
purpose obligations over the amount that would have been earned if the gross proceeds of the issue were
invested at a rate equal to the yield on the issue. Project or construction funds, debt service funds or any
other funds or accounts funded with proceeds of such bonds, including earnings, or pledged to or expected
to be used to pay interest on such bonds are subject to this requirement. Issues with respect to which all
gross proceeds are éxpended for the governmental purpose of the issue within the required time period
after the date of issue and debt service funds with annual gross earnings of less than $100,000 are exempt
from this requirement. Payment is to be made after the end of the fifth bond year and after every fifth bond
year thereafter, and within 60 days after retirement of the bonds. As of October 31, 2019, HDC had set
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aside funds in the amount of $139,000 to make future rebate payments when due.
Note 16: Commitments
(4) New York City Housing Development Corporation

(i) The Corporation is committed under one operating lease for office space for minimum annual rentals
for the next five years as follows:

Year Ending October 31, 2019

20200 o1 $2,143,000
2021 e, 2,153,000
2022, v, 2,156,000
2023 ..o 180,000
2024 et 0
Total $6,’632 000

For fiscal year 2019, the Corporation’s rental expens %‘ludmg escalatlon taxes and operating costs

amounted to $2,292,000 and utility expense amounted to $75 000.

(i1) The Corporation’s practice is to close loans ;}ykwhen all the funds committed to be advanced have
been made available through bond proceeds or & reservation of corporate funds. Funds are invested prior
to being advanced, as described in Note 3: “Investments and Deposits” and are reported as restricted assets.

(iii) The portion of olosed constructlon 1oans that had not yet been advanced as of October 31, 2019 is as
follows: (in thousands) - G

Programs:
Multi-Family Bond Programs

Housing Revenue $1,909,555
Corporate Services Fund Loans 198,144
HPD Grant Funds 1,360,122
Department of Justice (“DOJ”) Settlement Funds 5,209
Unadvanced Construction Loans (closed loans) $3,473,030

As of October 31, 2019, the Corporation has executed nine participation loans which HDC has committed

to repurchase at permanent conversion. The timing and amount will be determined at the time of
conversion.

(iv) The Corporation has made a programmatic funding commitment in support of the City’s housing
initiatives. HDC has reserved funds to fulfill these commitments, but the timing and amount of remaining

loan closings cannot be determined. The programmatic commitment is as follows:

=  On June 6, 2016, the Corporation entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) with
HPD, which was subsequently amended on December 15, 2016, that outlines the Corporation’s
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obligations to use corporate reserves to fund construction loans for projects eligible under the
Green Housing Preservation Program (“GHPP”). Under the GHPP, HPD extends construction and
permanent loans to projects specifically to finance energy efficiency and water conservation
improvements, as well as moderate rehabilitation to improve building conditions, reduce
greenhouse gas emissions, and preserve affordability. HDC has set aside $13,361,000 of its
reserves for this purpose. The total amount advanced as of October 31, 2019 was $3,593,000.

(B) New York City Residential Mortgage Insurance Corporation

As of October 31, 2019, REMIC insured loans with coverage amounts totaling $287,213,000 and had
outstanding commitments to insure loans with a maximum insurance coverage amount of $142,375,000.

Note 17: Financial Guaranties

(4) NYCHA Tax c;ediz Guaranty

On April 2,2012, the Corporat1on entered into a Guaranty Agreement with Citibank to guaranty the yield
on Citibank’s investment in the Low-Income Housmg Tax Credit (“LIHTC”) created pursuant to the
NYCHA Tax Credit Transaction. In return, the Corporatlon received $16.0 million as a guaranty fee from
Citibank, less fees and expenses of $929, 000 1ncurred under this agreement

On July 15, 2013, Citibank transferred: 100% of its rights under the Guaranty Agreement to Wells Fargo
Holdings (“Wells Fargo”). As of that date, the Guaranty Agreement between Citibank and HDC was
terminated and a new agreement was s1gned between HDC and Wells Fargo. As a condition of Citibank
selling its rights under the Guaranty 'Agreement, the Corporation received an additional $8.0 million of
guaranty fee from Wells Fargo less fees and expenses of $320,000 incurred under this agreement.

Under the Guaranty Agreement between HDC and Wells Fargo the Corporation agreed to guaranty a
minimum rate of return on Wells Fargo’s tax credit investment in the NYCHA I Housing Development
Fund Corporation through a 15-year compliance period. The minimum rate of return is equal to an annual
effective rate of 4.50% on an after-tax basis return on its tax credit investment over the 15-year compliance
period. During the compliance period, from time to time NYCHA LLC-I will determine if the total benefits
allocated or paid to Wells Fargo through such date, together with the tax benefits projected to be received
by Wells Fargo thereafter through the coverage period termination date, are sufficient to keep Wells Fargo
on track to achieve the minimum return. If it is determined that Wells Fargo is not on track to achieve the
minimum return through the coverage period termination date, the Corporation shall have the option, but
not the obligation, subject to a cap amount of $96,000,000, to make a payment to Wells Fargo under the
Guaranty Agreement in an amount equal to the optional minimum return deficiency amount.

The NYCHA Tax Credit transaction required the establishment and funding of several project reserves
and guaranties in order to ensure timely completion of rehabilitation, which has in fact proceeded on time
and within budget. As of October 31, 2019, the unamortized guarantee fee was $12,556,000 and the
Corporation has designated this amount for the financial guaranty reserve (see Note 18: “Contingencies”).
The likelihood that HDC has to pay out under this guaranty decreases with the passage of time. HDC will
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recognize the guarahty fee on a straight-line basis over the covered period, which is 15 years.
(B) Co-op City Guaranty

On November 28, 2012, the Corporation entered into a Credit Support Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank
National Association (“Wells Fargo Bank”), HUD and SONYMA. Wells Fargo Bank agreed to make a
mortgage in the amount of $621,500,000 to a Mitchell-Lama cooperative housing development named
Co-op City in the Bronx, New York. As a precondition of endorsing the loan for insurance, HUD acting
through FHA required SONYMA and HDC each to provide a portion of top—loss guaranty on the loan.
Pursuant to the agreement between HDC and HUD, HDC agreed to provide $15,000,000 as a guaranteed
amount to Wells Fargo Bank in the event of a default by the cooperative. The Corporation agreed to fund
the full amount of the top-loss guaranty in a segregated designated account for the duration of the HDC
top-loss guaranty. As of October 31, 2019, the Corporation has des1gnated $15,000,000 as a financial
guaranty reserve (see Note 18: “Cont1ngenc1es”)

(C) Community Preservation Corporation Guaranty

On November 18, 2013, the Corporation’s Members authoriZed the purchase of a subordinate participation
in the two or more of Citibank Revolving Credit:Facilities (each a “Revolving Credit Facility” and
collectively “the Revolver”) to Specml Purpose‘Entities (each an “SPE”) to be created by the Community
Preservation Corporation (“CPC”) in an amount fiot to exceed $20 million. HDC’s exposure will be
limited to 10% of each mortgage loan; and $20.million overall. The purpose of this agreement is to provide
financing for the CPC SPEs to faci :the origination, or acquisition of, or participation in mortgage
loans for the construction, rehablhtatlon and refinancing of multi-family rental properties located in the
City’s low- and moderate-income dmmunities. In addition, this subordinate participation replaced the
Limited Guaranty to CPC, Funding SPE 1, LLC and the Corporation will not participate in a separate
Citibank arranged working ¢apital facility for CPC, which was approved by the Corporation’s Members
on April 9,2012.

On May 17, 2016, HDC’s loan participation agreement was amended and the Corporation’s commitment
increased, from $20 million to $25 million, with a new maturity date of May 17, 2022. The total amount
advanced was $33,052,000 and has been fully repaid to date. Since the funding is on a revolving basis,
the Corporation has designated $2,500,000 as a loan participation reserve (see Note 18: “Contingencies™).

(D) Federal Housing Administration Risk Sharing Program

In November 2011, the Corporation entered into an amended risk sharing agreement with HUD. HDC
participates in the Risk Sharing Program to obtain 100% insurance on certain loans made by HDC for
affordable multifamily housing. The risk sharing allocation between HDC and HUD will be on a project-
by-project basis and take effect when the loan converts to permanent financing.

In fiscal year 2014, the Corporation entered into asecond risk-sharing agreement with HUD, which largely

mirrors the terms of the existing amended Risk-Sharing Agreement. HDC has established a guaranty
reserve for risk sharing obligations to FHA if there is a loss on a mortgage loan.
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As of October 31, 2019, HDC has designated a total of $8,135,000 as a financial guaranty reserve under
the FHA risk-sharing mortgage insurance program for sixteen participating projects and future
participating projects (see Note 18: “Contingencies”).

Note 18: Contingencies

In the normal conduct of business, the Corporation is involved in litigation matters. In the opinion of
management and the Corporation’s legal counsel, the ultimate disposition of such litigations should not
have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Corporation.

As discussed in Note 17 above, the Corporation entered into several guaranty agreements with various
entities in order to finance certain projects. To meet its obligations in the event that payments are required,
the Corporation set aside various reserves to cover these guaranties. These reserves are held as Designated
under Unrestricted Net Position (see Note 19: “Net Position”). y ~

The reserves are summarized in the chart below:
At October 31,2019

Financial Guaranties % “Reserve Amounts
NYCHA Tax Credit Guaranty T $12,556,000
Co-op City Guaranty T 15,000,000
Community Preservation Corporatlon Guaranty N 2,500,000
FHA Risk Sharing £ 8,135,000

Total $38,191,000

Note 19: Net Position

The Corporation’s Net Position represents the excess of assets and deferred outflows of resources over
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and consists largely of mortgage loans and investments.
HDC’s net position is categorized as follows:

o Restricted Net Position is net position that has been restricted in use in accordance with the terms of
an award, agreement or by State law. This includes net position restricted by bond resolutions,
contractual obligations with HPD and HUD, and REMIC reserves that are required by statute, among
other items (see chart below).

e Unrestricted Net Position is the remaining net position, which can be further categorized as Designated
or Undesignated. Designated Net Position is not governed by statute or contract but is committed for
specific purposes pursuant to HDC policy and/or Member directives. Designated Net Position includes
funds and assets committed to various housing initiatives, reserves to maintain HDC’s credit ratings,
and working capital.
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Changes in Net Position

The changes in Net Position are as follows:
(in thousands)

Restricted Unrestricted Total
Net position at October 31, 2017 $1,608,799 $975,367 $2,584,166
Income 157,608 26,577 184,185
Loan participation agreement securitization
2018 B-1& B-2 — 63,117 63,117
Transfers 217,046 (217,046) —
Net position at October 31, 2018 1,983,453 848,015 2,831,468
Income 219,423 81,027 300,450
Transfers 119,512 (119,512) —
Net position at October 31, 2019 $2,322,388 " $809,530 $3,131,918
Summary of Restricted Net Position
(in thousands) 2019 2018
Multi-Family Bond Programs $1,926,087 $1,626,419
421-A Housing Trust Fund 298,284 265,112
Corporate Debt Service Reserve 2014 Serles
2018 Series B 12,062 12,507
Claim Payment Fund for 223(f) 37 37
REMIC Insurance Reserve . 85,918 79,378
$2,322,388 $1,983,453

Total Restricted Net Pq}zs‘

Of the total Unrestricted Net Position listed below, $274,801,000 is for existing mortgages and other loans.
An additional $277,045,000 has been designated by senior management of the Corporation for future
mortgage advances pursuant to housing programs established by the Corporation. The Corporation also
has $1,874,000 in capital assets.
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Summary of Unrestricted Net Position

(in thousands) : 2019 2018
Designated Position:
Existing Mortgages $274,801 $341,117
Housing Programs and Commitments 277,045 294,781
Working Capital 24,113 23,579
Rating Agency Reserve 135,000 96,000
Financial Guaranty Reserves (Notes 17 and 18) 38,191 42,041
REMIC Insurance Reserves 58,506 48,332
Total Designated Net Position 807,656 845,850
Net Investment in Capital Assets:
Capital Assets, net 2,165
Total Net Investment in Capital Assets $2,165

In fiscal year 2019, net position transferred from : unrestrlcted to restricted was a net amount of
$119,512,000. The amount represents excess in the Open Resolutlon transfer of mortgage loans originated
with corporate reserves into the Open Resolutlon as a result of securitizations, as well as transfer of
amounts exceeding REMIC reserve requ1rement In fiscal year 2018, a net amount of $217,046,000 was

transferred from restricted to unrestncted as noted above.

Note 20: Subsequent Events

Subsequent to October 31 20 1 9 bonds issued in the course of the Corporation’s normal business activities
were $336,630,000. In addition, the Corporation sold $65,630,000 of loan participation interest to FFB as

well,
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Schedule 1a:

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
($ in thousands)

2019 2018 2017
Total OPEB liability
Service cost $ 1,500 $ 1,380 § 1,346
Interest 803 759 683
Changes of benefit terms - - -
Difference between expected and actual experience (1,285) (154) -
Changes of assumptions (7,568) (716) 1,007
Benefit payments (102) (107) (95)
Net change in total OPEB liability (6,652) 1,171 2,941
Total OPEB liability - beginning . 22,224 21,053 18,112
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $ 15,572 § 22,224 $ 21,053
Plan fiduciary net position
Contribution - employer - - -
Net investment income 122 131 113
Benefit payment (102) (107) (95)
Administrative expense 4) 4) -
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 16 20 18
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning L s 8,402 8,382 8,364
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) : $ 8,418 $ 8,402 $ 8,382
Net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 7,154 § 13,822 $ 12,671
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 54.06% 37.81% 39.81%
Covered payroll $17,487 $16,535 $15,517
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 40.91% 83.59% 81.66%

Notes to Schedule:

Changes of assumptions:

In fiscal year 2018, the projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount assumed that HDC will continue to make payments for future
benefits payments based on currently available assets and investment
returns and will not make any additional contributions to the Trust.

In fiscal year 2019, the termination, disability, and retirement rates were
updated to be consistent with those in the 2019 NYCERS Assumptions and
Methods Repbrt.

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional
years will be displayed as they become available.
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Schedule 1b:

Schedule of the Corporation's OPEB Contributions ($ in thousands)

Actuarially determined contribution
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined

contribution (funded from trust assets)
Contribution deficiency (excess)

HDC covered payroll
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

Adtuarially determined contribution
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined

contribution
Contribution deficiency (excess)

HDC covered employee payroll
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

Notes to Schedule:
Changes in benefit terms: None

Changes in assumptions: Yes

Valuation date:

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
$ 1,555 § 1,607 § 1,617 $ 2,132 § 1,723

1,555 1,607 1,617 2,132 1,723

$ - $ - 8 - $ - $ -
$ 17487 $ 16,535 § 15517 $ 16,165 $§ 14,967
9% 10% 10% 13% 12%

2014 2013 . 2012 2011 2010

$ 1,657 $ 1,747 § 2,033 § 2,033 § 1,643

1,657 1,>7:47 2,033 2,033 1,643
$ - 8 - 8 - $ - $ -

C§ 14595 § 14122 § 13259 § 12,863 § 12244

11% 12% 15% 16% 13%

In 2018 the healthcare cost trend rates changed to "6.5% grading
down to a rate of 4.5%" from previous year of "8% grading down
to a rate of 5%".

In the 2019 actuarial valuation, assumed life expectancies were
adjusted based on the actual experience of the NYCERS
population and the application of the MP-2018 mortality
improvement scale. In prior years, those assumptions were based
on the application of the MP-2017 mortality improvement scale.

Actuarially determined contributions rates are calculated as of October 31, one year prior to the end of the fiscal year in which

contributions are reported.
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Amortization period
Asset valuation method
Inflation

Salary increases
Investment rate of return
Retirement age

Entry age normal

Level percentage of payroll closed

30 years

5-year amortization market

2.5 percent

3%, average, including inflation

4%, net of OPEB plan investment expense

In the 2019 actuarial valuation, expected retirement ages of
general employees were updated to be consistent with those in the
2019 NYCERS Assumptions and Methods Report.

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.
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Schedule 2: :
The following schedules 2a & 2b are being presented to provide information on the Corporation's proportionate share
of the Net Pension Liability and the Corporation's contributions.

(2a) Schedule of the Corpo'ration's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HDC's proportion of the net pension liability 0.054% 0.051% 0.053% 0.053% 0.053% 0.054% 0.054%
HDC's proportionate share of the net pension
liability $ 10,048,926 $ 9,325396 3 10,991,263 § 12,877,315 $ 10,907,802 $ 9,730,403 § 12,459,533
HDC's covered payroll 9,696,963 9,283,052 10,244,624 10,045,598 10,158,437 9,938,413 10,919,865
HDC's proportionate share of the net pension
liability as a percentage of its covered payroll 104% 100% 107% 128% 107% 98% 114%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability 78.84% 78.87% 74.84% 69.67% 73.16% 75.32% 67.22%
(2b) Schedule of the Corporation's Pension Contributions ($ in thousands)

' 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Contractually required contribution . $ 2,003 $ 1,724 § 1,779 § 1,784. $ 1675 §$ 1,682 % 1,645
Contributions in relation to the contractually )
required contribution . 2,003 1,724 1,779 1,784 1,675 1,682 1,645
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - =8 - $ - $ - 3 -
HDC covered payroll 5 9,697 § 9283 % - 10245 § 10,046 § 10,158 § 9,938 § 10,920

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 21% 19% 17% 18% 16% 17% 15%

Notes to Schedule

Changes in benefit terms: None L

Changes in assumptions: Yes The current fiscal year post-retirement mortality tables used were
adopted by the Board of Trustees during fiscal year 2019,

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be
displayed as they become available.
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The following schedule is being presented to provide detail information on a program basis for the owners of the

Housing Revenue Bond program's obligations

Housing Revenue Bond Program
Schedule of Net Position
October 31, 2019 and 2018 (3 in thousands)

2019 2018
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 442,488 $ 430,281
Investments 5,943 6,755
Receivables:
Mortgage loans 316,263 271,980
Accrued interest 20,095 19,147
Other 101 128
Total Receivables 336,459 297,255
Total Current Assets 784,890 734,291
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,006,516 1,159,388
Restricted investments 1,145,883 857,560
Purpose investments (note 2) 28,497 29,081
Restricted receivables:
Mortgage loans 7,317,755 6,411,592
Loan participation receivable - The City of NY 1,075,529 1,092,274
Accrued interest 19,664 10,600
Total Restricted Receivables 8,412,948 7,514,466
Primary government/component unit receivable (payable) 15,245 (37,321)
Interest rate swaps - 19,673
Other assets 603 5,675
Total Noncurrent Assets 10,609,692 9,548,522
Total Assets 11,394,582 10,282,813
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Interest rate caps (note 9) 197 1,368
Deferred outflows related to interest rate swaps (note 9) 100,507 -
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 100,704 $ 1,368
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Schedule 3 (cont'd):
Housing Revenue Bond Program
Schedule of Net Position
October 31,2019 and 2018 (3 in thousands)
2019 2018
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Bonds payable (net) $ 290,900 $ 576,135
Accrued interest payable 114,328 98,481
Payable to mortgagors 1,696 ‘ 1,376
Restricted earnings on investments 49 75
Accounts and other payables 248 48
Total Current Liabilities 407,221 676,115
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds payable (net) ) 8,018,551 6,871,518
Payable to The City of New York: :
Loan participation agreements : : ‘ 1,075,529 1,092,274
Others : 27 129
Payable to mortgagors : 9,831 10,139
Derivative instrument - interest rate swaps 100,507 -
Unearned revenues and other liabilities : . 82,854 75,426
Total Noncurrent Liabilities ' L o 9,287,299 8,049,486
Total Liabilities S o 9,694,520 8,725,601
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Interest rate swaps fair value i - 22,978
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - 22,978
Net Position
Restricted for bond obligations 1,800,766 1,535,602

Total Net Position : $ 1,800,766 $ 1,535,602
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Housing Revenue Bond Pregram
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Fiscal Years ended October 31, 2019 and 2018 (8 in thousands)

2019 2018
Operating Revenues
Interest on loans $ 261,307 226,482
Fees and charges 47,220 34,810
Income on loan participation interests 22,710 4,406
Other 2,135 575
Total Operating Revenues 333,372 266,273
Operating Expenses
Interest and amortization of bond premium and discount 251,287 202,995
Trustees' and other fees 485 509
Bond issuance costs 15,225 11,560
Total Operating Expenses 266,997 215,064
Operating Income 66,375 51,209
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Earnings on investments 64,944 40,396
Unrealized gains on investments 4,879 3,894
Loss on early retirement of debt - (129)
Other non-operating revenues (expenses), net (580) (2,363)
Total Non-operating Revenues ‘ 69,243 41,798
Income 135,618 93,007
Operating transfers to Corporate Services Fund (15,284) (8,891)
Capital transfers 144,830 268,522
Changes in Net Position 265,164 352,638
Total net position - beginning of year 1,535,602 1,182,964
Total Net Position - End of Year $ 1,800,766 1,535,602
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The following schedule is being presented to provide detail information on a program basis for the owners of the
Multi-Family Secured Mortgage Revenue Bonds

Multi-Family Secured Mortgage Revenue Bonds
Schedule of Net Position
October 31, 2019 and 2018 ($ in thousands)

2019 2018
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 17,543 8,919
Receivables: :
Mortgage loans 4,631 4,763
Accrued interest . 610 1,800
Total Receivables ' ) 5,241 6,563
Total Current Assets 22,784 15,482
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents . 5,696 5,768
Restricted receivables:
Mortgage loans ' : 148,698 161,084
Accrued interest 937 -
Total Restricted Receivables _ 149,635 161,084
Primary government/component unit receivable (payable) (259) (4,037)
Total Noncurrent Assets i ’ 155,072 162,815
Total Assets e, 177,856 178,297
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Interest rate cap (note 9) ' 16 512
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 16 512
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Schedule 4 (cont'd):
Multi-Family Secured Mortgage Revenue Bonds
Schedule of Net Position
October 31, 2019 and 2018 (§ in thousands)
2019 2018
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Bonds payable (net) 7,260 7,605
Accrued interest payable 1,102 1,161
Total Current Liabilities 8,362 8,766
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds payable (net) 114,020 121,280
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 114,020 121,280
Total Liabilities 122,382 130,046
Net Position
Restricted for bond obligations 55,490 48,763
Total Net Position 55,490 48,763
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Schedule 4 (cont'd):

Multi-Family Secured Mortgage Revenue Bonds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Fiscal Years ended October 31,2019 and 2018 ($ in thousands)

2019 2018

Operating Revenues

Interest on loans $ 7,562 $ 8,123

Total Operating Revenues 7,562 8,123
Operating Expenses

Interest and amortization of bond premium and discount 5,108 4,350

Bond issuance costs - 161

Total Operating Expenses . : 5,108 4,511

Operating Income _ 2,454 3,612
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Earnings on investments 495 262

Total Non-operating Revenues 495 262

Income L 2,949 3,874

Capital transfers , R 3,778 3,312

Change in Net Position L 6,727 7,186

Total net position - beginning of year S 48,763 41,577
Total Net Position - End of Year L T $ 55,490 $ 48,763
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